Home Forward staff joined other volunteers in July to build a KaBOOM!
playground in just six hours at the Rockwood Station apartments.

Board of Commissioners Meeting
Location:

Hollywood East Apartments
Lawrence Williams Conference Room
1605 NE 45th
Portland, OR 97213
Date & Time:

September 17, 2013
6:15 PM

PUBLIC NOTICE:

Home Forward
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
will meet on
Tuesday, September 17, 2013
At 6:15 pm
At Hollywood East Apartments
1605 NE 45th, Portland
In the Lawrence Williams Conference Room
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MEMORANDUM

To:

Community Partners

Date:

From:

Steve Rudman, Executive Director

Subject:

September 11, 2013
Home Forward Board of
Commissioners September
Meeting

The Board of Commissioners of Home Forward will meet on Tuesday, September 17,
2013 at the Hollywood East Apartments, 1605 NE 45th in the Lawrence Williams
Conference Room, at 6:15 P.M. The commission meeting is open to the public.
The meeting site is accessible, and persons with disabilities may call 503-802-8423 or
503-802-8554 (TTY) for accommodations (e.g. assisted listening devices, sign language,
and/or oral interpreter) by 12:00 pm (noon), Friday, September 13, 2013.
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AGENDA
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
HOME FORWARD
FORWARD – HOLLYWOOD EAST BUILDING
BUILD ING
THE LAWRENCE WILLIAMS
WILLIAM S CONFERENCE ROOM
1605 NE 45TH
PORTLAND, OREGON
September 17,
17, 2013
2013 6:15 PM
INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME
WELCOME
PUBLIC COMMENT
General comments not pertaining to specific resolutions. Any public comment regarding a
specific resolution will be heard when the resolution is considered.
MISSION MOMENT
Topic

Presenter

KaBoom Playground at Rockwood Station

Chris Hughson, Home Forward

CONSENT CALENDAR
Following Resolutions:
1313- 09

Topic

Presenter/POC

Phone #

02

Authorize an Amendment to the
Intergovernmental Agreement with
the City of Portland to Provide
Services Related to Workforce and
Hiring and Section 3 Program

Berit Stevenson

503.802.8541

03

Authorize
Authorize Sale of Scattered Site
Located at 4009 NE 133rd Avenue

Chris Hughson

503.802.8483

04

Authorize Sale of Scattered Site
Located at 4285 SE Stark Street

Chris Hughson

503.802.8483
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05

Authorize Home Forward
Investment Policy

Peter Beyer
Ann Brandt

503.802.8538
503.802.8557

MEETING MINUTES
Topic
Minutes of July16, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting

REPORTS / RESOLUTIONS
RESOLUTION S
Following Reports and Resolutions:
1313- 09
REPORT

Topic
Executive Director’s Report

Presenter/POC

Phone #

Steve Rudman

503.802.8423

06

Authorize Approval of the Fiscal
Year 2013 Annual Report and
Audit

Peter Beyer
John Linfesty

503.802.8538
503.802.8532

REPORT

Full Year FY2013 Financials
Compared to Budget

Peter Beyer
Kathy Kodis

503.802.8538
503.802.8583

07

Authorize FY2014 Revised Budget
Amendment

Peter Beyer
Kathy Kodis

503.802.8538
503.802.8583

08

Authorize Bond Authorization for
St. Johns Woods

Mike Andrews
Ben Loftis

503.802.8507
503.802.8510

ADJOURN
EXECUTIVE SESSION
The Board of Commissioners of Home Forward may meet in Executive Session pursuant to
ORS 192.660(2). Only representatives of the news media and designated staff may attend.
News media and all other attendees are specifically directed not to disclose information that is
the subject of the session. No final decision will be made in the session.
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THE NEXT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISS IONERS
The next Board of Commissioners meeting will be Tuesday, October 15, 2013 at 6:15 PM.
This meeting will take place at Home Forward’s Hollywood East building, 1605 NE 45th,
Portland, Oregon, in the Lawrence Williams Conference Room.
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CONSENT CALENDAR
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MEMORANDUM

To:

From:

Board of Commissioners

Date:

Berit Stevenson, Procurement and
Contracts Manager

Subject:

September 17, 2013
Approve an Amendment to the
Intergovernmental Agreement with
the City of Portland to Provide
Services Related to Workforce and
Hiring and Section 3 Programs
Resolution 13-09-02

The Board of Commissioners is requested to authorize an amendment to the
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the City of Portland which provides coordination,
monitoring and reporting for Home Forward’s Workforce and Hiring and Section 3
Programs. The amendment of $50,000 will compensate the City of Portland for the 2013
calendar year.
ISSUE
Home Forward’s Board of Commissioners established the agency’s Economic
Participation in Contracting Policy in 2006. This policy defined the 20% aspirational goal
for participation of target businesses on professional services and construction contracts
and the 20% aspirational goal for apprenticeship labor hours for construction contracts
over $200,000. The policy included Home Forward’s utilization of the City of Portland’s
workforce hiring and training program to coordinate and monitor the apprenticeship goals
of the policy.
In 2012, the Board of Commissioners adopted resolution 12-03-04, which revised and
renamed policy to the current Economic Equity Policy. The revision included more robust
requirements related to Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968, as amended in 1994. Section
3 compels Home Forward to ensure that employment, training, contracting and other
economic opportunities generated by HUD financial assistance shall, to the greatest extent
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feasible, be directed to low and very-low income persons, particularly public housing
residents and to businesses which provide jobs to low and very-low income persons. As
with the apprenticeship goals, the City of Portland’s workforce hiring and training program
was tasked with administering the Section 3 component of Home Forward’s policy,
including certifying Section 3 businesses and monitoring ongoing compliance.
As directed by the policy, Home Forward has contracted with the City of Portland to
provide coordination, monitoring and reporting services related to Home Forward’s
Workforce and Hiring and Section 3 programs since 2010. Home Forward and the City of
Portland staff have developed a close working relationship as they ensure that these
contract requirements are in place and that contractors comply with the goals and
requirements. This amendment maintains the partnership and ensures that Home Forward
projects continue to deliver positive participation and equity results.
The Home Forward Public Contracting Rules require Board authorization for contracts and
amendments in excess of $99,999.00.
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RESOLUTION 13- 09- 02
RESOLUTION 13- 09- 02 AUTHORIZES THE AMENDMENT
A MENDMENT OF THE
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF PORTLAND FOR
WORKFORCE HIRING AND TRAINING AND SECTION 3 PROGRAMS SERVICES
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the City of Portland provides coordination, monitoring and reporting on Home
Forward’s Workforce Hiring and Training and Section 3 programs on major construction
projects in accordance with IGA No. C0569,
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the IGA is renewed on a yearly basis with an amendment providing for
funding for the current year,
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS approval by the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward is required prior to
execution of contracts or amendments exceeding $99,999.00,
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,
RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Home
Forward hereby authorizes the execution of an amendment in the amount of $50,000.00
to IGA No. C0569 with the City of Portland for services related to the Workforce Hiring and
Training and Section 3 programs.
ADOPTED: SEPTEMBER 17,
17, 2013
Attest:

Home Forward

________________________________
Steven D. Rudman, Secretary

________________________________
Harriet Cormack, Chair
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MEMORANDUM

To:

Board of Commissioners

Date:

From:

Chris Hughson, Asset Manager

Subject:

September 17, 2013
Authorization to Sell Scattered Site
Located at 4009 NE 133rd Avenue
Resolution 13-09-03

The Board of Commissioners is specifically requested to authorize the sale of the single
family property at 4009 NE 133rd Avenue in Portland.
This resolution aligns with Strategic Operations Goal 2: We will increase the number of
housing units for our community through preservation, development and acquisition. It
specifically addresses Priority Initiative 1: Evaluate and reposition existing projects, with an
emphasis on preserving the public housing high rises.
ISSUE
On September 20, 2011, this Board authorized release of the HUD Declaration of Trust on
the single family property above (See Resolution No. 11-09-04). At the time of that
resolution, the current resident was unable to locate another unit that met her needs, so
Home Forward staff reached an agreement to allow her to remain in the unit and
continued to operate it under the public housing portfolio. The resident has since passed
away, and the unit is now vacant.
HUD previously consented to the disposition/sale and has recently confirmed its approval
so long as the sales price is $175,330 or greater.
The estimated value of the property is $199,000, and there is no debt. Home Forward’s
costs to close this transaction will be approximately $19,950, resulting in approximately
$179,050 in net proceeds to the agency. These costs include roughly $7,500 in turnover
expenses (floors, paint, repairs) to enhance the marketability of the property.
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4009 NE 133rd Ave
Estimated Sales Price
Less:
Turnover/Repairs
Title Fees (Escrow, Owner's Std.
Policy)
Real Estate Commission (5%)
Estimated Cash Proceeds

$

199,000

$

(7,500)

$
$

(2,500)
(9,950)

$

179,050

There are risks inherent in owning rental real estate, particularly scattered sites that are
geographically spread. The costs to maintain, insure and manage a single family home are
high given the limited population served. Both Home Forward and local service providers
have shifted their preferred business model to operating larger properties in order to
spread the expense over more units and serve a larger pool of individuals and families.
Staff recommends approval to market and sell the property located at 4009 NE 133rd
Avenue. The proceeds will then be invested in a real estate reserve account to fund future
repairs and other capital needs in the portfolio.
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RESOLUTION 1313- 0909- 03
RESOLUTION 1313- 0909- 03 AUTHORIZES THE SALE OF THE SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENCE LOCATED AT 4009
4009 NE 133rd AVENUE PORTLAND OR 97230 AND
DISTRIBUTION OF NET PROCEEDS TO A REAL ESTATE RESERVE ACCOUNT
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Home Forward is the owner of the real property, a single family property
located at 4009 NE 133rd Avenue in Portland; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the Board of Commissioners adopted resolution 07-07-03 authorizing Home
Forward to submit Section 18 Disposition application DDA0002279 to the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the disposition of 156 units of
scattered site public housing units; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS on February 22, 2008, Home Forward received an official approval letter from
HUD Special Applications Center authorizing the disposition of the 156 units of scattered
site public housing units; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Home Forward determined that there would be a delay in the sale of the
scattered site located at 4009 NE 133rd Avenue due to an approved reasonable
accommodation request; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the Board of Commissioners adopted resolution 11-09-04 approving release
of the Declaration of Trust on the scattered site located at 4009 NE 133rd Avenue; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the individual residing in the scattered site located at 4009 NE 133rd Avenue
has since passed away and the site is now vacant; and
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WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Home Forward has determined that sale of the property would best serve
Home Forward’s mission; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Home Forward desires to sell the scattered site located at 4009 NE 133rd
Avenue and invest the sales proceeds in a real estate reserve account to fund future
repairs and other capital needs in the portfolio;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,
RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes
the Executive Director to execute any and all documents necessary to sell the scattered
site located at 4009 NE 133rd Avenue and invest the sales proceeds in a real estate
reserve account to fund future repairs and other capital needs in the portfolio.
ADOPTED: SEPTEMBER 17, 2013
Attest:

Home Forward:

______________________________
Steven D. Rudman, Secretary

________________________________
Harriet Cormack, Chair
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MEMORANDUM

To:

Board of Commissioners

Date:

From:

Chris Hughson, Asset Manager

Subject:

September 17, 2013
Authorization to Sell Scattered Site
Located at 4285 SE Stark Street
Resolution 13-09-04

The Board of Commissioners is specifically requested to authorize the sale of the single
family property at 4285 SE Stark Street in Portland.
This resolution aligns with Strategic Operations Goal 2: We will increase the number of
housing units for our community through preservation, development and acquisition. It
specifically addresses Priority Initiative 1: Evaluate and reposition existing projects, with an
emphasis on preserving the public housing high rises.
ISSUE
In 1994, Home Forward purchased the single family property above using HOME funds,
Oregon Mental Health funds and a private loan. The home was originally designed to
serve adults with mental illnesses or developmental disabilities. The property is no longer
attractive to service providers due to its design. Rainbow Adult Living had been our
service provider on-site for nearly 20 years. They recently notified us that they had found a
more suitable home and would be vacating the property.
Home Forward staff reached out to the State who confirmed that this property no longer
meets the needs of the group home model because:
1) The home does not have a private bathroom for each resident;
2) It is cost-prohibitive to provide 24-hour supervision and spread expenses across
only five units (the State is moving to a 12 unit model);
3) This is a tri-level, split-entry home with steep stairs and narrow hallways; and
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4) Major capital needs include an electrical upgrade; finishing the basement;
replacement of water lines; replacement/removal of the fire sprinkler system; and
foundation erosion.
The home is located in a highly desirable neighborhood, within walking distance to
Laurelhurst Park and the popular Belmont / Hawthorne communities. We explored the
possibility of retaining the home and leasing it to a low income family. However, due to the
age of the home, significant capital needs and ongoing maintenance costs, we concluded
this would be an inefficient use of the agency’s equity in the property.
The estimated value of the property is $450,000, and there is no debt. Home Forward’s
costs to close this transaction will be approximately $35,000, resulting in approximately
$415,000 in net proceeds to the agency. These costs include approximately $10,000 in
turnover expenses (floors, paint, repairs) to enhance the marketability of the property.

4285 SE Stark Street
Estimated Sales Price
Less:
Turnover/Repairs
Title Fees (Escrow, Owner's Std.
Policy)
Real Estate Commission (5%)
Estimated Cash Proceeds

$

450,000

$

(10,000)

$
$

(2,500)
(22,500)

$

415,000

There are risks inherent in owning rental real estate, particularly scattered sites that are
geographically spread. The costs to maintain, insure and manage a single family home are
high given the limited population served. Both Home Forward and local service providers
have shifted their preferred business model to operating larger properties in order to
spread the expense over more units and serve a larger pool of individuals and families.
Staff recommends approval to market and sell the property located at 4285 SE Stark
Street. The proceeds should then be invested in a real estate reserve account to fund
future repairs and other capital needs in the portfolio.

2
Home Forward Board of Commissioners
September 2013

16

RESOLUTION 1313- 0909- 04
RESOLUTION 1313- 0909- 04 AUTHORIZES THE SALE OF THE SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENCE LOCATED AT 4285 SE STARK STREET PORTLAND OR 97215 AND
DISTRIBUTION OF NET PROCEEDS TO A HOME FORWARD REAL ESTATE
RESERVE ACCOUNT
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Home Forward is the owner of the real property, a single family property
located at 4285 SE Stark Street in Portland; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the home was originally designed to serve adults with mental illnesses or
developmental disabilities; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Home Forward has evaluated the property and has determined that the
property no longer meets the requirements of a group home for adults with mental
illnesses or developmental disabilities and has significant anticipated future capital needs;
and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Home Forward has determined that sale of the property would best serve
Home Forward’s mission; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Home Forward desires to sell the scattered site located at 4285 SE Stark
Street and invest the sales proceeds in a real estate reserve account to fund future repairs
and other capital needs in the portfolio;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,
RESOLVED The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes
the Executive Director to execute any and all documents necessary to sell the scattered
site located at 4285 SE Stark Street and invest the sales proceeds in a real estate reserve
account to fund future repairs and other capital needs in the portfolio.
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ADOPTED: SEPTEMBER 17, 2013
Attest:

Home Forward:

_______________________________
Steven D. Rudman, Secretary

________________________________
Harriet Cormack, Chair
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MEMORANDUM

To:

Board of Commissioners

Date:

From:

Peter Beyer, Chief Financial Officer

Subject:

Ann Brandt, Manager of
Treasury and Risk Management

September 17, 2013
Authorize Home Forward
Investment Policy
Resolution 13-09-05

The Board of Commissioners is requested to approve Home Forward’s revised investment
policy.
ISSUE
Home Forward’s investment policy was last approved in October 1995. Since then, laws
and circumstances affecting Home Forward’s investment opportunities and restrictions
have changed.
Our previous investment policy focused primarily on the investment of HUD funds as
permitted by United States of America Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) Handbook 7475.1, Chapter 4, Cash Management. The 1995 policy also
incorporated two other events: the passage of House Bill 3083, the Housing Authority
Investments Act of 1995 by the Oregon legislature; and a concern submitted in writing by
our auditors at the time, Grove, Mueller, Hall & Swank, that HUD’s investment maturity
guidelines were in conflict with Oregon State law.
During 1999, a Moving to Work Agreement (MTW) was entered into between HUD and
Home Forward. The MTW Agreement authorized Home Forward to adopt State of
Oregon Investment Policies that would allow Home Forward flexibility to invest its financial
resources productively and effectively in securities authorized under the Oregon Revised
Statutes 294.035 Investment of Surplus Funds of Political Subdivisions, as limited by
Oregon Revised Statues 456.120 Powers of Housing Authority as a Public Corporation.
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Since 1999, Home Forward’s 1995 Investment Policy and 1999 MTW Agreement have
jointly governed the agency’s investment activities.
CURRENT
The revisions included in this Investment Policy incorporate the provisions allowed in our
MTW Agreement into an investment policy format designed by the Oregon State
Treasurer’s office. Pursuant to ORS 294.135 (a), this revised investment policy was
submitted to the Oregon Short Term Fund (OSTF) Board for review on January 10, 2013.
On March 05, 2013, the OSTF Board provided a letter to our Board of Commissioners,
stating the draft policy submitted to them for review required no comments for
improvement or revisions.
INVESTMENTS ALLOWED
The following investments reflect investment instruments allowed within Home Forward’s
policy:
• US Treasury Obligations: U.S. Treasury and other government obligations that carry
the full faith and credit guarantee of the United States for the timely payment of
principal and interest
• US Agency Obligations: Senior debenture obligations of US federal agencies and
instrumentalities or U.S. government sponsored enterprises (GSE)
• Oregon Short Term Fund
• Corporate Indebtedness
Commercial Paper Section - 3(a)2 or 3(a)3 of the Securities Act of 1933
Corporate Bond
• Repurchase Agreements
• Municipal Debt
• Bankers Acceptances
• Bank Time Deposits/Savings Accounts/Certificates of Deposit
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES
The Agency’s primary objectives are categorized according to three fundamental
characteristics, in the following priority order of investment activities: safety, liquidity, and
yield. The Agency’s basic investment philosophy is comprised of these three objectives,
the investments used to achieve them, and the ways in which the agency can incorporate
them into a devising strategy.
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The safest investments are usually found in government-issued securities, the Oregon
Short Term Fund/Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), treasury bills, certificates of
deposit, money market savings, and the highest quality commercial paper.
The investment choices listed above are sufficiently liquid to meet all reasonably
anticipated operating requirements. Maturities are laddered according to expected cash
outflows. Maturity constraints are based on the following minimum % of total portfolio:
under 3 year – 100%; under 1.5 year – 50%; and under 90 days – 25% investable funds.
The investment portfolio is designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return,
subject to the safety and liquidity objectives. Generally, LGIP offers the highest yield, in
addition to safety and one-day liquidity.
Semi-annually (March and September), the Investment Officer (CFO) will provide a report to
Home Forward’s Audit and Finance Committee, allowing the committee to ascertain that
investment activities during the reporting period have conformed to the investment policy.
The investment policy was reviewed with the Audit and Finance committee on September
10, 2013.
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RESOLUTION 1313- 09- 05
RESOLUTION 1313- 09- 05 AUTHORIZES APPROVING AND ADOPTING HOME
FORWARD’S INVESTMENT POLICY 2013
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS sound business practices require that Home Forward have a formal
investment policy;
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Home Forward is committed to maintaining high standards toward the
preservation of fiscal resources and the stewardship of public funds and assets;
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS laws and circumstances affecting Home Forward’s investment opportunities
and restrictions have changed since October 1995;
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the Oregon Short Term Fund (OSTF) Board has reviewed Home Forward’s
investment policy and provided comments that the policy requires no further
improvements or revisions;
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the Board of Commissioners has reviewed the investment policy, and with
staff on the various components of the policy;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,
RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward
approves the Investment Policy as submitted for September 17, 2013.
ADOPTED: SEPTEMBER 17,
17, 2013
Attest:

Home Forward:

_______________________________
Steven D. Rudman, Secretary

________________________________
Harriet Cormack, Chair
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HOME FORWARD
INVESTMENT POLICY
September 2013

Board Resolution: 13-09-05
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HOME FORWARD INVESTMENT POLICY
September 2013

I.

Introduction

This Investment Policy defines the parameters within which funds are to be
managed and invested by Home Forward. Home Forward, a body both corporate
and politic, is a housing authority under the Oregon law ORS Chapter 456 whose
purpose is to create public commitment, policy, and funding towards the
development and operation of affordable housing.
This policy also formalizes the framework, pursuant to ORS 294.135, for Home
Forward’s investment activities that must be exercised to provide effective
investment management of Home Forward’s funds. The guidelines are intended to
be broad enough to allow designated investment staff to function properly within
the parameters of responsibility and authority, yet specific enough to adequately
safeguard the investment assets.
II.

Governing Authority
Home Forward’s investment program shall be operated in conformance with
Oregon Revised Statutes and applicable Federal Law. Specifically, this investment
policy is written in conformance with ORS Chapter 294 - County and Municipal
Financial Administration:
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/294.html
ORS 294.035
investments
ORS 294.040
ORS 294.046
ORS 294.047
ORS 294.052
ORS 294.125
limitations
ORS 294.135
ORS 294.145
ORS 294.155
ORS 294.810

Investment of surplus funds of political subdivisions; approved
Restriction on investments under ORS 294.035
List of approved securities under ORS 294.035: distribution
Loss of principal on liquidation of investments
Definitions; investment by municipality of proceeds of bonds
Investment of funds authorized by order of governing body;
Investment maturity dates
Prohibited conduct for custodial officer
Annual audit report; monthly report
Local governments authorized to place limited funds in pool

Pursuant to Home Forward’s Moving to Work Agreement with the Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), this investment policy is written in
3|Page
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conformance with ORS Chapter 456 - Housing
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/456.html
ORS 456.120
Powers of Housing Authority as a Public Corporation
All funds within the scope of this policy are subject to statutes and regulations
established by the state of Oregon. Any revisions or extensions of ORS Chapter
294 shall be assumed to be part of this Investment Policy immediately upon being
enacted.
III.

Scope
This policy applies to activities of Home Forward with regard to investing the
financial assets of operating funds. As a housing authority, Home Forward may
engage in projects that are long term in nature (up to 60 years) that may require
the establishment of reserve funds related to debt proceeds and/or capital funds.
These proceeds shall be invested in accordance to the applicable funding
covenants and contractual obligations related to such funds, including an
investment duration that matches the necessity of the underlying transaction, even
if that duration exceeds limits otherwise imposed by this policy.
Home Forward’s Moving to Work Agreement allows for federal funds to be
invested in securities permitted under Oregon state law. As such, both federal and
non-federal operating funds will be invested according to this policy.
Except for funds in certain restricted and special funds, Home Forward invests its
funds to preserve security, to maximize investment earnings and to increase
efficiencies with regard to investment pricing, safekeeping and administration.
Investment income will be allocated to the various funds based on their respective
participation and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

IV.

Objectives
The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be safety,
liquidity, and yield.
1. Safety
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation
of capital. The goal is to invest funds in instruments with the highest degree of
certainty that such invested funds are available as and when needed at par or
better.
2. Liquidity
The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all reasonably
anticipated operating requirements. As appropriate, the portfolio can be structured
so that investments mature concurrent with anticipated demands. Alternatively,
4|Page
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funds may be placed in the Oregon Short Term Fund, otherwise known as Local
Government Investment Pool (LGIP), which offers next-day availability.
3. Yield
The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market
rate of return subject to the safety and liquidity objectives above. Safety and
Liquidity shall take precedence over yield in all investment decisions. While not
precluding the sale of investments before maturity, this policy discourages active
trading and turnover of investments. Investments should generally be held to
maturity.
V.

Standards of Care
1. Prudence
The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent
person" standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall
portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and this
investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal
responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes,
provided deviations from expectations are reported and appropriate action is taken
to control adverse developments within a timely fashion as defined in this policy.
The "prudent person" standard states:
"Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then
prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the
management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment,
considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to
be derived."
2. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from
personal activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of
the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial
decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose any material interests
in financial institutions with which they conduct business. Disclosure shall be made
to the governing body. They shall further disclose any personal
financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the
investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking
personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is
conducted on behalf of the Home Forward. Officers and employees shall, at all
times, comply with HUD’s Standards of Conduct, Home Forward’s Standards of
Conduct and Performance, Code of Ethics, Conflict of Interest policies and the
code of ethics required for Housing Authorities as established in ORS Chapter 456
- Housing.
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3. Delegation of Authority and Responsibilities

(a) Governing Body
Home Forward’s Audit and Finance Committee shall be the governing body that
will retain ultimate fiduciary responsibility for invested funds. The governing body
shall receive reports as defined in this policy, and will ensure that investment
activity and management are conducted within the parameters established by this
investment policy.
(b) Delegation of Authority
Authority to manage investments within the scope of this policy and operate the
investment program in accordance with established written procedures and internal
controls is granted to the Chief Financial Officer, hereinafter referred to as
Investment Officer.
Furthermore, the Board of Commissioners for Home Forward grants authorization
to the Executive Director and the Chief Financial Officer, to jointly delegate the
authority to staff members who will then be authorized to conduct the business of
investment.
No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the
terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Investment Officer. The
Investment Officer shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall
establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials. All
participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians
of the public trust.
(c) Investment Committee
Home Forward may seek to establish an investment committee to provide
guidance to the Investment Officer(s) and monitor investment policy compliance.
(d) Investment Adviser
Home Forward may engage the services of one or more external investment
managers to assist in the management of the entity's investment portfolio in a
manner consistent with this investment policy. Investment advisers may be hired
on a non-discretionary basis. All investment transactions by approved investment
advisers must be pre-approved in writing by the Investment Officer and compliant
with this Investment Policy. If Home Forward hires an investment adviser to
provide investment management services, the adviser is authorized to transact
with its direct dealer relationships on behalf of Home Forward.
VI.

Transaction Counterparties, Investment Advisers and Depositories
1. Broker/Dealers
The Investment Officer shall determine which broker/dealer firms and registered
representatives are authorized for the purposes of investing funds within the scope
of this investment policy. A list will be maintained of approved broker/dealer firms
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and affiliated registered representatives.
The following minimum criteria must be met at the initial set up of a broker/dealer,
prior to authorizing investment transactions. The Investment Officer may impose
more stringent criteria.
a)

Broker/Dealers must meet the following minimum criteria:
1. Be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
2. Be registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).
3. Be willing to provide upon request, FINRA Focus Report filings.

b)

Approved broker/dealer employees who execute transactions with Home
Forward must meet the following minimum criteria:
1. Be a registered representative with the Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority (FINRA).
2. Be licensed by the state of Oregon.
3. Positive references from at least two other local government clients.
4. Requirement that approved registered representatives provide notification
within 30 days of any formal investigations or disciplinary actions initiated by
federal or state regulators.
5. Requirement that approved registered representatives provide notification
within 30 days of a relationship termination by an Oregon based local
government.
6. Certification in writing of having read; understood; and agreed to comply with
Home Forward’s most current version of this investment policy.

c)

Periodic (at least annual) review of all authorized broker/dealers and their
respective authorized registered representatives will be conducted by the
Investment Officer. Factors to consider would be:
1. Pending investigations by securities regulators.
2. Significant changes in net capital.
3. Pending customer arbitration cases.
4. Regulatory enforcement actions.
5. Provide most recent audited financials, upon request.

2. Investment Advisers
A list will be maintained of approved advisers selected by conducting a process of
due diligence.
a)

Approved Investment Advisers must meet the following requirements:
1. The investment adviser firm must be registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) or licensed by the state of Oregon;
(Investment adviser firms with assets under management > $100 million
must be registered with the SEC, otherwise the firm must be licensed by the
state of Oregon).
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2. All investment adviser firm representatives conducting investment
transactions on behalf of Home Forward must be registered representatives
with FINRA.
3. All investment adviser firm representatives conducting investment
transactions on behalf of representatives must be licensed by the state of
Oregon.
4. Positive references from at least three other local government clients of a
prospective investment adviser.
5. Requirement that approved investment advisers provide notification within 30
days of any formal investigations or disciplinary actions initiated by federal or
state regulators.
6. Requirement that approved investment advisers provide notification within 30
days of a relationship termination by an Oregon based local government.
7. Certification, by all of the adviser representatives conducting investment
transactions on behalf of this entity, of having read, understood and agreed
to comply with this investment policy.
b)

Periodic (at least annual) review of all authorized investment advisers will be
conducted by the Investment Officer. Factors to consider would be:
1. Pending investigations by securities regulators.
2. Significant changes in net capital.
3. Pending customer arbitration cases.
4. Regulatory enforcement actions.
5. Provide most recent audited financials, upon request.

3. Depositories
a)

All financial institutions must be qualified Oregon Depositories pursuant to ORS
Chapter 295 – Depositories of Public Funds and Securities.
http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/295.html

b)

Federal fund deposits require that a General Depository Agreement (Form HUD51999) shall be executed between Home Forward and the depository.

4. Competitive Transactions
a) The Investment Officer shall obtain and document competitive bid
information on all investments purchased or sold in the secondary market.
Competitive bids or offers should be obtained, when possible, from at least two
separate brokers/financial institutions or through the use of a nationally
recognized trading platform.
b) In the instance of a security for which there is no readily available
competitive bid or offering on the same specific issue, then the Investment
Officer shall document quotations for comparable or alternative securities.
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c) When purchasing original issue instrumentality securities, no competitive
offerings will be required as all dealers in the selling group offer those
securities as the same original issue price. However, the Investment Officer is
encouraged to document quotations on comparable securities.

d) If an investment adviser provides investment management services, the
adviser must retain documentation of competitive pricing execution on each
transaction and provide upon request.
VII.

Safekeeping and Custody
1. Delivery vs. Payment
All trades of marketable securities will be executed by Delivery vs. Payment (DVP),
a transaction in which the buyer’s payment for securities is due at the time of
delivery upon receipt of the securities. The payment may be made by bank wire,
check, or direct credit to an account. This ensures securities are deposited in the
Home Forward’s safekeeping institution prior to the release of funds.
2. Third-Party Safekeeping
Securities will be held by an independent third-party safekeeping institution
selected by Home Forward. All securities will be evidenced by safekeeping
receipts in Home Forward’s name. Upon request, the safekeeping institution shall
make available a copy of its Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements
(SSAE) No. 16.
3. Internal Controls (see Appendix A and Appendix B)
The investment officer and the investment governing body are responsible for
establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure designed to
reasonably assure that invested funds are invested within the parameters of this
Investment policy and, protected from loss, theft or misuse. Specifics for the
internal controls shall be documented in writing. The established control structure
shall be reviewed and updated periodically by the Investment Officer.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.
The internal controls shall address the following points at a minimum:
a) Compliance with Investment Policy
b) Control of collusion
c) Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping
d) Custodial safekeeping
e) Avoidance of physical delivery of securities
f) Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members
g) Confirmation of transactions for investments and wire transfers in written or
digitally verifiable electronic form
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h) Dual authorizations of wire and automated clearing house (ACH) transfers
i) Staff training
j) Review, maintenance and monitoring of security procedures both manual and
automated
4. External Audit
An external auditor shall provide an annual independent review to assure
compliance with Oregon state law and Home Forward policies and procedures.
VIII.

Suitable and Authorized Investments
1. Permitted Investments
The following investments reflect investment instruments allowed within Home
Forward’s policy and are permitted pursuant to ORS 294.035, 294.040, and
ORS 294.810. (Permitted investments may be more restrictive than ORS
294.035 and 294.810).
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

US Treasury Obligations: U.S. Treasury and other government obligations that
carry the full faith and credit guarantee of the United States for the timely
payment of principal and interest.
US Agency Obligations: Senior debenture obligations of US federal agencies
and instrumentalities or U.S. government sponsored enterprises (GSE).
Oregon Short Term Fund
Corporate Indebtedness
o Commercial Paper issued under the authority of section 3(a)2 or 3(a)3 of
the Securities Act of 1933
o Corporate Bonds
Repurchase Agreements
Municipal Debt
Bankers Acceptances
Bank Time Deposits/Savings Accounts/Certificates of Deposit

A list of Investments allowed under ORS 294.035, 294.040 and 294.810 may be
found on the Oregon Treasury website at the following links:
• www.ost.state.or.us/Services/LocalGov/Summary.of.Liquid.Investments.asp
• www.ost.state.or.us/Services/SampleInvestment/link_V.1.asp
2. Approval of Permitted Investments
Any revisions of the ORS shall be assumed to be part of this Investment Policy
immediately upon being enacted, unless under discretion by the Investment
Officer, such changes could be limited.
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3. Prohibited Investments

•
•
•

Private placement or "144A" securities are not allowed. "144A" securities
include commercial paper issued under section 4(2)144A (also known as
"4(2)A") of the Securities Act of 1933.
US agency mortgage-backed securities such as securities by FNMA and
FHLMC are not allowed.
Securities Lending - Home Forward shall not lend securities nor directly
participate in a securities lending.

4. Bank Demand Deposits and Time Deposits
•

•
•

All bank demand deposits and time deposits (Examples of time deposits are:
certificates of deposit and savings accounts) shall be held in qualified
Oregon depositories in accordance with ORS Chapter 295 – Depositories of
Public Funds and Securities.
Bank demand deposits in qualified depository institutions are considered
cash vehicles and not investments and are therefore outside the scope and
restrictions of this policy.
Time deposits, certificates of deposit and savings accounts are considered
investments pursuant to ORS 294.035(3)(d), and within the scope of this
policy.

5. Repurchase Agreements
•

•

IX.

ORS 294.035 (3)(j) requires repurchase agreement collateral to be limited in
maturity to three years and priced according to percentages prescribed by
written policy of the Oregon Investment Council or the Oregon Short Term
Fund Board.
ORS 294.135 (2) limits the maximum term of any repurchase agreement to
90 days. On March 12, 1996, the OSTF Board adopted the following
margins:
a) US Treasury Securities: 102%
b) US Agency Discount and Coupon Securities: 102%
c) Mortgage Backed and Other*: 103%
*Limited to those securities described in ORS 294.035(1)

Investment Parameters
1. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all of its value
due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its debt.
Credit risk will be mitigated by the following guidelines:
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a) Diversification
It is the policy of Home Forward to diversify its investments. Where appropriate,
exposures will be limited by security type; maturity; issuance, and issuer.
Allowed security types and investment exposure limitations are detailed in the
table below.

b) Investment Credit Ratings
Investments must have a rating from at least two of the following nationally
recognized statistical ratings organizations (NRSRO): Moody's Investors
Service; Standard & Poor's; and Fitch Ratings Service as detailed in the table
below. Ratings used to apply the guidelines below should be investment level
ratings and not issuer level ratings.
c) Diversification and Credit Exposure Constraints.
The following table limits exposures among investments permitted by this policy.
The table provides the constraints at the time of purchase of an investment and
uses the current market value of all holdings.
Note: OSTF (LGIP) is treated as a single investment (no look-through to
underlying LGIP holdings) and can be invested up to 49% of corporate debt.
Therefore, Home Forward can invest in both LGIP plus up to 35% corporate
debt as allowed by this investment policy.
Diversification and Credit Exposure Constraints Table:
Table represents limits as allowed by ORS Chapter 294 as of the date of this
policy.
Constraints are based on maximum/minimum limitations at the time of purchase.
Issue Type

Maximum %
Holdings

US Treasury Obligations
US Agency Securities
Per Agency (Senior Obligations Only)
Oregon Short Term Fund

100%
100%
33%
Maximum allowed
per ORS
294.810(5)
25%(1)
100%(2)

Bankers' Acceptances
Bank Time Deposits/Savings
Accounts/Certificates of Deposit
Repurchase Agreements

5%

Minimum
Ratings
Moody's / S&P
/ Fitch
None
-

A1+/P1/F1+
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Corporate Debt (Total)
Corporate Commercial Paper
Per Issuer
Corporate Bonds
Per Issuer
Municipal Debt (Total)
Municipal Commercial Paper
Municipal Bonds

35%(3)
35%(3)
5%(4)
35%(3)
5%(4)
15%
15%
15%

A1/P1/F1
Aa/AA/AA
A1/P1/F1
Aa/AA/AA

(1)

25% Maximum per ORS 294.035 (3)(h)(C)
As authorized by ORS 294.035(3)(d) ; and fully collateralized
(3)
35% Maximum per ORS 294.035(3)(i) (D)
(4)
5% Maximum per ORS 294.035(3)(i) (D)
(5)
$44,999,213 per ORS 294.810
(2)

d) Restriction on Issuers With Prior Default History
Per ORS 294.040, the bonds of issuers listed in ORS 294.035 (3)(a) to (c) may
be purchased only if there has been no default in payment of either the principal
of or the interest on the obligations of the issuing county, port, school district or
city, for a period of five years next preceding the date of the investment.

e) Portfolio Credit Rating
The minimum weighted average credit rating of the portfolio's rated investments
shall be Aa/AA/AA by Moody's Investors Service; Standard & Poor's; and Fitch
Ratings Service respectively, at date of purchase.

2. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an investment may not be easily marketable or
redeemable. The following strategies will be employed to mitigate liquidity risks:
a) The value of at least 25% of investable funds available for investing will be
invested in the Oregon Short Term Fund, or with a qualified depository
institution, or investments maturing in less than 90 days to provide sufficient
liquidity for expected disbursements.
b) Funds in excess of liquidity requirements are allowed for investments
maturing in greater than one year. However, longer-term investments tend
to be less liquid than shorter term investments. Portfolio investment
maturities will be limited as follows:
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Total Portfolio Maturity Constraints:

Maturity Constraints
Under 90 days
Under 1.5 year
Under 3 year

Minimum % of Total Portfolio
25% investable funds
50%
100%

c) Reserve or Capital Improvement Project monies may be invested in
securities exceeding the maximum term if the maturities of such
investments are made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected
use of the funds.
d) Larger issuance sizes enhance liquidity as there are likely to be a greater
number of investors. Issuance sizes above a minimum amount qualify a
corporate or municipal debt bond issuance for index eligibility. Index eligible
bonds have a significantly larger investor base which improves liquidity.

3. Interest Rate Risk
Longer-term investments have the potential to achieve higher returns but are
also likely to exhibit higher market value volatility due to the changes in the
general level of interest rates over the life of the investment(s). Interest rate risk
will be mitigated by providing adequate liquidity for short term cash needs, and
by making longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for
current cash flow purposes. Certain types of securities, including variable rate
securities, securities with principal pay-downs prior to maturity, and securities
with embedded options, will affect the interest rate risk profile of the portfolio
differently in different interest rate environments. The following strategies will be
employed to control and mitigate adverse changes in the market value of the
portfolio due to changes in interest rates:

a) Where feasible and prudent, investment maturities should be matched with
expected cash outflows to mitigate market risk.
b) To the extent feasible, investment maturities not matched with cash
outflows, including liquidity investments under one year, should be
staggered to mitigate re-investment risk.
c) No commitments to buy or sell securities may be made more than 14 days
prior to the anticipated settlement date, or receive a fee other than interest
for future deliveries (ORS 294.145).
d) The maximum percent of callable securities in the portfolio shall be 50%.
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e) The maximum stated final maturity of individual securities in the portfolio
shall be three years, except as otherwise stated in this policy.

f) The maximum portfolio average maturity (measured with stated final
maturity) shall be 1.5 years.
X.

Investment of Proceeds from Debt Issuance
1. Investments of bond proceeds are restricted under bond covenants that may be
more restrictive than the investment parameters included in this policy. Bond
proceeds shall be invested in accordance with the parameters of this policy and
the applicable bond covenants and tax laws.
2. Funds from bond proceeds and amounts held in a bond payment reserve or
proceeds fund may be invested pursuant to ORS 294.052. Investments of bond
proceeds are typically not invested for resale and are maturity matched with
outflows. Consequently, bond proceeds and bond payment reserves within the
scope of ORS 294.052 are not subject to this policy’s liquidity risk constraints
within section IX (2) or maturity limits imposed by section VIII (5).

XI.

Guideline Measurement and Adherence
1. Guideline Measurement
Guideline measurements will use market value of investments.
2. Guideline Compliance:
a) If the portfolio falls outside of compliance with adopted investment policy
guidelines or is being managed inconsistently with this policy, the Investment
Officer shall bring the portfolio back into compliance in a prudent manner and
as soon as prudently feasible.
b) Violations of portfolio guidelines as a result of transactions; actions to bring the
portfolio back into compliance and; reasoning for actions taken to bring the
portfolio back into compliance shall be documented and reported to Home
Forward’s Audit and Finance Committee.
c) Due to fluctuations in the aggregate surplus funds balance, maximum
percentages for a particular issuer or investment type may be exceeded at a
point in time. Securities need not be liquidated to realign the portfolio; however,
consideration should be given to this matter when future purchases are made
to ensure that appropriate diversification is maintained.

XII.

Reporting and Disclosure
1. Compliance
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The Investment Officer shall prepare a report at least semi-annually that allows
Home Forward to ascertain whether investment activities during the reporting
period have conformed to the investment policy. The report should be provided to
Home Forward’s Audit and Finance Committee.
The report will include, at a minimum, the following:
•

A listing of all investments held during the reporting period showing: par/face
value; accounting book value; market value; type of investment; issuer; credit
ratings; and yield to maturity.

•

Average maturity of the portfolio at period-end.

•

Maturity distribution of the portfolio at period-end.

•

Average portfolio credit quality of the portfolio at period-end.

•

Average weighted yield to maturity (yield to worst if callable investments are
allowed) of the portfolio.

•

Distribution by type of investment.

•

Transactions since last report.

•

Distribution of transactions among financial counterparties such as
broker/dealers.

•

Violations of portfolio guidelines or non-compliance issues. This report should
also note actions (taken or planned) to bring the portfolio back into compliance.

2. Performance Standards/ Evaluation
At least annually, the Investment Officer shall report comparisons of investment
returns to relevant alternative investments and comparative Bond Indexes. The
benchmarks shall include:
•

Savings account interest rate

•

Oregon Short Term Fund

•

12 Month Treasury

•

18 Month Treasury

•

36 Month Treasury
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(NOTE: When comparing performance, all fees and expenses involved with
managing the portfolio shall be included in the computation of the portfolio's rate of
return.)

3. Marking to Market
The market value of the portfolio shall be calculated at least monthly and a
statement of the market value of the portfolio shall be issued at least quarterly.

4. Audits
Management shall establish an annual process of independent review by the
external auditor to assure compliance with internal controls. Such audit will include
tests deemed appropriate by the auditor.
XIII.

Policy Maintenance and Considerations
1. Review
The investment policy shall be reviewed at least annually to ensure its consistency
with the overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity and yield, and its
relevance to current law and financial and economic trends. The annual report
should also serve as a venue to suggest policies and improvements to the
investment program, and shall include an investment plan for the coming year.
2. Exemptions
Any investment held prior to the adoption of this policy shall be exempted from the
requirements of this policy. At maturity or liquidation, such monies shall be
reinvested as provided by this policy.
3. Policy Adoption and Amendments
This investment policy and any modifications to this policy must be formally
approved in writing by the Home Forward’s Audit and Finance Committee. This
policy must be submitted to the Oregon Short Term Fund (OSTF) Board for review
if:
This policy allows maturities beyond 18 months unless the funds are being
accumulated for a specific purpose, including future construction projects, and
upon approval of Home Forward, the maximum maturity date matches the
anticipated use of the funds (ORS 294.135(1)(b)).
And either: This policy has never been submitted to the OSTF Board for
comment;
Or:
Material changes have been made since the last review by the
OSTF Board.
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Changes in any ORS that do not materially alter the Home Forward investment
policy can be updated by the Investment Officer without formal board approval.
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APPENDIX A – Treasury
Process
Treasury Process

Home Forward

Investments
Treasury/Risk Manager

Chief Financial Officer

yes
Consults with CFO
and initiates
investments

Overnight
sweep of bank
account?

Monitors target
balances and
sweep rates
no

For LGIP and
other investments,
prepares
authorization form

Processing

Takes appropriate
steps to move
funds into
investment

Authorization Form

Authorization Form

Authorization Form

Reviews and
Approves
C7

Prepare and
maintain
investment log of
LGIP and other
investments

Supporting
Documentation
file
Investment log

Prepare journal
entries

Yardi

Journal Entry
Batch Report

E-File
3
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Treasury Process

Home Forward

Investments
Treasury/Risk Manager

Accounting Manager

3

Journal Entry
Batch Report

Reviews, approves
and posts to
General Ledger

Chief Financial Officer

Monthly,
reconciles LGIP
and Investments
GL accounts to
bank statements

C1

C3

file

Processing

Yardi

Prepares monthly
LGIP and
Investments report

LGIP and
Investments
Report

LGIP and
Investments
Report

LGIP and
Investments
Report

Reviews Report

C9

file
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Appendix B - Key Controls
Key Personnel (as of 9/1/13)
Executive Director - Steve Rudman
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) - Peter Beyer
Controller - John Linfesty
Manager of Treasury & Risk Management (MTRM) - Ann Brandt
Accounting Manager – Linda Uppinghouse
Financial Analytics & Reporting Manager (FARM) - Kathy Kodis
Board of Commissioners are listed on the HAP website at http://www.hapdx.org/about/board.html
Evaluation of Control Design
A. Cash
1

2

3

4

Activity
Authorization

Control Objective
Cash disbursements made are properly authorized and
related to legitimate purchases or expenses

Assertions
Existence / Occurrence

How could misstatements occur?
Checks for unauthorized purposes are issued.;
Checks are altered after signatures obtained.
Control Description
add multiple controls
C13 - (per wp 370.21) Accounting manager review and approves Check Preview report.
Authorization
All other forms of cash disbursements such as wire transfers, Existence / Occurrence
ACH, and check/debit cards are restricted to appropriate
personnel.
How could misstatements occur?
Disbursements for unauthorized purposes are issued.
Control Description
add multiple controls
C11 - Wire Transfers are approved by authorized management personnel.
Initiation and Recording
Cash disbursements are accurately recorded.
How could misstatements occur?
Cash disbursements are inaccurately or incompletely recorded.;
Cash disbursements are recorded in the improper period.;
Invoices are paid twice.;
Cash disbursements are not input for processing (e.g., manual checks, wire transfers).;
Control Description
add multiple controls
C11 (wp 370.21) - Accounting manager/Controller review and approve batch reports before posting to GL.
Processing
Accounts payable records updated for all transactions
Existence / Completeness
How could misstatements occur?
Wrong vendor accounts updated;
Batch posting process disrupted or runs incorrectly;
Cash disbursements are not recorded against the correct vendor or invoice.
Control Description
add multiple controls
C5 - Controller reviews and approves monthly bank reconciliations.
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5

Reporting

All cash transactions are properly recorded in the
appropriate general ledger accounts.

Existence / Completeness / Valuation / Accuracy

How could misstatements occur?
Manual journal entries posted to wrong accounts, wrong prior or for wrong amount;
Batch process for posting payments interrupted, not run, or run incorrectly
Control Description
add multiple controls
C5 - See A4 above.

B. Short-term Investments
Activity
Control Objective
1
Authorization
Proper authorization for approval of short-term investments.
How could misstatements occur?
Investments made in securities with risks of loss greater than tolerable levels for organization
Control Description
add multiple controls
C7 - CFO reviews and approves investment authorization form.
2
Initiation and Recording
Investment transactions are properly recorded in the
accounting system.
How could misstatements occur?
New investment is not recorded.;
Maturity of investment is not recorded;
Interest income not recorded for proper amount or period;
Incorrect dividend rate used.
Control Description
add multiple controls
C8 - Accounting manager reviews and approves journal entries.
3
Processing
Investment transactions are processed properly.
How could misstatements occur?
Investments are processed incorrectly.
Control Description
C8 - noted above in B.2.
4

Reporting

Assertions
Existence / Occurrence / Accuracy and Valuation

Existence / Completeness / Valuation and allocation / Cutoff /
Accuracy

Completeness / Valuation / Accuracy

add multiple controls
Investments are properly classified in the general ledger and
financial statements.

Existence / Completeness / Valuation / Accuracy

How could misstatements occur?
Investment accounts are misclassified or improperly presented.
Control Description
add multiple controls
C1 - (per wp 340.1) Monthly draft financial statements are reviewed by CFO, Controller, Accounting manager and Manager of Treasury and Risk
Management.

C. Debt
1

Activity
Authorization

Control Objective
All new debt agreements and debt extinguishments are
authorized in accordance with the entity's policies and
procedures

Assertions
Existence / Completeness / Rights and Obligations
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2

3

4

5

6

How could misstatements occur?
New debt committed to without proper authorization;
Debt paid off without proper authorization
Control Description
add multiple controls
C2 - Board of Commissioners approve projects and new debt.
Initiation and Recording
New debt, debt extinguishments and debt payment
Existence / Completeness / Rights and Obligations
transactions are initiated in accordance with the entity's
policies and procedures.
How could misstatements occur?
Journal entry or cash disbursement entry to split payment between interest and principal prepared incorrectly.;
Debt issue costs accounted for incorrectly.
Control Description
add multiple controls
C8 - Accounting manager reviews and approves journal entries.
Initiation and Recording
Debt transaction information is properly recorded in the
Completeness / Valuation
accounting system by fund.
How could misstatements occur?
Debt schedules set up based on preliminary or incomplete debt agreements (e.g., loan commitment);
Noncash debt items (ie. Issuance costs, premiums, discounts, deferred refunding) not considered.
Control Description
add multiple controls
C8 - noted above in C.2.
Processing
All proceeds from and payments made on debt obligations
Completeness / Valuation
are properly entered in the accounting system on both fund
level and government-wide level.
How could misstatements occur?
Refunded debt or crossover debt improperly accounted for.
Control Description
add multiple controls
C8 - noted above in C.2.
Reporting
All approved debt obligations and interest expense are
Valuation / Presentation and Disclosure
properly recorded in the appropriate general ledger accounts.
How could misstatements occur?
Wrong G/L account(s) used.;
Entry entered in the system twice.
Control Description
add multiple controls
C1 - (per wp 340.1) Monthly draft financial statements are reviewed by CFO, Controller, Accounting manager, and Manager of Treasury and Risk
Management.
Reporting
Covenants are reviewed on a monthly basis to ensure
Presentation and Disclosure
compliance.
How could misstatements occur?
Lack of compliance with debt covenants results in improper classification of debt in the financial statements and missing disclosures.;
Arbitrage liability is not calculated.
Control Description
add multiple controls
C1 - Property Accountant prepares quarterly debt covenant report which is reviewed by Controller, CFO, Asset Management Director and Director
of Real Estate Operations.
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APPENDIX C – List of Authorized Personnel

Governing Body
Home Forward 2013 Investment Policy
• The governing body shall be Home Forward’s Audit and Finance Committee.

Delegation of Authority
Home Forward 2013 Investment Policy
• The authority to manage investments is granted to the Chief Financial Officer, hereinafter
referred to as Investment Officer.

Home Forward Resolution 12-03-02: Authorizes Updating Bank Transaction Authority and
Signature Records for Home Forward Banking Relationships
•

The Board of Commissioners authorizes the Executive Director and the Chief Financial
Officer with joint responsibility to establish and delegate signature authority on all bank
checking accounts, savings accounts, safekeeping agreement, investment accounts, and
borrowing agreements on behalf of Home Forward.

•

The positions that currently possess the authority to conduct business associated with
investments, safekeeping and borrowing are:
Executive Director
Deputy Executive Director
Chief Financial Officer
Controller
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APPENDIX D – List of Authorized Brokers/Financial Institutions

List of Authorized Brokers
Wells Fargo Institutional Brokerage & Sales
111 Main Street, Suite 306
Vancouver WA 98660
Mark Walker, Vice President
306.759.4846
Bank of America Merrill Lynch Global Liquidity Investment Solutions
th
101 California Street, 14 Floor
San Francisco CA 94111
Jeff Mazer, CFA, Director
415.274.7424

List of Authorized Financial Institutions
Albina Community Bank
th
430 NW 10 Ave, Suite 101
Portland OR 97209
Joey Ingman, Vice President
503.288.8495
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
HOME FORWARD
1605 NE 45th, PORTLAND, OR 97213
July 16,
16, 2013
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT
Chair Harriet Cormack, Vice Chair David Widmark, Treasurer Jim Smith, Chair Emeritus
Lee Moore, Commissioners Jorge Guzman, David Kelleher, Benita Legarza, Brian Lessler
and Katie Such
STAFF PRESENT
Steve Rudman, Michael Buonocore, Peter Beyer, Rachel Devlin, Betty Domingeuz, Dena
Ford-Avery, Jaclyn Eaton, Rebecca Gabriel, Chris Hughson, Ben Loftis, Shelley Marchesi,
Kitty Miller, Rodger Moore, John Pettigrew, Melissa Richardson, Molly Rogers, Ian
Slingerland, Melissa Sonsalla, Celia Strauss, Julius Yu
COUNSEL PRESENT
Michelle DaRosa
Chair Harriet Cormack convened the meeting at 6:16 PM.
PUBLIC COMMENT
Deborah Olson offered public comment. Olson said she has been asked how to report
when a family with a voucher has too many people living in the unit. Dena Ford-Avery
spoke with Deborah separately to give her the number for the program abuse hotline.
MISSION MOMENT
Jaclyn Eaton introduced partners from the Short Term Rent Assistance (STRA) program.
The program continues to see success, and has served 2,638 households in the last year.
Eaton introduced Tiffany Tucker, program director for Insights Teen Parenting Program.
Insights has partnered with STRA for six years and is contracted to work with the program
for another four years.
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Tucker said the STRA program and its work with Insights is considered innovative on a
national level. She said there is not another program in the country that specifically serves
teen parent couples. Insights, a division of Janus Youth Program, is in its 34th year and
serves approximately 270 families annually. Insights provides child development programs
and child abuse prevention via in-home parent education. Because of STRA investment in
the program, Insights has served 89 young parent households, age 16-21. 77% are
female-headed, 23% are couples, and one was a single father.
Eaton also introduced Emily, one of the mothers who has been assisted through Insights
and STRA. Emily said receiving rental assistance through Home Forward and Insights has
been a great opportunity for her. The program helps many young struggling moms who
would be homeless without the assistance. She said it was scary not knowing if she
would be able to make rent from month to month, and now she knows she and her baby
will be safe and she can afford essentials like clothes and formula for the baby.
Commissioner Legarza asked how families exit the program. Tucker said she preferred
families have the option of exiting to permanent low-income housing, since for most of
these families the goals are education instead of working income. However, most families
move to rental apartments without subsidy.
CONSENT CALENDAR
RESOLUTION 1313- 0707- 01
Authorize an Amendment to the Kilmer Voorhees Contract for Litigation Regarding
Construction Defects at Ashcreek Commons
RESOLUTION 1313- 0707- 02
Authorize an Amendment to the Kilmer Voorhees Contract for Litigation Regarding
Construction Defects at Willow Tree Apartments
RESOLUTION 1313- 0707- 03
Authorize Recognition of Former Commissioner Julie Sterling
Rudman said the last item on the consent calendar was a resolution for Julie Sterling’s
family, to recognize her service. Sterling was a concerned citizen who volunteered at a
number of places, including the Housing Authority of Portland. Our annual Julie Sterling
award is given to an employee who is committed to serving residents. Sterling recently
passed away and we're recognizing her service with this resolution.
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Chair Cormack noted that the Executive Committee had reviewed the resolutions on the
Consent Calendar and recommended adoption. Vice Chair Widmark moved to adopt the
resolutions. Treasurer Smith seconded the motion.
The vote was as follows:
follows:
Chair Harriet Cormack – Aye
Vice Chair David Widmark – Aye
Treasurer Jim Smith – Aye
Chair Emeritus Lee Moore – Aye
Commissioner Jorge Guzman – Aye
Commissioner David Kelleher – Aye
Commissioner Benita Legarza – Aye
Commissioner Brian Lessler
Lessle r – Aye
Commissioner Katie Such – Aye
MEETING MINUTES
Minutes of June 18,
18, 2013
Treasurer Smith moved to adopt the minutes of the June 18, 2013, Board meeting.
Commissioner Legarza seconded the motion.
The vote was as follows:
Chair Harriet Cormack – Aye
Vice Chair David Widmark – Aye
Treasurer Jim Smith – Aye
Chair Emeritus Lee Moore – Aye
Commissioner Jorge Guzman – Aye
Commissioner David Kelleher – Aye
Commissioner Benita Legarza – Aye
Commissioner Brian Lessler – Aye
Commissioner Katie Such
Such – Abstain
REPORT
Executive Director’s Report
Executive Director Steve Rudman presented his report to the Board. He summarized the
evening’s agenda. The agenda included an agreement we were able to reach with
AFSCME and our trade organizations to deal with administrative and personnel cuts in
response to sequestration. There will be two agency closure days, and staff are asked to
consider taking a third voluntary furlough day. Rudman said he appreciates the dedication
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of the people who work for Home Forward. The budget will be presented in September,
as staff are currently working to resolve issues with HUD. On August 1st, the rent increase
for all residents and participants will go into effect, also as a result of sequestration.
Rudman said many people in our country are suffering because of these funding cuts.
The agenda also included a presentation on kindergarten registration results. Seven
percent of all kindergarteners in Multnomah County are Home Forward families, and
alignment with the schools systems has made a difference in registration results. Staff
would also present the next steps in the high rise preservation efforts, transferring property
to Home Forward Development Enterprises, a wholly-owned non-profit affiliate which will
have its first meeting later tonight. Lastly, staff would present the recommendation for the
CM/GC for the Multnomah County Health Clinic, which we are developing with Multnomah
County.
Rudman also said that at the opening of the waiting list for Stephens Creek Crossing, we
received over 3,031 applications for 122 apartments. He thanked Chair Cormack for
representing Home Forward at the Beech Street groundbreaking, and Commissioner
Kelleher for representing Home Forward at the Operation 305 event. Lastly, upcoming
events include VIG day at Camp Rosenbaum, the KaBoom playground raising at
Rockwood Station, and National Night Out. The Board will meet again in September.
REPORT
Kindergarten Registration Update
Rachel Devlin and Melissa Sonsalla introduced the topic. Devlin said as part of the
Families Forward initiative, Home Forward has aligned with non-profits and schools in the
community to focus on goals for school aged children. One of those goals was ensuring
kindergarten readiness. Kindergarten attendance is the best predictor on how any student
will be achieving by the fifth grade.
Because 7% of Multnomah County kindergarteners live in homes assisted by Home
Forward, we are in a unique position to reach out to these families and encourage them to
register for kindergarten on time. Early registration for kindergarten helps schools plan for
classroom sizes, and gives families opportunities to participate in summer programs that
help their children get ready for school. This year Home Forward worked with the six
school districts in Multnomah County to encourage families to register for kindergarten
through mailings and one-on-one conversations between our resident services staff and
residents in our public properties.
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Because we have a data share agreement with Portland Public Schools, we were able to
aggregate information by high school cluster to see if the outreach this year increased ontime enrollment for kindergarteners. Devlin reviewed the data included in the packet. She
said the data shows that Home Forward outreach to our families did make a difference in
kindergarten enrollment, and the impact was more substantial where resident services staff
did outreach at our properties.
Devlin said in August we will reach out to the other five school districts to pursue similar
data sharing agreements, and that a staff work group will continue to think about ways to
continue these impacts. We will also share this information more broadly with our
community partners.
Treasurer Smith asked if the enrollment data included privately run kindergartens. Devlin
said the enrollment data only includes Portland Public Schools, so if children enrolled
elsewhere, we may be missing that data. Chair Cormack congratulated staff on the
progress made with the enrollment initiative.
RESOLUTION 1313- 0707- 04
Authorize Issuance of Home Forward Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds for
Cathedral Gardens Apartments
Peter Beyer and Ben Loftis presented the resolution. Beyer said as reconsideration, staff
are asking to hold approval of this resolution until the September Board meeting. We are
in the process of selling St. John’s Woods to Vitus Group, and they are looking to obtain
tax exempt bond financing. We have made our services available to issue conduit bonds
on behalf of Vitus, and pass those bonds on to Vitus. Yesterday we learned that the
earliest that will take place is now October. We feel it is in the best interest to postpone
this approval until September.
Loftis said Vitus has recognized a change in bond rates, and is still going forward. We are
serving Vitus, and as they are the client, our role is to meet their schedule. Given the
information we’ve received from Vitus and after consulting bond council, we believe there
will be additional information for the Board in September.
Molly Rogers said the original contract with Vitus was for August, so they will need an
extension. Two more 60-day extensions will reach the end of the calendar year. Rogers
said we have been pleased with Vitus and their intention to invest in the property.
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The board discussed the timeline, and any contingency plan should Vitus end the sales
contract. No further action was taken.
RESOLUTION 1313- 0707- 05
Authorize Transfer of Property from Home Forward to Home Forward Development
Enterprises
Enterprises Corporation
Molly Rogers and Ben Loftis presented the resolution. Loftis said upon HUD’s approval of
disposition of Hollywood East, Northwest Towers, Sellwood Center and Gallagher Plaza,
we are moving forward with conversion of these properties to Project-Based Section 8. As
part of this process, Home Forward must dispose of these properties to another entity,
which will be wholly-owned affiliate Home Forward Development Enterprises (HFDE). This
resolution authorizes the executive director to transfer ownership and sell at a nominal fee
the four buildings to HFDE to achieve what’s required in the disposition process, and turn
on the Project-Based Section 8 subsidy as of September 1.
Chair Cormack said this has been discussed in a number of prior sessions, and this
resolution represents taking the planned action. Chair Emeritus Moore moved to adopt
the resolution. Vice Chair Widmark seconded the motion.
The vote was as follows:
Chair Harriet Cormack – Aye
Vice Chair David Widmark - Aye
Treasurer
Treasure r Jim Smith – Aye
Chair Emeritus Lee Moore – Aye
Commissioner Jorge Guzman - Aye
Commissioner David Kelleher – Aye
Commissioner Benita Legarza – Aye
Commissioner Brian Lessler – Aye
Commissioner Katie Such - Aye
RESOLUTION 1313- 0707- 06
Authorize Ratification
Ratif ication of Memorandum of Agreement between Home Forward and
AFSCME Council 75, Local 3135 and Building Trades
Rebecca Gabriel and Melissa Richardson presented the resolution to the Board. Gabriel
said this resolution will give Home Forward additional cost savings in personnel cost line
items. This is part of a bundle of personnel actions, including voluntary staff reduction,
agency furlough and voluntary furlough days, which will result in cost savings of around
$540,000.
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Gabriel said the memorandum was negotiated at a joint table with Home Forward,
AFSCME, and the trades. The joint nature of the bargaining was a testament to the
willingness of employees to come together and help us find creative solutions to deal with
sequestration. John Pettigrew, AFSCME Local 75 President, said members are pleased
with the results and that we were able to work together to solve the problem. 75% of
AFSCME members voted, and the results were 96 for, 1 against. Amongst trades
members, only three voted against.
Gabriel said the agreement is to close the agency for two furlough days, offer staff the
opportunity to take an additional voluntary furlough day, aggressively manage vacancies,
and hold on wage increases for both represented and non-represented employees. Home
Forward will also provide transparent information about personnel costs to the unions.
Chair Emeritus Moore asked if there was a plan for communication with the community
about the agency closure days. Gabriel said we are currently planning that, and that we
will thoroughly communicate with the public to let people know the agency will be closed.
Commissioner Such said from the management level down, this is not an insignificant
sacrifice for employees to make. She thanked staff for making that sacrifice.
Richardson introduced resolution 13-07-07. This resolution is in regards to contract
language openers built in with AFSCME in 2011. Home Forward chose not to open the
articles; AFSCME chose to open two. The first creates process to be agreed upon if we
lay off staff. There was also a commitment to meet with unions prior to involuntarily layoffs.
However, Richardson said bargaining around furloughs has allowed us to avoid significant
involuntarily layoffs. There is also an agreement to allow voluntarily laid off employees to be
on the recall list behind involuntary layoff employees.
Richardson said the second item is around job bidding and transfer language. This
addresses concerns regarding lateral transfers and the need to clarify locations during
recruiting for property management positions.
Vice Chair Widmark moved to adopt the resolution. Commissioner Legarza seconded the
motion.
The vote was as follows:
Chair Harriet Cormack – Aye
Vice Chair David Widmark - Aye
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Treasurer Jim Smith – Aye
Aye
Chair Emeritus Lee Moore – Aye
Commissioner Jorge Guzman - Aye
Commissioner David Kelleher – Aye
Commissioner Benita Legarza – Aye
Commissioner Brian Lessler – Aye
Commissioner Katie Such - Absent
RESOLUTION 1313- 0707- 07
Authorize Ratification of Tentative
Te ntative Collective Bargaining Agreement between Home
Forward and AFSCME Council 75, Local 3135
Commissioner Legarza moved to adopt the resolution. Vice Chair Widmark seconded the
motion.
The vote was as follows:
Chair Harriet Cormack – Aye
Vice Chair David
David Widmark - Aye
Treasurer Jim Smith – Aye
Chair Emeritus Lee Moore – Aye
Commissioner Jorge Guzman - Aye
Commissioner David Kelleher – Aye
Commissioner Benita Legarza – Aye
Commissioner Brian Lessler – Aye
Commissioner Katie Such - Absent
RESOLUTION
RESOLUTION 1313- 0707- 08
Authorize the Construction Manager/General Contractor for the Multnomah County
Health Clinic
Patrick Rhea and Berit Stevenson presented the resolution to the Board. Rhea introduced
Michael Bowers, Director of Facilities with Multnomah County. Rhea said we worked with
the County to put together a Request for Proposals to solicit a Construction
Manager/General Contractor (CM/GC) for the Multnomah County Health headquarters
building. Four contractors were selected for interviews, and after meeting with the County,
Home Forward and a lay person, the committee selected JE Dunn.
JE Dunn showed strengths in professionalism, as well as a recent history with the life
science building at OHSU, where they worked with multiple owners. They also showed
strengths in energy modeling, along with an equity, diversity and mentoring program. They
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were competitive on fee and preconstruction services and billing rates. They are ready to
sign a contract in agreement with Home Forward and the County.
Bowers said he has enjoyed the partnership working with Home Forward’s development
staff, and that the County is anxious to get started with schematic design, with plans to
break ground in 2014.
Chair Emeritus Moore said he was pleased to be asked to participate in this particular
project, and serving on the CM/GC selection committee. He was amazed to see the
quality of the proposals. The committee felt JE Dunn was the best fit for both the County
and for Home Forward, to manage this project to fruition.
Commissioner Lessler asked at what point JE Dunn would develop a GMP. Stevenson
said the practice is to arrive at a GMP closer to the end of the design process. Lessler
also asked how the County will avoid a fully designed project that may not meet the
budget. Bowers said the County will take a first shot at the construction estimate this fall
with the CM/GC on board. He anticipated discussions to begin in fall, so that the County
was prepared by April or May.
Chair Cormack asked if the Board’s action would be discussed with the County. Bowers
said the County has been prepped in anticipation of this meeting and this decision. He
said his attendance at the Board meeting is part of the County approving the contract.
Chair Emeritus Moore moved to adopt the resolution. Commissioner Lessler seconded
the motion.
The vote was as follows:
Chair Harriet Cormack – Aye
Vice Chair David Widmark - Aye
Treasurer Jim Smith – Aye
Chair Emeritus Lee Moore – Aye
Commissioner Jorge Guzman - Aye
Commissioner David
David Kelleher – Aye
Commissioner Benita Legarza – Aye
Commissioner Brian Lessler – Aye
Commissioner Katie Such - Aye
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ADJOURN
There being no further business, Chair Harriet Cormack adjourned the meeting at 8:02
PM.
EXECUTIVE SESSION
The Board of Commissioners of Home Forward did not meet in Executive Session
pursuant to ORS 192.660(2).
Attached to the Official Minutes of Home Forward are all Resolutions adopted at this
meeting, together with copies of memoranda and material submitted to the
Commissioners
Commissioners and considered by them when adopting the foregoing resolutions.
Celia M. Strauss
Recorder, on behalf of
Steven D. Rudman, Secretary
ADOPTED: September 17,
17, 2013
Attest:

Home Forward:

_______________________________
Steven D. Rudman, Secretary

_______________________________
Harriet Cormack, Chair
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MEMORANDUM

To:

From:

Board of Commissioners

Date:

September 11, 2013

Steve Rudman
Executive Director

Subject:

Executive Director’s Report

September Board Business
Our business this month is focused on financial matters: the results of our annual
audit and authorization for the final budget that will guide our activities this year.
•

Mission Moment: We had the good fortune to be awarded a second
KaBOOM! playground at one of our apartment communities. KaBOOM! is a
national non-profit that partners with corporate sponsors to build
playgrounds in underserved communities. This year’s build, which was
sponsored by the insurance provider Foresters, was at Rockwood Station.
A group of volunteers that included many Home Forward employees
gathered on July 20 to create a new playground and a gathering area that
includes a community garden. This is a terrific program that helps build
strong ties between residents and with neighbors who use the playground.

•

Annual Audit: Our auditors, Macias Gini and O’Connell LLP, will be
presenting the results of their annual review of our financial statements and
our compliance with federal programs. I’m very pleased to report that we
had no findings for the second year running, and the auditors will present
what is now called an “unmodified” opinion on our financial position. They
audited federal programs in accordance with the Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133 and found that we met all of the compliance
requirements on each major program they audited, which represent about
91 percent of our federal funding. This comes on the heels of passing an
audit of our Housing Choice Voucher program by HUD’s Office of the

Inspector General with no findings, which is quite unusual for HUD OIG
audits. The OIG audit results for our voucher program are even more
remarkable given the fact that the audit covered a period in which we
implemented our new rent reform program. Taken together, the audits
demonstrate the entire organization’s ability to meet a very high
performance bar.
I want to recognize Peter Beyer, our CFO, and John Linfesty, our Controller,
and their team for their outstanding work as stewards of our financial affairs.
A great deal of credit also goes to our operational teams, who see to it that
we comply with the many requirements that accompany our federal grants
while they continue to find innovative ways to fulfill our mission.
•

Revised and Final Budget: It is a great relief that all is now known about the
fairly complex set of factors that affect the budget for the fiscal year that is
almost half complete and we are ready to present a final budget for your
approval. In April, you passed a budget that was based on a funding
picture that we knew would change as the impact of the different factors,
such as sequestration, came into sharper focus.
In the final budget, operating revenue decreases from the initial budget from
$114.9 million to $112.8 million, and operating expenses decrease from
$120.7 million to $117.5 million. The agency’s operating cash, which we
call our funding flow, is now expected to break even. Peter Beyer’s memo
in your board packet does an excellent job outlining the different material
events in addition to sequestration that affected the final budget. We would
like to thank our residents, employees, labor groups, and funding partners
for their help in developing the strategies we have taken to reach this point.

Operations Update
• Summer Activities: Summer is a busy time at our apartment communities,
what with school out, National Night Out celebrations, and Camp
Rosenbaum. This year I was fortunate to be able to spend a few days at
Camp in the company of the 16 Home Forward employees who joined
colleagues from the National Guard and local police and fire departments to
help staff it. It’s a great experience on so many levels to see what a

2

difference this makes in the lives of our young residents and how meaningful
the work is for our employees, many of whom don’t have the chance to
work directly with residents in their regular jobs. This year we had 85 Home
Forward kids attend out of the 160 campers.
Working with community partners, our site staff coordinated a variety of
different summer activities for kids at our properties, and we provided paid,
full-time internships in maintenance for 10 high school students as part of
the SummerWorks program. SummerWorks is a public-private partnership
that helps young people of diverse backgrounds in the Portland community
gain life and job skills. In our case, it’s a way to mentor younger Home
Forward residents and help give them a start on their path to success. In
addition to these activities, staff throughout the agency staged more than 30
National Night Out celebrations in early August.
•

Stephens Creek Crossing: Construction progress and preparing for our first
residents continues at a rapid pace. We received 3,110 applications during
the week the waiting list was open in July, evidence that there is strong
demand for affordable housing in this part of our community. It was our
second online application process and the first for one of our properties. It
went without a hitch, and we received only 13 unduplicated paper
applications.

•

New Faces and Promotions: We’ve had several staff additions and
promotions over the last few months. Those you are most likely to work
with directly are Berit Stevenson, recently promoted to our Procurement and
Contracts manager; Rocco DeBrodt, a new project manager on our
development team; Erik Olson, a new asset manager; and Tonya Evans, our
new regional property manager for the east area. Tonya joins Felicia Poe,
who was promoted earlier this year and has responsibility for the west area
properties on Rodger Moore’s team. We welcome all of our new staff and
congratulate everyone who has been promoted as a result of their good
work.

3

Upcoming Events
Our next work session is on Wednesday, October 2 at 5 p.m. at our New Market
West offices. The October board meeting is on Tuesday, October 15 at 6:15 p.m.
in the Lawrence Williams Conference Room at the Hollywood East apartments.
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MEMORANDUM

To:

Board of Commissioners

Date:

From:

Peter Beyer, Chief Financial Officer

Subject:

John Linfesty, Controller

September 17, 2013
Authorize Approval of Fiscal
Year 2013 Annual Report and
Audit
Resolution 13-09-06

The Board of Commissioners is requested to accept and approve the FY 2013 Annual
Financial Report for the Period Ended March 31, 2013, the Single Audit Reports (OMB A133) and the Independent Auditors' Report to the Board of Commissioners (SAS 114).
ISSUE
Macias Gini and O’Connell LLP (MGO) is the audit firm engaged to audit Home Forward’s
basic financial statements and compliance with federal programs. On September 10,
2013, MGO met with Home Forward’s Audit and Finance committee and presented the
fiscal year 2013 audit results.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
• Total assets and deferred outflows of resources decreased $9.5 million from $355.2
million at March 31, 2012 to $345.7 million at March 31, 2013 primarily due to the
decrease in capital assets being depreciated of $10.0 million related to the sale of the
New Columbia Community Campus property.
• Total liabilities and deferred outflows of resources decreased $10.8 million from $142.1
million at March 31, 2012 to $131.3 million at March 31, 2013 primarily due to a
reduction of notes payable of $10.8 million related to the sale of the New Columbia
Community Campus property.
• Total operating revenues increased $4.0 million to $113.3 million primarily due to a
$1.6 million increase in HUD operating subsidies in FY 2013.
• Total operating expenses of $118.7 million decreased $0.6 million from the prior year.
This decrease is primarily due to a $4.1 million increase in housing assistance
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•

•

payments offset by a decrease impairment charge of $3.6 million and $1.6 million in
administration expenses.
Operating results for 2013 yielded an operating loss of $5.4 million compared to an
operating loss of $10.1 million for 2012. The operating loss in 2013 includes
depreciation expense of $8.2 million, a non-cash expense.
Net position grew $1.3 million to $214.5 million at March 31, 2013. This growth was
primarily due to capital contributions of $10.4 million offset by the operating loss of
$5.4 million and non-operating expenses of $3.7 million.

ANNUAL FIANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
MGO issued an unmodified opinion on Home Forward’s basic financial statements stating
that they present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Home Forward as
of March 31, 2013.
A qualified opinion has been issued by the Auditors relating to the Discretely Presented
Component Units (tax credit properties), as the financial statements of the Stephens Creek
Crossing North Limited Partnership and Stephens Creek Crossing South Limited
Partnership for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position for the year ended December 31, 2011, of the RAC
Housing Limited Partnership were unaudited. Audits were not required for these
partnerships and, as such, this requires the auditors to qualify their opinion for the fiscal
year.
AUDITORS' SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS (OMB CIRCULAR A-133 COMPLIANCE)
The independent auditors conduct certain compliance tests and issue an Audit of Federal
Awards in accordance with the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133.
The independent auditors provided an opinion that Home Forward complied, in all material
respects, with the compliance requirements on each major federal program.
AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS (SAS 114)
The auditors have issued a report that provides necessary communication on matters
related to the conduct of the audit. There were no additional recommendations included
in this report.
MOTION TO APPROVE
The Audit and Finance Committee recommends acceptance and approval of the FY 2013
Audited Financial Statements, Independent Auditors' OMB Circular A-133 Compliance
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Report and Independent Auditors' Report to the Audit and Finance Committee as
presented.
ATTACHMENTS
Home Forward Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended March 31, 2013
Home Forward Single Audit Reports (OMB A-133)
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Board of Commissioners (SAS 114)
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Members of the Board of Commissioners
of Home Forward
Portland, Oregon
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the business-type activity (primary
government) and the aggregate discretely presented component units of Home Forward, Oregon, as of and
for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, which collectively comprise Home Forward’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not
audit the financial statements of the aggregate discretely presented component units of Home Forward.
Those financial statements, except for the financial statements discussed in the “Basis for Qualified
Opinion on the Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units” paragraph, were audited by other
auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the aggregate discretely presented components units, except for the financial
statements discussed in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Aggregate Discretely Presented
Component Units” paragraph are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
Except for the financial statements as discussed in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Aggregate
Discretely Presented Component Units” paragraph, we conducted our audits in accordance with the
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the
aggregate discretely presented component units, except for the Gateway Park Limited Partnership, were
not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Aggregate Discretely Presented component Units
The financial statements of Stephens Creek Crossing North Limited Partnership and Stephens Creek
Crossing South Limited Partnership for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the year ended December 31, 2011 of the RAC
Housing Limited Partnership (Limited Partnerships) have not been audited, and we were not engaged to
audit the those financial statements as part of our audits of Home Forward’s basic financial statements.
However, the RAC Housing Limited Partnership’s financial statements for the period from inception at
March 19, 2008 to December 31, 2011 were audited by other auditors. Limited Partnerships’ financial
activities are included in Home Forward’s basic financial statements as discretely presented component
units and represent 5 percent, 2 percent, and 3 percent of the assets, net position and revenues/
contributions, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2012 and represent 15 percent, 16 percent,
and 17 percent of the assets, net position and revenues/contributions, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2011 of Home Forward’s aggregate discretely presented component units.
Qualified Opinion
In our opinion, based on the reports of other auditors, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units”
paragraph, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the aggregate discretely presented component units for Home Forward as of
March 31, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in financial position thereof for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Unmodified Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the business-type activity (primary government) for Home Forward, as of
March 31, 2013 and 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
Emphasis of a Matter
Change in Accounting Principle
As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective April 1, 2012, Home Forward adopted the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements and GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this
matter.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and schedules of funding progress, as listed in the accompanying table of
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Other Information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Home Forward’s basic financial statements as a whole. The other supplementary
information, as listed in the accompanying table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other
supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 16, 2013 on our consideration of Home Forward’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters for the year ended March 31, 2013. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Home Forward’s internal control over financial reporting or compliance.

_________________________________
Linda Hurley, Partner
for Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
Walnut Creek, California
September 16, 2013
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HOME FORWARD

This section of Home Forward’s annual financial report presents Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Home
Forward’s financial performance during the years ended on March 31, 2013 and 2012. Please read it in conjunction with
Home Forward’s basic financial statements that follow this section.
Overview of the Financial Statements
The financial statements consist of three parts – Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and supplementary information (required and other). Home Forward is a self-supporting entity and follows
enterprise fund reporting; accordingly, the financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Enterprise fund statements offer short and long-term financial information
about the activities and operations of Home Forward. Agency-wide statements report information about Home Forward as
a whole using accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies. While detailed sub-fund information
is not presented, separate accounts are maintained for each program to control and manage money for particular purposes
or to demonstrate that Home Forward is properly using specific appropriations and grants. The financial statements also
include a “Notes to Financial Statements” section that explains the information in the basic financial statements and
provides more detailed data. The Notes to Financial Statements are followed by a “Supplementary Information” section,
which presents the required supplementary information and other financial schedules of Home Forward’s operating units
and its individual properties.
As required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, the basic financial statements
include its blended component unit, New Columbia Community Campus Corporation (N4C), and its 20 discretely
presented component units. These discretely presented component units represent multi-family properties structured as
limited partnerships, which have Home Forward as the general partner with minimal ownership interest. The Statements
of Net Position includes all of Home Forward’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, regardless of when cash is received
or paid.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – For the Year Ended March 31, 2013
Significant Developments
New Columbia Community Campus Corporation - During fiscal year 2013, the building and land owned by New
Columbia Community Campus was sold to Portland Public Schools and the Boys and Girls Club of Portland. This
fulfilled the entity’s role under the New Markets Tax Credit program.
Scattered Site Sales – During fiscal year 2008, Home Forward submitted a disposition application to HUD for the sale of
158 public housing scattered sites properties. These properties are primarily single family residences and these sales are
part of the Home Forward’s Public Housing Preservation Initiative, with sale proceeds planned for reinvestment in current
and replacement low income housing units. During fiscal year 2013, the final unit was sold. The overall sales raised $26.0
million dollars in funding for the acquisition, development and rehabilitation of affordable housing units.
Transfer of Tax Credit Limited Partnership Interests - During fiscal year 2013, Home Forward acquired the remaining
interest in the Union Station A LIH Partnership and became sole owner of the Yards at Union Station, a 158 unit
affordable housing property. This tax credit partnership was originally formed by Home Forward under Section 42 of the
Internal Revenue Code.
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Stephens Creek Crossing – Work continued on Stephens Creek Crossing, Home Forward’s third HOPE VI project
awarded by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Originally awarded in May, 2011, this
initiative involves the demolition and replacement of Hillsdale Terrace, a 60 three-bedroom public housing unit building,
with 122 units of varying bedroom sizes. The new property will be known as Stephens Creek Crossing and will consist of
a community center owned by Home Forward as well as housing owned by two limited partnership entities, for which
Home Forward will be the general partner.
In addition to the 122 units of housing, there will be seven off-site homes, developed in partnership with Habitat for
Humanity, and the homes will be available for first-time homeowners. The redevelopment will incorporate sustainable
and green building features, a community garden/urban farm space, a community center for residents and neighbors, and
more open space and play area. The total development is estimated at $52.8 million and Home Forward anticipates
providing $9.3 million in proceeds to the project. $17.8 million has been expended as of March 31, 2013.
Beech Street development project - On January 15, 2013, Home Forward executed a Memorandum of Understanding
with Lifeworks NW, a local nonprofit that provides addiction and mental health services, for the construction of a 35 bed
treatment facility and a 32 unit permanent rental housing apartment on Beech Street in Portland, Oregon. The $7.4 million
treatment facility, to be owned and operated by Lifeworks NW, will utilize New Markets Tax Credits and the $10.4
million apartment, to be owned and operated by Home Forward, will utilize 9% low income housing tax credits (LIHTC).
St. John’s Woods – On January 15, 2013, Home Forward’s Board of Commissioners agreed to sell St. John’s Woods, a
124 unit affordable housing apartment complex, to Vitus Group for $8.25 million. The sale is expected to be completed in
the fall of 2013 and the property is classified as an asset available for sale.
Financial Highlights
Home Forward’s Statements of Net Position reflect modest growth in net assets during 2013. Specifically:


Total assets and deferred outflows of resources decreased $9.5 million from $355.2 million at March 31, 2012 to
$345.7 million at March 31, 2013 primarily due to the decrease in capital assets being depreciated of $10.0 million
related to the sale of the New Columbia Community Campus property.



Total liabilities and deferred outflows of resources decreased $10.8 million from $142.1 million at March 31, 2012 to
$131.3 million at March 31, 2013 primarily due to a reduction of notes payable of $10.8 million related to the sale of
the New Columbia Community Campus property.



Total operating revenues increased $4.0 million to $113.3 million primarily due to a $1.6 million increase in HUD
operating subsidies in FY 2013.



Total operating expenses of $118.7 million decreased $0.6 million from the prior year. This decrease is primarily due
to a $4.1 million increase in housing assistance payments offset by a decrease impairment charge of $3.6 million and
$1.6 million in administration expenses.



Operating results for 2013 yielded an operating loss of $5.4 million compared to an operating loss of $10.1 million for
2012. The operating loss in 2013 includes depreciation expense of $8.2 million, a non-cash expense.



Net position grew $1.3 million to $214.5 million at March 31, 2013. This growth was primarily due to capital
contributions of $10.4 million offset by the operating loss of $5.4 million and nonoperating expenses of $3.7 million.
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Condensed Statement of Net Position
The following tables show a summary of net position and net assets by type at March 31, 2013 and 2012:

(in thousands of dollars)

2013

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current assets
Non-current assets
Capital assets
Assets available for sale
Total assets before deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

$

42,078
165,397
132,775
3,264
343,514
2,186
345,700

2012

$

48,257
162,277
142,556
30
353,120
2,056
355,176

Increase
(Decrease)

$

(6,179)
3,120
(9,781)
3,234
(9,606)
130
(9,476)

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

14,506
114,558
2,186
131,250

21,854
118,142
2,056
142,052

(7,348)
(3,584)
130
(10,802)

Net Position
Net Investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

60,880
22,007
131,563
214,450

61,869
21,045
130,210
213,124

(989)
962
1,353
1,326

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position

$

345,700

$

355,176

$

(9,476)

Year-end Financial Position
Current assets decreased in 2013 from $48.3 million to $42.1 million. Cash and cash equivalents decreased $2.8 million
and investments decreased $5.1 million with proceeds loaned to the Stephens Creek Crossing project. This decrease was
offset by an increase in Accounts Receivable of $1.9 million primarily due to an increase in amounts owed by HUD.
Non-current assets (other than capital assets) increased $3.1 million, mainly due to the increase in investments in
partnership of $10.2 million for the Stephens Creek Crossing partnerships offset by a $5.6 million reduction in notes
receivable – partnership for Union Station, formerly a tax credit partnership with full ownership acquired by Home
Forward during fiscal year 2013.
Capital assets decreased $9.8 million. This decrease is mainly due to the New Columbia Community Campus sale of
property and land related to Portland Public Schools and the Boys and Girls Club of Portland.
Assets available for sale increased $3.2 million in 2013 due to the pending sale of St. John’s Woods, a 124 unit affordable
housing apartment complex.
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Current liabilities decreased $7.3 million during the year, again primarily related to the retirement of debt associated with
the sale of property of New Columbia Community Campus.
Non-current liabilities decreased by $3.6 million during 2013. This decrease is primarily due to the $5.6 million reduction
in bonds payable related to the Union Station purchase.
Net position at March 31, 2013 was $214.5 million, a modest increase of $1.3 million over 2012. This increase mainly
resulted from $10.4 million in capital contributions from HUD, the City of Portland, Multnomah County and other
sources in support of development activities offset by a fiscal year 2013 loss before capital contributions of $9.1 million.
Notes and Bonds Payable
At March 31, 2013, Home Forward had $75.2 million of notes and bonds payable outstanding (excluding bonds payable–
partnerships), a decrease of $5.5 million over the prior year. More detailed information about Home Forward’s capital
debt is presented in Notes 11 and 12 to the financial statements.

(in thousands of dollars)

2013

Increase
(Decrease)

2012

Current portion of notes and bonds payable
Notes payable
Bonds payable

$

4,146
48,084
22,928

$

10,754
51,508
18,424

$

(6,608)
(3,424)
4,504

Total notes and bonds payable

$

75,158

$

80,686

$

(5,528)

There were no changes in Home Forward’s credit rating during the year.

Home Forward Board of Commissioners
September 2013

78

7

Draft for Home Forward
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
Board of Commissioners
Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012
HOME FORWARD

Results of Operation – Year ended March 31, 2013 compared to Year Ended March 31, 2012
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2013

(in thousands of dollars)
Operating revenues
Rental revenue
HUD subsidies and grants
ARRA revenue
Development fee revenue
State, local and other grants
Other

$

Operating expenses
Housing assistance payments
Administration
Tenant services
Utilities
Maintenance
Depreciation
Other
Impairment charge

$

71,886
19,467
4,350
4,265
9,097
8,193
1,420
118,678

Operating income/(loss)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment income
Interest expense
Investment in partnership valuation charge
Amortization
Loss on sale of capital assets
Gain on sale of assets available for sale
Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions
Capital Contributions
HUD non-operating contributions
Other non-operating contributions
ARRA non-operating contributions
Increase in net position
Net position - Beginning of year
Net position - End of year
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14,159
91,281
118
953
4,620
2,138
113,269

2012

$

14,077
89,691
365
95
3,741
1,284
109,253

Increase
(Decrease)
$

82
1,590
(247)
858
879
854
4,016

67,786
21,028
4,174
4,182
9,274
8,132
1,101
3,641
119,318

4,100
(1,561)
176
83
(177)
61
319
(3,641)
(640)

(5,409)

(10,065)

4,656

606
(2,868)
3
(315)
(1,185)
112
(3,647)

563
(3,381)
(37)
(575)
(1,378)
1,797
(3,011)

43
513
40
260
193
(1,685)
(636)

(9,056)

(13,076)

4,020

9,336
1,045
10,381

2,889
15,724
3,278
21,891

6,447
(14,679)
(3,278)
(11,510)

1,325

8,815

(7,490)

213,124

204,309

214,449

$

213,124

8,815
$

1,325
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Fiscal year 2013 generated an operating loss of $5.4 million. This result is a $4.7 million improvement in operating
income from fiscal year 2012. Total operating revenues were $4.0 million higher while operating expenses decreased by
$0.6 million.
Operating revenues of $113.3 million increased $4.0 million from fiscal year 2012. HUD housing assistance subsidies
increased $3.9 million while public housing operating subsidies decreased $1.9 million. Additionally, there was a $0.9
million increase in development fee revenue, mainly due to fees earned for Stephens Creek Crossing, a $0.9 Million
increase in state, local and other grants due to an increase in rent assistance grants from the City of Portland and a $0.9
million increase in other revenue due to improved collection of general partner fees. These increases were offset by a $0.4
million decrease in HUD grants for relocation work associated with the Stephens Creek Crossing HOPE VI project and a
reduction in non-capitalized work eligible for HUD capital grant funds.
Operating expenses decreased $0.6 million to $118.7 million in 2013. This was mainly due to an increase in housing
assistance payments of $4.1 million offset by decreases in impairment of capital assets of $3.6 million and administration
expenses of $1.6 million.
Nonoperating revenues (expenses) netted $3.6 million of expenses in 2013, an increase of $0.6 million. This was due
mainly to$1.7 million lower gain on sale of assets as the final scattered site sold in 2013 compared to 18 units sold in 2012
offset by a reduction of $0.5 million in interest expense.
During 2013, capital contributions from HUD and other sources totaled $10.3 million with funds mainly supporting the
Stephens Creek Crossing HOPE VI project.
*****
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – For the Year Ended March 31, 2012
Significant Developments
Home Forward, a new name for the Housing Authority of Portland – On May 18, 2011, the Housing Authority of
Portland changed its legal name to Home Forward. This new name and accompanying new logo allow for a better
understanding of the goals of the organization. By providing the essentials of a home, Home Forward enables individuals
and families of Multnomah County to move forward in life by providing hope, access, and the potential for a better
tomorrow. The Housing Authority of Portland is now a registered business name of Home Forward.
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 funding - The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009
(ARRA) was signed into law on February 17, 2009. The Recovery Act includes $13.6 billion for projects and programs
administered by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). In prior years, Home Forward received and
expended $6.3 million of additional capital grant funds and $0.2 million in competitive public housing ARRA funding for
ADA improvements. In 2011, Home Forward was awarded $3.3 million of competitive ARRA funding from HUD for gap
financing for the Bud Clark Commons project (see below) and these funds were expended in fiscal year 2012.
Home Forward is serving as a sub-grantee for the City of Portland for the Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Rehousing
Program (HPRP). HPRP is funded by HUD’s ARRA program. The pass-through award from the City of Portland to
Home Forward is approximately $4.0 million. In fiscal year 2012, Home Forward expended $0.4 million in HPRP funds
bringing grant utilization-to-date to $3.9 million.
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RAC Housing Limited Partnership (Bud Clark Commons) – Home Forward, in collaboration with the City of Portland,
Portland Housing Bureau and Transition Projects, Inc., has built an innovative facility in downtown Portland supporting
the City of Portland’s 10 year plan to end homelessness. Bud Clark Commons combines a day center that can serve up to
200 people, a 90-bed men’s shelter providing sleeping and living areas, and 130 affordable studio units. This $47 million
project was completed in July 2011. The facility is comprised of two units, the shelter unit is owned by Home Forward
and the housing unit is owned by RAC Housing Limited Partnership. Home Forward is the general partner.
Scattered Site Sales – During fiscal year 2008, Home Forward submitted a disposition application to HUD for the sale of
158 public housing scattered sites properties. These properties are primarily single family residences and these sales are
part of the Home Forward’s Public Housing Preservation Initiative, with sale proceeds planned for reinvestment in current
and replacement low income housing units. During fiscal year 2012, 18 units were sold and 7 units were placed back into
service. There is one remaining unit of the original 158 that is anticipated to be sold in April 2013.
Transfer of Tax Credit Limited Partnership Interests - During fiscal year 2012, Home Forward acquired the remaining
interest in the Kelly Place Limited Partnership, and became sole owner of this low income housing properties. This tax
credit partnership was originally formed by Home Forward under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.
Stephens Creek Crossing – On May 23, 2011, Home Forward was awarded an $18.5 million HOPE VI Revitalization
Grant from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to implement a comprehensive
redevelopment of the Hillsdale Terrace public housing property. Hillsdale Terrace, comprised of 60 three-bedroom public
housing units, will be demolished and replaced with 122 units of varying bedroom sizes. The new property will be known
as Stephens Creek Crossing and will consist of a community center owned by Home Forward as well as housing owned
by two limited partnership entities, for which Home Forward will be the general partner.
In addition to the 122 units of housing, Stephens Creek Crossing, there will be seven off-site homes, developed in
partnership with Habitat for Humanity, and the homes will be available for first-time homeowners. The redevelopment
will incorporate sustainable and green building features, a community garden/urban farm space, a community center for
residents and neighbors, and more open space and play area. The total development is estimated at $47.3 million and
Home Forward anticipates providing $7.0 million in proceeds to the project. $3.3 million has been expended as of
March 31, 2012.
Financial Highlights
Home Forward’s Statements of Net Position continued to reflect favorable liquidity and growth in net assets during 2012.
Specifically:


Total assets and deferred outflows of resources decreased $10.8 million from $366.0 million at March 31, 2011 to
$355.2 million at March 31, 2012 primarily due to the decrease in notes receivable – partnership of $24.1 million,
offset by an increase in investments in partnerships of $13.1 million.



Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources decreased $19.6 million from $161.7 million at March 31, 2011 to
$142.1 million at March 31, 2012 primarily due to a reduction of bonds payable – partnerships of $24.1 million, offset
by an increase in notes payable of $2.8 million.



Total operating revenues decreased $2.9 million to $109.3 million primarily due to a $3.8 million decrease in
development fee revenue in FY 2012 and a decrease of ARRA revenue of $2.4 million. This was offset by an increase
in HUD grants of $1.7 million and an increase in state, local and other grants of $1.7 million.
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Total operating expenses of $119.3 million increased $8.6 million from the prior year. The increase is primarily due to
$2.2 million increase in housing assistance payments, and increases in two non-cash expenses - an impairment charge
of $3.6 million and $0.9 in higher depreciation expense.



Operating results for 2012 yielded an operating loss of $10.1 million compared to operating income of $1.5 million
for 2011. The operating loss in 2012 includes depreciation expense of $8.1 million and an impairment charge of $3.6
million, both non-cash expenses.



Net position grew $8.8 million to $213.1 million at March 31, 2012. This growth was primarily due to capital
contributions of $21.9 million, of which $14.7 million related to funds used for the completion of the Bud Clark
Commons, offset by the operating loss of $10.1 million.

Condensed Statement of Net Position
The following tables show a summary of net position and net assets by type at March 31, 2012 and 2011:
(in thousands of dollars)
2012
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current assets
Non-current assets
Capital assets
Assets available for sale
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

$

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

2011
(reclassified)

Increase
(Decrease)

48,257
162,277
142,556
30
353,120
2,056
$ 355,176

$

64,374
155,719
143,828
787
364,708
1,287
$ 365,995

$ (16,117)
6,558
(1,272)
(757)
(11,588)
769
$ (10,819)

$

$

34,382
126,017
160,399
1,287
161,686

$ (12,528)
(7,875)
(20,403)
769
(19,634)

21,854
118,142
139,996
2,056
142,052

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

61,869
21,045
130,210

66,546
26,777
110,986

(4,677)
(5,732)
19,224

Total Net Position

213,124

204,309

8,815

$ 355,176

$ 365,995

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position

$ (10,819)

Year-end Financial Position
Current assets decreased in 2012 from $64.4 million to $48.3 million. Current portion of notes receivable decreased $23.2
million due to the repayment of construction financing provided to the RAC Housing Limited Partnership. Net accounts
receivable decreased $4.2 million due to collection of outstanding draws from funders for the Bud Clark Commons
project. Cash and cash equivalents (including restricted categories) increased by $10.3 million, mainly due to the sale of
long term investments during the current year.
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Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012
HOME FORWARD

Non-current assets increased $6.6 million, mainly due to the increase in investments in partnership of $13.1 million for the
RAC Housing Limited Partnership, the $11.5 million increase in notes and accrued interest receivable related to the
Martha Washington and Bud Clark Commons projects, offset by a $5.3 million decrease in Due from Partnerships, net,
and an $11.2 million reduction of long term investments.
Capital assets decreased $1.2 million. The decrease includes the depreciation of $8.1 million, the disposal of Hillsdale
Terrace property of $2.8 million, and the $3.6 million impairment of two affordable housing properties requiring repairs
for structural defects. Offsetting the decrease were increases in public housing capital assets of $3.2 million, $3.5 million
related to the Bud Clark Commons shelter, a $1.5 million rehab at Ainsworth Court and the $1.2 million of capital assets
from Kelly Place acquired at the end of the tax compliance period under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.
Additionally, work in progress at Stephens Creek Crossing totaled $1.3 million and will be transferred to two tax credit
partnerships during fiscal year 2013.
Assets available for sale decreased $0.8 million in 2012. During 2012, Home Forward sold 18 scattered sites properties
and placed 7 scattered sites, previously considered as assets available for sale, back into service.
Current liabilities decreased $12.5 million during the year, primarily due to the $23.2 million decrease in current portion
of bonds payable – partnership for the retirement of RAC Housing Limited Partnership construction bonds payable in
fiscal year 2012. Offsetting this decrease, the current portion of notes payable increased $8.9 million primarily due to the
$8.8 million note due in October 2012 related to N4C.
Non-current liabilities decreased by $7.9 million during 2012. This decrease is primarily the result of the reclassification
to current liabilities of $8.8 million of notes payable for N4C offset by the issuance of $2.4 million of new notes issued for
Ainsworth Court and Madrona Apartments.
Net assets at March 31, 2012 were $213.1 million, an increase of $8.8 million over 2011. This increase mainly resulted
from $21.9 million in capital contributions from HUD, the City of Portland, Multnomah County and other sources in
support of development activities offset by fiscal year 2012 loss before capital contributions of $13.1 million.
Notes and Bonds Payable
At March 31, 2012, Home Forward had $80.7 million of notes and bonds payable outstanding (excluding notes payable–
partnerships), an increase of $1.8 million over the prior year. More detailed information about Home Forward’s capital
debt is presented in Notes 11 and 12 to the financial statements.

(in thousands of dollars)

2011
(reclassified)

2012

Increase
(Decrease)

Current portion of notes and bonds payable
Notes payable
Bonds payable

$

10,754
51,508
18,424

$

1,854
57,553
19,460

$

8,900
(6,045)
(1,036)

Total notes and bonds payable

$

80,686

$

78,867

$

1,819

There were no changes in Home Forward’s credit rating during the year.
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Results of Operation – Year ended March 31, 2012 compared to Year Ended March 31, 2011
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
(in thousands of dollars)
Operating revenues
Rental revenue
HUD subsidies and grants
ARRA revenue
Development fee revenue
State, local and other grants
Other

2012
$

Operating expenses
Housing assistance payments
Administration
Tenant services
Utilities
Maintenance
Depreciation
Other
Impairment charge

14,077
89,691
365
95
3,741
1,284
109,253

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment income
Interest expense
Investment in partnership valuation charge
Amortization
Loss on sale of capital assets
Gain on sale of assets available for sale
Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions
Capital Contributions
HUD non-operating contributions
Other non-operating contributions
ARRA non-operating contributions

Net Position—Beginning of year (as restated)
$

13,596
87,975
2,780
3,929
2,026
1,861
112,167

Increase
(Decrease)
$

65,583
20,352
3,544
4,120
8,995
7,211
876
110,681

481
1,716
(2,415)
(3,834)
1,715
(577)
(2,914)
2,203
676
630
62
279
921
225
3,641
8,637

(10,065)

1,486

(11,551)

563
(3,381)
(37)
(575)
(1,378)
1,797
(3,011)

547
(3,469)
(386)
(252)
(595)
4,656
501

16
88
349
(323)
(783)
(2,859)
(3,512)

(13,076)

1,987

(15,063)

2,889
15,724
3,278
21,891

4,535
12,047
1,918
18,500

(1,646)
3,677
1,360
3,391

8,815

20,487

(11,672)

204,309

183,822

20,487

Increase in Net Position
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$

67,786
21,028
4,174
4,182
9,274
8,132
1,101
3,641
119,318

Operating income/(loss)

Net Position—End of year

2011
(restated)

213,124

$

204,309

$

8,815
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Fiscal year 2012 generated an operating loss of $10.1 million. This result is an $11.6 million decrease in operating income
from fiscal year 2011. Total operating revenues were lower by $2.9 million while operating expenses increased by $8.6
million.
Operating revenues of $109.3 million decreased $2.9 million from fiscal year 2011. Development fee revenue decreased
$3.8 million due to activity associated with the Resource Access Center project earned in 2011. Additionally, there was a
$2.4 million decrease in ARRA revenue, as that program was nearly completed by the middle of 2012. These decreases
were offset by a $1.7 million increase in State, local and other grants, to support local rent assistance programs and $1.7
million increase in HUD grants to support shelter plus care program and the Hope VI redevelopment at Stephens Creek
Crossing.
Operating expenses increased $8.6 million to $119.3 million in 2012. This was mainly due to $3.6 million impairment of
capital assets due to identified structural defects. These defects are being repaired, and that work will be completed during
2013. Additionally, housing assistance payments increased $2.2 million. Also, depreciation expense increased $0.9
million related to capital improvements at various public and affordable housing properties.
Nonoperating revenues (expenses) netted $3.0 million of expenses in 2012, a decrease of $3.5 million. This was due
mainly to lower gain on sale of assets as 18 scattered sites sold in 2012 compared to 26 sold in 2011 and a $1.4 million
loss on sale and disposal of capital assets, which was $0.8 million worse than in 2011.
During 2012, capital contributions from HUD and ARRA non-operating funds (also from HUD) were $6.2 million for
2012 compared to $6.5 million in 2011. Other capital contributions of $15.7 million included $11.4 million in funds from
the City of Portland for the RAC Housing Limited Partnership project and $3.5 million of funds for the Bud Clark
Commons project.
*****
Forward Looking Information
On March 1, 2013, Federal Budget Sequestration when into effect requiring 5.0% spending cuts of federal programs for
federal fiscal year 2013. As a result of the sequestration, Home Forward is receiving approximately $5.3 million less in
federal funding. Home Forward is taking the following steps in FY 2014 to balance the funding short fall:


Rent increases for public housing residents and Section 8 participants effective August 1, 2013.



No staff pay increase and staff furlough day.



A voluntary lay-off and retirement program.



Reductions in administration costs

In addition to these steps, Home Forward has stopped drawing from the Section 8 Voucher waiting list. Home Forward is
anticipating this stoppage to continue throughout FY 2014.
In April 2013, New Columbia Community Campus changed its name to Home Forward Development Enterprises and
changed its primary purpose to support Home Forward to allow development, redevelopment, operation and maintenance
of one or more housing projects (as defined in ORS 456.065) in the state of Oregon as opposed to only the New Columbia
neighborhood.
In August 2013, Home Forward submitted an application for 9% low income housing tax credits for Sellwood Center
apartments.
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HOME FORWARD

In September 2013, Home Forward converted four buildings from public housing funding to project based section 8
funding and transferred the buildings to Home Forward Development Enterprises. This is the first phase of Home
Forward’s 85 Stories, an initiative to preserve over 1,200 units affordable housing at ten buildings in the greater Portland
area. Home Forward management is evaluating the opportunities to preserve the remaining six additional public housing
high rise buildings identified as needing major capital investments.
*****
Contact Information
This annual financial report is designed to provide Oregon citizens and taxpayers, and our customers, clients, investors
and creditors, with a general overview of Home Forward’s finances, and to demonstrate Home Forward’s accountability
for the appropriations and grants that it receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
request for additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, Home Forward, 135 S.W.
Ash Street, Portland, Oregon 97204 or emailed to info@homeforward.org.
*****
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
As of March 31, 2013 and 2012 (with Discretely Presented Component Units as of December 31, 2012 and 2011)
Board of Commissioners
HOME FORWARD

HOME
FORWARD
March 31,
2013

DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS

March 31,
2012

December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents- Restricted
Investments
Investments- Restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Current portion of notes receivable—partnerships

$

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Investments- Restricted
Due from partnerships, net
Notes and accrued interest receivable
Notes receivable—partnerships
Deferred charges—net
Investments in partnerships
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE
TOTAL ASSETS BEFORE DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

$

26,432,181
7,604,129
6,366,629
871,526
803,933

29,219,781
7,574,750
5,083,940
4,474,541
943,968
960,290

5,269,524
11,932,090
1,310,969
1,563,301
212,259
-

42,078,398

48,257,270

20,288,143

19,146,913

2,039,707
1,631,704
96,168,717
40,082,956
1,702,492
23,771,063
24,223,712
108,550,668
298,171,019

1,533,595
589,376
89,372,619
45,052,668
1,956,639
23,771,793
23,573,229
118,982,787
304,832,706

1,144,905
382,624
3,463,506
24,229,709
223,714,115
252,934,859

1,144,905
382,624
3,587,049
13,927,763
236,806,919
255,849,260

3,264,295

29,756

-

-

343,513,712

353,119,732

273,223,002

274,996,173

2,186,084

2,056,476

-

-

345,699,796

$

$

355,176,208

$

273,223,002

$

$

5,614,062
11,498,011
1,311,983
427,891
294,966
-

274,996,173
(continued)
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As of March 31, 2013 and 2012 (with Discretely Presented Component Units as of December 31, 2012 and 2011)
Board of Commissioners
HOME FORWARD

HOME
FORWARD
March 31,
2013

DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS

March 31,
2012

December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Line of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable, payable from restricted assets
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deposits, payable from restricted assets
Current portion of bonds payable—partnerships
Current portion of notes payable
Current portion of bonds payable

$

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Notes payable - long-term
Bonds payable
Bonds payable—partnerships
Accrued interest - long-term
Other liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
NET POSITION:
Net investments in capital assets
Restricted
Real estate sale proceeds
Residual receipts
Funds held in trust and debt amortization funds
Unused PILOT funds

Unrestricted (deficit)

1,351,023
2,517,844
467,606
2,492,324
1,053,475
1,672,603
803,933
2,847,236
1,299,464
14,505,508

$

351,713
2,928,906
442,127
2,590,384
2,179,461
1,646,349
960,290
9,784,364
970,000
21,853,594

$

908,087
531,643
7,787,602
180,238
958,006
1,886,569
12,252,145

$

563,827
555,649
8,379,532
172,781
890,213
21,592,069
32,154,071

48,083,766
22,928,316
40,082,956
3,067,076
396,600
114,558,714

51,508,439
18,424,349
45,052,668
2,885,889
270,833
118,142,178

181,197,853
6,709,278
2,400,006
190,307,137

174,877,297
6,127,284
1,249,526
182,254,107

2,186,084

2,056,476

-

-

131,250,306

142,052,248

202,559,282

214,408,178

60,879,893

61,868,864

64,859,402

54,265,317

13,509,050
132,441
8,205,654
159,916
22,007,061

13,835,394
132,291
6,867,884
209,834
21,045,403

13,440,894
13,440,894

12,970,393
12,970,393

131,562,536

130,209,693

(7,636,576)

(6,647,715)

TOTAL NET POSITON

$

214,449,490

$

213,123,960

$

70,663,720

$

60,587,995

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

$

345,699,796

$

355,176,208

$

273,223,002

$

274,996,173
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
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Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 (with Discretely Presented Component Units Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011)

HOME FORWARD

HOME
FORWARD
March 31,
2013
OPERATING REVENUES:
Dwelling rental
Non-dwelling rental
HUD operating subsidies
HUD grants
ARRA revenue
Development fee revenue
State, local and other grants
Other

$

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Housing assistance payments
Administration
Tenant services
Utilities
Maintenance
Depreciation
General and other
Impairment loss

DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS

March 31,
2012

12,473,103
1,686,003
84,886,414
6,394,836
117,860
952,901
4,620,197
2,137,581
113,268,895

$

12,285,314
1,792,125
82,849,169
6,842,403
364,511
95,106
3,740,996
1,283,643
109,253,267

December 31,
2012
$

14,676,688
482,407
2,209,902
1,308,789
18,677,786

December 31,
2011
$

14,353,158
424,449
1,662,553
1,337,321
17,777,481

71,885,606
19,466,907
4,350,175
4,265,433
9,096,882
8,193,281
1,419,546
-

67,785,556
21,027,557
4,174,198
4,182,437
9,273,542
8,132,459
1,101,422
3,641,253

63,595
5,647,081
343,284
2,465,843
3,251,687
12,279,225
935,501
-

56,160
5,542,142
360,527
2,349,121
3,116,567
11,494,357
771,490
-

118,677,830

119,318,424

24,986,216

23,690,364

OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS)

(5,408,935)

(10,065,157)

(6,308,430)

(5,912,883)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income
Interest expense
Investment in partnership valuation charge
Change in derivative contract valuation
Amortization
Loss on sale and disposal of capital assets
Gain on sale of assets available for sale

605,986
(2,867,749)
2,910
(314,659)
(1,185,104)
112,179

562,859
(3,381,357)
(37,052)
(575,033)
(1,377,512)
1,797,214

120,829
(4,571,974)
(160,672)
(196,835)
(49,322)
-

136,207
(4,812,145)
(748,970)
(624,731)
(103,637)
-

(3,646,437)

(3,010,881)

(4,857,974)

(6,153,276)

(9,055,372)

(13,076,038)

(11,166,404)

(12,066,159)

9,335,711
1,045,191
10,380,902

2,888,673
15,723,830
3,278,370
21,890,873

21,242,129
21,242,129

7,830,655
7,830,655

1,325,530

8,814,835

10,075,725

(4,235,504)

213,123,960

204,309,125

60,587,995

64,823,499

INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
HUD nonoperating contributions
Other nonoperating contributions
ARRA nonoperating contributions
Partner contributions

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION—Beginning of year
$

NET POSITION—End of year

214,449,490

$

213,123,960

$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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HOME FORWARD
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

HOME FORWARD
March 31,
2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from HUD grants
Receipts from state, local and other grants
Receipts from tenants and landlords
Receipts from developer fees
Receipts from others
Payments to landlords
Payments to and on behalf of employees
Payments to vendors, contractors and others

$

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITES:
Proceeds from line of credit
Payments on line of credit
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable
Proceeds from issuance of bonds payable
Proceeds from issuance of bonds payable - partnership
Interest paid on notes and bonds payable
Principal payments on notes payable
Principal payments on bonds payable
Principal payments on bonds payable—partnerships
Change in restricted cash
Changes in restricted investments
HUD capital and other nonoperating contributions
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Improvements of assets available for sale
Proceeds from the sale of assets available for sale

84,754,582
4,605,846
14,180,526
4,337,239
5,146,723
(71,993,791)
(19,601,710)
(19,263,825)
2,165,590

March 31,
2012
$

87,224,942
3,434,367
14,140,369
1,921,587
4,891,975
(67,756,244)
(20,376,455)
(19,237,400)
4,243,141

29,587,678
(28,588,368)
713,995
4,478,387
1,214,221
(2,367,559)
(9,843,779)
(5,043,558)
(960,290)
461,362
(33,432)
10,445,957
(9,291,453)
8,819,444
141,935
(265,460)

4,938,625
(4,586,912)
19,484,545
(2,783,787)
(16,677,888)
(1,000,000)
(24,076,424)
(297,764)
461,920
26,219,886
(7,383,450)
2,355,882
(3,345,367)

5,083,940
(267,776)
(11,420,706)
(1,214,221)
181,964
960,290
318,358
730
1,669,692
(4,687,729)

(998,202)
11,666,749
(869,899)
(15,517,247)
754,638
24,076,424
5,148,903
(16,318,200)
1,534,270
9,477,436

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

(2,787,600)

10,375,210

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of year

29,219,781

18,844,571

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from maturity of investments
Change in deferred charges
Issuance of notes receivable
Issuance of notes receivable—partnerships
Collections on notes receivable
Collections on notes receivable—partnerships
Change in due from partnerships, net
Change in investments in partnerships, net
Investment income

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of year

$

26,432,181

$

29,219,781
(continued)
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HOME FORWARD
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

HOME FORWARD

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS
TO NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to cash flows
from operating activities:
Depreciation
Impairment loss
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable—net
Developer fee receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Other liabilities
Deferred revenue

March 31,

March 31,

2013

2012

$

Net cash flows from operating activities

(5,408,935)

$

(10,065,157)

8,193,281
-

8,132,459
3,641,253

(2,473,638)
3,384,338
84,261
(486,745)
(98,060)
125,767
(1,154,679)

(656,718)
1,826,481
(87,633)
587,870
(380,648)
55,024
1,190,210

$

2,165,590

$

4,243,141

Foregiveness of notes payable

$

388,140

$

388,140

Change in investment in partnerships

$

830

$

3,064

Donated capital assets

$

13,293

$

13,293

$

1,021,281
168,565
5,452,057

$

85,235
114,526
1,231,426

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF
NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Equity transfer - limited partnership purchase
Restricted assets
Other assets
Capital assets
Other liabilities
Tenant security deposits
Accrued interest payable from restricted assets
Notes payable
Bond payable
Net assets

$

(260,572)
(84,114)
(64,891)
(849,416)
(5,380,000)
(2,910)
-

$

(180,174)
(5,650)
(206,702)
(842,572)
(196,089)
-

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity— The Federal Housing Act of 1937 authorized public housing authorities. Utilizing the 1937 Federal
Housing Act, the Portland City Council established the Housing Authority of Portland as a municipal corporation under
the Oregon Revised Statutes in December 1941. On May 18, 2011, Home Forward changed its legal name from Housing
Authority of Portland to Home Forward. Housing Authority of Portland is a now a registered name of Home Forward.
Home Forward, is a municipal corporation located in Portland, Oregon.
Home Forward is governed by a nine-member Board of Commissioners; four appointments are recommended by the City
of Portland, two by the City of Gresham and two by Multnomah County. Home Forward is not financially dependent on
the City of Portland and is not considered a component unit of the City. The Executive Director is appointed by the Board
and is responsible for the daily functioning of Home Forward.
Home Forward is the general partner and owns a 0.01% to 1% investment in each of the following discretely presented
component unit limited partnerships:
General Partner Ownerships presented in both December 31, 2012 and 2011 discretely presented component unit results:
 1115 SW 11th Avenue Limited Partnership
 Cecilia Limited Partnership
 Civic Redevelopment Limited Partnership
 Clay Street Limited Partnership
 Columbia Street Limited Partnership
 Fountain Place Limited Partnership
 Gateway Park Limited Partnership
 Gladstone Square Limited Partnership
 Haven Limited Partnership
 Humboldt Gardens Limited Partnership
 Jeffery Apartment Limited Partnership
 Kelly Place Limited Partnership*
 Lovejoy Station Limited Partnership
 RAC Housing Limited Partnership
 Rockwood Landing Limited Partnership
 Sequoia Square Limited Partnership
 Stephens Creek Crossing North Limited Partnership
 Stephens Creek Crossing South Limited Partnership
 St. Francis Limited Partnership
 Trouton Limited Partnership
 Union Station A LIH Limited Partnership
 Woolsey Limited Partnership
*On January 1, 2012, Home Forward purchased the limited partnership’s interest for the Kelly Place Limited
Partnership. See Note 2 for additional information.
As a general practice, Home Forward’s liability is not limited to initial investment and/or any future funding requirements.
The limited partnerships have a December 31 year-end and complete financial statements may be obtained by contacting
the Chief Financial Officer, Home Forward, 135 S.W. Ash Street, Portland, Oregon 97204.
In evaluating how to define Home Forward for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential
component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in Home Forward was made by applying the criteria
set forth by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). As required by the
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Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, the basic financial statements include its blended
component unit, New Columbia Community Campus Corporation (N4C) and 21 discretely presented component units.
N4C is a blended component unit because N4C is a supporting organization to Home Forward and the N4C board is
appointed by Home Forward board.
Programs Administered by Home Forward—Home Forward administers annual contribution contracts to provide lowincome housing with primary financial support from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”)
and develops and manages affordable properties. Programs administered by Home Forward are as follows:
Public Housing—Home Forward owns, operates and maintains 2,636 units of Public Housing, of which 637 units are
located at buildings included in the Affordable Housing portfolio. The properties were acquired through bonds and notes
guaranteed by HUD and through grants, subject to the terms of an Annual Contributions Contract with HUD. Revenues
consist primarily of rents and other fees collected from tenants, and an Operating Subsidy from HUD. Funds from the
Capital Grant Program provided by HUD are used to maintain and improve this Public Housing portfolio. Substantially all
additions to land, structures and equipment of Public Housing are accomplished through these capital grant funds.
Rent Assistance—Section 8 of the U.S. Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 provides Housing Assistance
Payments on behalf of lower-income families to participating housing owners. Under this program, the landlord-tenant
relationship is between a rental-housing owner and a family, rather than Home Forward and a family as in the Public
Housing program. For approved housing, HUD contracts with Home Forward to enter into contracts with owners to make
assistance payments for the difference between the approved contract rent and the actual rent paid by the lower-income
families, which equals 30% of adjusted household gross income. Housing Assistance Payments made to landlords and
some participants are funded through Annual Contributions Contracts. At March 31, 2013, Home Forward administered
approximately 8,620 vouchers through several programs authorized by Section 8. Additionally, Home Forward
administers the Short-Term Rent Assistance program on behalf of the City of Portland, the City of Gresham, and
Multnomah County.
Affordable Housing & Special Needs Housing—Home Forward owns, is developing, or is a partner in approximately
3,952 units of housing, of which 637 are public housing units. The Affordable Housing portfolio consists of 37
multifamily properties representing 3,952 units, of which 2,108 are owned through tax credit partnerships. The Special
Needs portfolio consists of 34 properties representing 514 units. The Special Needs properties were developed using grant
funds received from the State of Oregon and Federal programs combined with contributions from Home Forward and
other local agencies.
Resident Services—Home Forward coordinates and provides social and economic development programs for families, and
administers a variety of community housing and service partnerships throughout Multnomah County. Funding for these
programs comes from HUD, Medicare, participant fees, charitable organizations and private donations.
Development—Home Forward pursues development projects that augment the supply of low-cost housing, provide
essential services to residents and revitalizes overall communities. These projects include renovation of older/existing
housing, new construction and pilot projects.
Basis of Accounting—Home Forward maintains its accounting records as a proprietary fund using the accrual basis of
accounting.
Home Forward distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses are derived from providing services in connection with Home Forward’s ongoing operations. Operating
revenues, generally, include rental income, operating subsidies, operating grant revenue and development fee income.
Operating expenses, generally, include housing assistance payments, occupancy charges, tenant services, administrative
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expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are classified as
non-operating revenues and expenses.
Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents consists of amounts deposited in checking, money market
accounts and the Oregon Local Government Investment Pool (“LGIP”) or investments with original maturities of 90 days
or less. The LGIP is managed by the Oregon State Treasurer as an alternative to commercial money market accounts.
Deposits are subject to collateral requirements. Deposits in the LGIP are recorded at fair value, which is the same as the
value of the pool shares. Investments in the LGIP are included in the Oregon Short-Term Fund, which is not registered
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company. Investments in the Oregon Short-Term
Fund are governed by ORS 294.135, Oregon Investment Council, and portfolio guidelines issued by the Oregon ShortTerm Fund Board.
Cash and Cash Equivalents–Restricted and Investments-Restricted – This consists of funds set aside for:
Family self-sufficiency funds consist of amounts deposited under the Family Self-Sufficiency (“FSS”) program. Under the
FSS program, if the income of a tenant enrolled in the program increases, instead of decreasing the subsidy amount, the
original subsidy continues to be paid and the difference between the original and new subsidy amount is deposited into an
escrow account. If the tenant enrolled in the program attains certain target goals related to self-sufficiency, the tenant is
awarded money from the escrow account to use for various purposes stated in the tenant’s self-sufficiency plan such as
college tuition or a down payment for the purchase of a home.
Tenant security deposits represent the refundable deposits received from tenants and held in trust to secure the
performance of a rental agreement. Tenant security deposits in excess of any outstanding damage or rent charges must be
returned to the departing tenants within 31 days after the termination of the tenancy. The funds are typically held in
segregated bank accounts since these funds may not be used for operations. The funds are, however, allowed to earn
interest that may be retained for operations.
Residual receipts reserve is maintained for the Plaza and Multnomah Manor properties, which are included in Home
Forward’s Affordable Housing Portfolio, and consists of surplus cash on hand at the end of each fiscal year, less
authorized disbursements to date plus interest earned on the deposits. As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, the reserve is
funded as required.
Funds held in trust consist primarily of replacement reserves held in trust and by Home Forward for Affordable Housing
properties owned and operated by Home Forward. In addition, the balance includes performance guarantee and other
funds held in trust and by Home Forward under various agreements. The reserves are invested in interest-bearing bank
accounts and are externally restricted for the purposes of maintaining required reserve funds or purchasing or constructing
capital assets or other non-current assets. As such, the amounts are classified as restricted, non-current assets. During 2013
and 2012, the reserves were funded as required under the various agreements.
Debt service funds include externally restricted funds on deposit with various trustees relating to the servicing of debt.
Funds are invested in guaranteed investment contracts and short-term marketable securities.
Concentration of Risk— Federal regulations require that public funds on deposit with financial institutions be secured at
a rate of 100% of amounts in excess of deposit insurance coverage. Home Forward maintains cash balances at several
financial institutions, some in excess of the federally insured amount of $250,000. Financial institutions insure these
excess balances either via the Oregon State Treasurer’s office by designating these balances as Public Funds per ORS 295
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or via other collateral agreements at the Federal Reserve Bank and/or the Federal Home Loan Bank. Deposits for low- or
non-interest bearing transactional accounts are fully insured by the FDIC under the Temporary Account Guarantee
Program (TAGP) if the financial institution chooses to participate in the program. As of March 31, 2013, all of Home
Forward’s funds were collateralized.
As of March 31, 2012, approximately $795,000 of affordable housing deposits did not have adequate collateralization.
The funds not collateralized resided in bank accounts that Home Forward was required to maintain due to the existence of
a debt agreement with that bank. The bank associated with these deposits has subsequently provided additional
collateralization for these deposits. Home Forward has not experienced any losses from these accounts.
Investments—Home Forward entered into an agreement with HUD, known as Moving to Work, in January of 1999. This
agreement, among other things, allows Home Forward to conduct its investment activity under the State of Oregon
Statutes where the Statutes differ from HUD investment restrictions. These statutes authorize Home Forward to invest in
bankers’ acceptances, time certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, certain commercial paper, obligations of the
United States and its agencies and instrumentalities.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments—Investments held by Home Forward are stated at fair value. Home Forward
determines the fair value of these investments on a monthly basis, based on quoted market prices. Outside trustees
provide monthly statements to report the fair value and pricing of the assets held by them, which are also based on quoted
market prices. Home Forward adopted FASB ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures at the beginning
of the 2009 fiscal year and there was no material impact to the financial statements. Topic 820 provides a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the FASB ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures
are described below:
Level 1:

Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets that Home Forward has the ability to access.

Level 2:

Inputs to the valuation methodology include:


Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;



Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;



Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;



Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation
or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.
Level 3:

Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
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Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There have been no
changes in the methodologies used at March 31, 2013 as compared to March 31, 2012. Only negotiable investments in
certificates of deposit are required to be measured at fair value. Home Forward has no investments of this type as of
March 31, 2013 or 2012.. Investments in derivatives are valued based upon quoted prices for similar assets in active markets.
The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, Home Forward’s assets and liabilities at fair value as of
March 31, 2013:
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
Repurchase agreements
Investments in derivatives

$

-

$

$

2,039,707
(2,186,084)
(146,377)

$

$

-

$

$

2,039,707
(2,186,084)
(146,377)

$

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, Home Forward’s assets and liabilities at fair value as of
March 31, 2012:
Level 1
Federal National Mortgage Association
Discount Notes
Federal Home Loan Bank
Repurchase agreements
Investments in derivatives

$

$

Level 2

-

$
-

$

2,022,093
3,061,847
1,533,595
(2,056,476)
4,561,059

Level 3

$

$

Total

-

$
-

$

2,022,093
3,061,847
1,533,595
(2,056,476)
4,561,059

Non-current Assets
Due from partnerships, net consists primarily of development and management fees earned by Home Forward through its
involvement as the General Partner in tax credit partnerships and partnership project costs paid by Home Forward on
behalf of the partnerships (see Note 5). The fees are typically paid based on the availability of net cash flow of the
partnerships or from the proceeds of capital contributions to the partnerships. Management reviews the balance for
likelihood of collection and records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the type and age of the individual
receivables.
Notes receivable (non-current) consists primarily of loans to tax credit partnerships for the development of affordable
housing. These loans have a maturity date greater than one year in duration. Management reviews the balance for
likelihood of collection and records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the type and age of the individual
receivables (see Note 6).
Deferred charges—net consists of unamortized issue costs and unamortized interest differential associated with the debt
restructuring (see Note 12). These charges are being amortized over the lives of the respective bond issues using the
straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. Net deferred charges were $1,701,171, and
$1,956,639, as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Investments in Partnerships represents Home Forward’s equity interest in 21 limited partnerships, Home Forward’s
discretely presented component units (see Note 7). These investments are accounted for under the equity method because
Home Forward either holds a controlling interest or has “significant influence” over the operations of the partnerships.
Under the equity method, the initial investment is recorded at cost and is increased or decreased by Home Forward’s share
of income or losses and is increased by contributions and decreased by distributions. Management reviews the investment
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in partnerships for possible impairment in value whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying value of the
investment may not be recoverable.
Capital assets include land, structures, and equipment. All capital assets are recorded at cost except for donated capital
assets which are recorded at fair value. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method based on the estimated
useful lives of the individual assets: 15 to 40 years for buildings and improvements and 3 to 15 years for equipment.
When debt is issued for construction of capital assets, interest is capitalized during construction up to the placed-inservice date. No interest was capitalized for the years ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012, respectively.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Assets with costs in excess of $5,000 are capitalized and
depreciated from the respective placed-in-service date.
Management reviews land, structures, equipment and construction in progress for possible impairment whenever events or
circumstances cause a material and unanticipated decline in the service utility of an asset. Impairment is inherently
subjective and is based on management’s best estimate of assumptions concerning expected future conditions.
During FY 2012, Home Forward incurred impairment losses of approximately $3,641,000. These impairment losses
occurred at three of Home Forward’s properties.
Home Forward is implementing a $53 million comprehensive redevelopment of its Hillsdale Terrace public housing
property. The new redevelopment will be called Stephens Creek Crossing and will include 122 units of housing and seven
off-site homes, developed in partnership with Habitat for Humanity. To prepare for the redevelopment, the existing
Hillsdale Terrace buildings were demolished and Home Forward wrote off the net book value of $1,273,000.
During property inspections, Home Forward discovered evidence of physical damage to the exterior envelopes of the
buildings at two affordable housing properties, Ash Creek Commons and Willow Tree Apartments. It was determined that
a complete siding replacement is necessary to maintain the useful life of these buildings. Using the restoration cost
approach, Home Forward calculated an impairment charge of approximately $2,368,000.
Deferred Revenue—Deferred revenue consists primarily of advanced grant payments received from HUD programs and
payments received from non-HUD sources that have not been earned as of March 31, 2013 and 2012.
Other Liabilities—Non-current—Other liabilities – non-current represents the liabilities associated with other postemployment benefits as determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45.
Revenue Recognition—Operating subsidies are recognized in the period funds are received. Revenues from grants are
recognized in the periods designated by the grantor as the associated costs are incurred. Revenues from contracts and
rental revenues are recognized when the associated services are provided.
Compensated Absences—All full-time and part-time employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least 20 hours per
week are eligible to earn paid annual leave. Eligible employees begin to accrue annual leave as of their hire date; however,
the accrued time does not become earned, useable or payable until the completion of 90 days of continuous service.
Earned paid annual leave time may be carried over and accumulated up to a maximum of two years’ accrual as of
January 1 of any year. Total accrued compensated absences as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 were $1,393,892 and
$1,395,031, respectively, and are a component of other accrued liabilities.
Payments in Lieu of Taxes—As a municipal corporation, Home Forward is exempt from federal, state and local income
and property taxes. Instead, Home Forward is required to make payments to local government entities called Payments in
Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) on certain rental properties owned by Home Forward. Under an agreement with the City of
Portland, Home Forward is required to make an annual payment equal to 10% of the shelter rent charged by the local
authority in respect to the project. Shelter rent is the total of all charges to all tenants for dwelling and non-dwelling rents
less the cost of utilities. Home Forward also makes annual payments to the City of Fairview. Total payments in lieu of
taxes for March 31, 2013 and 2012 were $225,500 and $255,000, respectively.
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Income Taxes—Home Forward adopted the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740-10 Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes on April 1, 2009, as applicable to the tax credit limited partnerships as shown as discretely presented
component units in the basic financial statements. These Oregon tax credit limited partnerships were formed in conformity
with the provisions of Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code, thus no provision has been made for income taxes. There
was no effect on net position in the current year as a result of adopting this Topic. No expense for interest of penalties is
recognized in the financial statements. Management believes the tax credit limited partnerships have not taken any
uncertain tax positions, as defined in the Topic.
Assets Available for Sale—Land, buildings or equipment identified as available for sale are separately identified from
assets placed in service. No depreciation expense is recorded on these assets and the value of the assets is reflected at the
lower of book value or market value.
Reclassifications - Certain amounts on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2012, have been reclassified
to be consistent with the classifications adopted for the year ended March 31, 2013.
New pronouncements adopted – As of April 1, 2011, Home Forward adopted the provisions of following GASB
statements, which did not have a significant impact to its financial statements:
GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30,
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, incorporates into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and
financial reporting guidance that is included in Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the AICPA Committee on
Accounting Procedures which does not conflict with or contradict other GASB pronouncements. The provisions of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.
GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position, provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. The
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.
Effects of new pronouncements – Home Forward is currently analyzing its accounting practices to identify the potential
impact on the financial statements for the following GASB statements:
On December 17, 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus. Statement 61 is
designed to improve financial reporting for governmental entities by amending the requirements of Statements No. 14,
The Financial Reporting Entity, and No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—
for State and Local Governments. The Statement will improve the information presented about the financial reporting
entity, which is comprised of a primary government and related entities (component units). The amendments to the criteria
for including component units allow users of financial statements to better assess the accountability of elected officials of
the primary government. In addition, the Statement amends the criteria for blending—that is, reporting component units as
if they were part of the primary government—in certain circumstances. Lastly, the new requirements for reporting equity
interests in component units help ensure that the primary government’s financial statements do not understate financial
position and provide for more consistent and understandable display of those equity interests. The requirements of
Statement 61 are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2012.
On April 2, 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Statement 65
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify certain items that were previously reported as
assets and liabilities, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources. Statement 65 amends the
financial statement element classification of certain items previously reported as assets and liabilities to be consistent with
the definitions in Concepts Statement 4. Statement 65 also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the
impact of the financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as
changes in the determination of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term deferred in financial statement
presentations. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after
December 15, 2012.
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On June 25, 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. Statement 68
establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for pension plans that are administered through trusts.
Statement 68 requires governments participating in cost-sharing plans to report a liability and expense equal to their
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability and expense for the cost sharing plan. Statement 68 also requires
that notes to financial statements of cost-sharing employers include descriptive information about the pension plan,
including the discount rate and assumptions used to calculate of their proportionate shares of net pension liabilities.
Statement 68 requires cost-sharing employers to present in the required supplementary information 10-year schedules for
net pension liability, information about contractually required contribution, contributions to the pension plan, and related
ratios. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2014.
During January 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 69. Government Combinations and Disposals of Government
Operations. It establishes accounting related to government combinations and disposals of government operations.
Government combinations include mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of operations. Statement 69 also establishes the
required financial statement disclosure for government combinations and disposals of government operations. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statement for periods beginning after December 15, 2013.
During April 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 70 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial
Guarantees. Nonexchange financial guarantees are financial guarantees from a government for obligations of another
entity. These guarantees are without directly receiving equal or approximately equal value in exchange. Statement 70
requires nonexchange financial guarantee, which will likely be required to make a payment to the guarantee, to be
recognized as a liability. Statement 70 also established the required disclosures for nonexchange financial guarantees for
the government that extend and the government that receives nonexchange financial guarantees. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 13, 2013.

2. LOW INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDIT LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS
The low-income housing tax credit program is the result of Federal legislation that allows investors certain tax incentives
for investing in low-income housing. Under terms of the Federal tax code and extended use agreements with the State of
Oregon, the buildings must continue to serve the targeted population for 30 years; after 15 years, Home Forward has the
option to purchase the property from the partnership.
Tax Credit Limited Partnerships are created to finance and own affordable housing. Home Forward acts as Managing
General Partner of each partnership. Although each Tax Credit Limited Partnership is structured differently, they are
generally financed via loans to the partnership, contributions of equity by the general and limited partners, and other
sources. In some transactions, Home Forward issues bonds and loans the proceeds to the Tax Credit Limited Partnership.
Tax-exempt bond issuances are secured by the underlying partnership real estate and, in some cases, by the general
revenues of Home Forward. The bonds and notes payable are offset by notes receivable from the partnerships. The
partnerships make payments to Home Forward for debt service. Home Forward may receive grant funds or other loans to
assist in purchasing the properties and in preserving affordability within the projects. Because of limitations posed by the
Internal Revenue Service, all such funds are received by Home Forward and lent to the partnerships. These funds are
accounted for as notes receivable from the partnerships if the proceeds are used for developing the property. Other
advances are included in amounts due from partnerships and are reflected in Note 5. Notes payable related to the
partnerships are reflected in Note 11. A summary of Home Forward’s long-term debt, including debt pertaining to the tax
credit partnerships, is reflected in Note 13. A summary of notes receivable from the partnerships is reflected in Note 6.
Home Forward typically earns a developer’s fee for its role in bringing the project to fruition. These fees are earned based
on certain events or dates relative to the development of the project. Developer fees are paid primarily from development
proceeds and available cash flows. Under the various partnership agreements, developer fees, which are not paid during
the construction phase, are generally required to be paid either within 10 to 15 years of the project having been placed-in-
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service and may accrue interest on unpaid balances. In 2013, Home Forward earned $952,901 in developer fees and was
paid $3.4 million. In 2012, Home Forward earned $95,000 in developer fees and was paid $1.9 million. At March 31,
2013 and 2012, the balance of the development fees owed to Home Forward is $4.8 million and $7.2 million, respectively.
Some tax credit projects also pay a General Partner’s management fee and/or a tenant services fee; these fees are reflected
in other operating revenues and totaled $415,472 and $545,868 in 2013 and 2012, respectively.
During the year ended March 31, 2013, the following acquisition of interest in tax credit partnerships occurred:
On January 24, 2013, Home Forward purchased the remaining 99.9% interest in Yards at Union Station Limited
Partnership. Upon purchase, the partnership was dissolved. A summary of the partnership’s statement of net
position at the time of purchase was:
Total Assets
Total Liabilities

$

6,641,903
6,638,993

Net Position

$

2,910

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the following acquisition of interest in tax credit partnerships occurred:
On January 1, 2012, Home Forward purchased the remaining 99% interest in Kelly Place Limited Partnership.
Upon purchase, the partnership was dissolved. A summary of the partnership’s statement of net position at the
time of purchase was:
Total Assets
Total Liabilities

$

1,431,187
1,235,098

Net Position

$

196,089

3. INVESTMENTS
Home Forward’s investment policies require that all investments be made in accordance with the stated objectives of
capital preservation, optimum liquidity and return, while conforming to all applicable statutes and regulations. Home
Forward intends to adhere fully to its investment policy, which expressly prohibits the making of speculative or leveraged
investments and requires that all investments be made prudently and with due care to ensure compliance with all statutes
and regulations.
Investment Risk Disclosures
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, Home
Forward will not be able to recover the value of the investment securities that are in the possession of the outside party.
As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, all investments were insured or registered, and held by Home Forward or its agent in
Home Forward’s name, or uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent
in Home Forward’s name and were not exposed to custodial credit risk.
Credit risk of investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
This credit risk is measured by the credit quality rating of investments in debt securities as described by a national
statistical rating organization such as Standard and Poor’s (S&P). To minimize credit risk, Home Forward’s policies
provide that investments in corporate indebtedness are rated a minimum of A1, P1, 3a3 and investments in municipal debt
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obligations of the State of Oregon that are A or better. Obligations of the U.S. government or obligations explicitly
guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk and do not require disclosure of credit quality.
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of Home Forward’s investment in a single issuer
(not including investments issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, investments in mutual funds, or external
investments pools). To minimize concentration of credit risk, Home Forward’s investments are made from a selection of
diverse issuers.
As March 31, 2012, Home Forward’s investments in Federal Home Loan Bank debt securities represented 46% of Home
Forward’s investments, exceeding the 5% concentration threshold.
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Home
Forward selects investments of varied maturities to mitigate this risk.
Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Home
Forward does not invest in securities associated with exchange rates and therefore is not exposed to foreign currency risk.
Investments – restricted consist of the following at March 31, 2013:
Investment maturities (in years)
Credit
Rating

< 1 yr

1-3 yrs

>3 yrs

Fair Value

NON-CURRENT

Investments - restricted
Repurchase agreement - Bayerisch
Repurchase agreement - Societe Generale

Baa1
A2

$

-

$

TOTAL

$

-

-

$

1,496,853
542,854
2,039,707

$

1,496,853
542,854
2,039,707

$

2,039,707

$

2,039,707

$

-

Investments – restricted consist of the following at March 31, 2012:
Investment maturities (in years)
Credit
Rating

1‐3 yrs

< 1 yr

>3 yrs

Fair Value

CURRENT

Investments
Federal Farm Credit Bank notes
Federal Home Loan Bank notes
NONCURRENT
Investments - restricted
Repurchase agreement - Bayerisch
Repurchase agreement - Societe Generale
TOTAL
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Aaa
Aaa

$

Baa1
A1

2,022,093
3,061,847
5,083,940

$

-

$

5,083,940

$

-

-

$

-

$ 2,022,093
3,061,847
5,083,940

-

1,048,180
485,415
1,533,595

1,048,180
485,415
1,533,595

$ 1,533,595

$ 6,617,535
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Investments and investments - restricted for the year ended March 31, 2013, matured between April 2027 and May 2029
and the interest rate on the investments ranges from 4.57% to 5.92%. Investments and investments – restricted for the
year ended March 31, 2012, matured between April 2012 and January 2029 and the interest rate on these investments
ranged from 0.03% to 5.92%. The repurchase agreements are guaranteed investment contracts.
4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable consist of the following at March 31:

2013
HUD grants
State, local and other grants
Tenants and landlords
Other

$

4,544,766
1,398,858
942,776
320,478

Less allowance for doubtful accounts
Total accounts receivable, net

$

2012
$

3,011,866
1,081,885
697,860
196,104

7,206,878

4,987,715

(840,249)

(513,174)

6,366,629

$

4,474,541

5. DUE FROM PARTNERSHIPS
Due from partnerships consists of the following at March 31:

2013
Cecelia Limited Partnership
Stephens Creek Crossing North Limited Parternship
Woolsey Limited Partnership
Stephens Creek Crossing South Limited Partnership
Clay Street Limited Partnership
RAC Housing Limited Partnership
Gladstone Square Limite Partnership
Fountain Place Limited Partnership
All other partnerships

$

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts

$

(1,901,441)

Total due from partnerships
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546,275
545,376
382,429
379,232
371,908
288,518
278,094
162,138
579,175
3,533,145

2012

$

1,631,704

501,275
336,804
322,686
97,573
251,859
157,138
669,472
2,336,807
(1,747,431)

$

589,376

102

31

Draft for Home Forward
Board of Commissioners

HOME FORWARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

6. NOTES RECEIVABLE AND ACCRUED INTEREST
Notes and accrued interest receivable consist of the following at March 31:
2013
Partnership notes
Homeowners notes

$

Accrued interest receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total notes and accrued interest receivable

$

96,416,248
228,300
96,644,548

2012
$

89,801,571
228,300
90,029,871

5,962,023

5,264,721

(6,437,854)

(5,921,973)

96,168,717

$

89,372,619

Partnership notes have been issued to the limited partnerships invested in by Home Forward. These notes are used for the
purpose of acquiring, constructing, and/or remodeling buildings for housing and other housing related purposes. These
notes have an interest range of 0% to 6% with various maturity dates to 2072. As described in each note agreement,
payments will be made from available cash flows.
Homeowners’ notes are secured by deed of trust and accrue interest at 5% per annum. Deferred interest will be forgiven if
owner completes required homeowner education classes and remains in the house for five years. As of March 31, 2013,
all Homeowners’ accrued interest had been forgiven. Principal is payable upon sale of property or various dates between
2033 through 2037.
7. INVESTMENTS IN PARTNERSHIPS
Investments in partnerships consist of the following at March 31:

2013

2012

RAC Housing Limited Partnership
Cecilia Limited Partnership
Haven Limited Partnership
Lovejoy Station Limited Partnership
Rockwood Landing Limited Partnership
Clay Street Limited Partnership
All other partnerships

$ 21,186,251
1,273,151
516,092
256,694
224,799
96,479
217,597

$ 21,186,489
1,273,257
516,132
256,527
224,811
96,710
217,867

Total investments in partnerships

$ 23,771,063

$ 23,771,793
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8. CAPITAL ASSETS
Land, structures and equipment activity of Home Forward was as follows for the years ended March 31:
Balance
April 1, 2012
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being
depreciated

$

Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Total Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being
depreciated
Total capital assets, net

$

21,021,757
2,551,472

$

$

2,680,652
7,239,408

$

$

(793,539)
-

22,511,031
1,712,681

(793,539)

24,223,712

180,100,150
14,365,528
194,465,678

16,683,658
507,479
17,191,137

(12,684,380)
(1,561,205)
(14,245,585)

(3,938,247)
(3,938,247)

180,161,181
13,311,802
193,472,983

(67,505,583)
(7,977,308)
(75,482,891)

(12,294,195)
(1,788,233)
(14,082,428)

2,516,185
659,328
3,175,513

1,467,491
1,467,491

(75,816,102)
(9,106,213)
(84,922,315)

118,982,787

3,108,709

(11,070,072)

(2,470,756)

108,550,668

142,556,016

20,415,996
3,999,509

$

13,028,769

$

(19,546,110)

Additions and
transfers in

Disposals and
transfers out

$

$

609,536
9,952,412

177,121,463
12,243,102
189,364,565

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Total Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being
depreciated
$

(397,839)
(8,078,199)

Balance
March 31, 2013

(8,476,038)

10,561,948

Total capital assets, net

$

Reclassified as
Available for Sale

9,920,060

24,415,505

Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Disposals and
transfers out

23,573,229

Balance
April 1, 2011
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Additions and
transfers in

(3,775)
(11,400,449)

$

(3,264,295)

Reclassified as
Available for Sale
$

-

$

132,774,380

Balance
March 31, 2012
$

21,021,757
2,551,472

-

23,573,229

11,756,343
2,174,503
13,930,846

(11,404,224)
(8,777,656)
(52,077)
(8,829,733)

-

180,100,150
14,365,528
194,465,678

(63,425,487)
(6,526,343)
(69,951,830)

(7,887,478)
(1,476,205)
(9,363,683)

3,807,382
25,240
3,832,622

-

(67,505,583)
(7,977,308)
(75,482,891)

119,412,735

4,567,163

(4,997,111)

-

118,982,787

143,828,240
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$

15,129,111

$

(16,401,335)

$

-

$

142,556,016
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9. ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE
On February 22, 2008, HUD approved Home Forward’s plan for the disposition of 158 scattered site buildings. A recap of
buildings sold is:
Units
Original scattered sites availabel for sale
158
Scattered sites sold fiscal year 2008
(6)
Scattered sites sold fiscal year 2009
(60)
Scattered sites sold fiscal year 2010
(39)
Scattered sites sold fiscal year 2011
(26)
Scattered sites retained fiscal year 2011
(1)
Scattered sites sold fiscal year 2012
(18)
Scattered sites retained fiscal year 2012
(7)
Scattered sites sold fiscal year 2013
(1)
Scattered sites available for sale as of March 31, 2013
-

During FY 2012, Home Forward retained seven scattered site locations rather than sell those sites to a third party. The
value of these sites was transferred out of assets available for sale and transferred in as a capital asset. The final
remaining scattered site was sold in April 2012.
On February 1, 2013, Home Forward entered into a purchase sales agreement with a third party for the sale of St John
Woods Apartments. The sale is currently scheduled to occur during the Fall of 2013.
Total net book value of remaining assets available for sale as of March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 is $3,264,295 and
$29,756, respectively.
10. LINE OF CREDIT
Home Forward has an $8,000,000 revolving line of credit. The line of credit is used for short-term funding needs. The line
of credit is collateralized by the general revenues of Home Forward and matures December 12, 2014. Draws on the line
of credit may bear a fixed or variable rate of interest. During 2013 and 2012 gross draws, including initial draws and
draws after repayments, on the line of credit were $29,587,678 and $4,938,625, respectively, which represents both
principal and accrued interest. The remaining outstanding line of credit balance for March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 is
$1,351,023 and $351,713, respectively. A summary of activity for Home Forward’s line of credit for year ending March
31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 is as follows:
Balance
April 1, 2012
$

351,713

Draws
$

Balance
April 1, 2011
$

-
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29,587,678

Repayments
$

Draws
$

4,938,625

(28,588,368)

Repayments
$

(4,586,912)

Balance
March 31, 2013
$

1,351,023

Balance
March 31, 2012
$

351,713
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11. NOTES PAYABLE
Notes payables of Home Forward consist of the following at March 31:

Property
Laurelhurst
Schiller Way
Schiller Way
Richmond Place
Richmond Place
Development Department
Mulnomah Manor
Turning Point
Willow Tree
Cambridge Court
Cambridge Court
Cambridge Court
Dawson Park
Fenwick Apts
Fenwick Apts
Fenwick Apts
Helen Swindells
Helen Swindells
Kelly Place
James Hawthorne
North Interstate
Yards at Union Station
Pearl Court
Peter Paulson
Peter Paulson
Peter Paulson
Schiller Way
Sequoia Square
St Francis LP
SW 45th (Carriage Hill Apts)

March 31,
2013
Interest
Rate
6.00%
4.00%
4.14%
9.38%
3.00%
0.00%
6.75%
3.81%
4.42%
8.50%
1.00%
0.00%
3.00%
3.77%
0.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
5.39%
0.00%
0.00%
3.00%
3.00%
7.91%
0.50%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Final
Maturity
Date*
2016
2030
2021
2019
2016
2019
2034
2032
2036
2017
2032
2032
2022
2025
Sale of Property
2034
2023
2023
2028
Sale of Property
Sale of Property
2027
2027
2024
2024
2024
Sale of Property
2040
Sale of Property
Sale of Property

Forward balance to next page
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Payment
Terms
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Maturity Date
Maturity Date
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Cash Flow
Cash Flow
Cash Flow
Monthly
Cash Flow
Monthly
Cash Flow
Cash Flow
Monthly
Cash Flow
Cash Flow
Monthly
Monthly
Cash Flow
Cash Flow
Cash Flow
Cash Flow
Cash Flow
Cash Flow
Cash Flow

2013
$

585,313
187,989
500,000
382,624
1,201,684
418,205
668,936
124,083
526,600
397,753
545,227
1,351,618
1,180,211
166,239
1,483,870
600,451
395,296
5,728,950
929,905
1,409,538
973,922
1,021,301
250,000
689,636
505,351
514,486
5,308,681
181,420

$

$

28,229,289

$

2012
12,246
609,216
207,898
410,881
500,000
382,624
1,225,223
432,400
685,353
150,150
543,711
397,753
545,227
1,390,306
1,180,211
171,589
1,483,870
600,451
411,847
5,728,950
929,905
1,032,123
1,021,301
250,000
689,636
505,351
514,486
5,308,681
186,360
27,507,749
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Property

March 31,
2013
Interest
Rate

Final
Maturity
Date*

Payment
Terms

Forward balance from previous page
SW 45th (Carriage Hill Apts)
Willow Tree
Fairview Oaks & Woods
Rockwood Station
Hawthorn Home
Madison Home
North Interstate
Project Open Door
Russell Street House
Taylor Home
Ashcreek Commons**
Plaza Townhomes
Ainsworth Court
Madrona Apartments
N4C - Loan A
N4C - Loan B
N4C - Loan C

2013
$

3.00%
3.00%
3.58%
3.58%
6.00%
6.00%
6.00%
1.75%
8.97%
7.00%
1.60%
7.00%
0.00%
7.25%
5.88%
2.00%
2.00%

2032
2035
2041
2041
2029
2029
2033
2027
2018
2029
2014
2015
2052
2032
2012
2036
2012

Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Cash Flow
Monthly
Monthly
Annual
Annual

Less: Current portion of notes payable
Total notes payable

$

28,229,289

2012
$

27,507,749

38,278
178,312
11,948,681
4,799,634
56,308
56,139
486,322
244,507
22,248
52,471
2,110,052
212,003
1,400,000
1,096,758
-

39,722
178,312
12,125,600
4,870,700
58,265
58,107
498,125
259,004
25,493
54,135
2,165,516
279,556
1,260,668
1,122,905
8,800,000
1,693,292
295,655

50,931,002

61,292,803

(2,847,236)

(9,784,364)

48,083,766

51,508,439

* NOTE: Calendar year of final maturity date
**NOTE: All notes payables issuance are fixed rate except for Ashcreek Commons, a variable rate debt issuance. The
interest rate for Ashcreek Commons was 1.60% and 1.60% at March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Notes Payables includes those notes related to equity gap financing. Equity gap financing is utilized to fund the difference
between project costs and sources of construction and permanent financing, These notes bear interest rates between 0.00%
and 9.38% with maturities due up through 2052 except for certain equity gap notes, which are not payable unless the
property is sold.
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N4C used proceeds from the sale of Rosa Park Elementary School to Portland Public Schools for a $8,707,514 payment on
N4C Loan A. The remaining balance of $92,486 was forgiven by Bank of America.
On October 31, 2012, Home Forward acquired ESIC New Markets Partners XII Limited Partnership which assets included
N4C Loan B. Home Forward immediately forgave the remaining balance due from N4C for N4C Loan B.
N4C Loan C is a $2,069,579 loan issued by Enterprise Social Investment Corporation that will be forgiven in one-seventh
increments per year over a seven-year period. As of March 31 2013, N4C Loan C was completely forgiven by Enterprise
Social Investment Corporation.
A summary of activity of Home Forward’s notes payable for 2013 and 2012 is as follows:
Balance
April 1, 2012
$

61,292,803

Increase
$

Balance
April 1, 2011
$

58,476,913

Decrease

1,563,411

$

Increase
$

Balance
March 31, 2013

(11,925,212)

$

Balance
March 31, 2012

Decrease

19,868,798

$

50,931,002

(17,052,908)

$

61,292,803

Minimum debt payments due over the next five years and thereafter in five-year increments are as follows:

Fiscal year ending
March 31:
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039-2043
2044-2048
2049-2053
Thereafter
Total

Notes Payable

$

Principal
2,847,236
768,564
780,150
1,244,384
770,098
7,197,884
7,351,352
4,330,269
3,341,854
3,892,331
3,172,362
1,400,000
13,834,518
50,931,002

$

Interest
1,210,254
1,145,541
1,113,127
1,380,090
1,059,428
4,927,126
3,642,350
2,269,200
1,527,855
954,245
307,359
57,189
19,593,764

For the variable rate debt, the March 31, 2013 interest rate, as provided above, was used for the future interest calculation.
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12. BONDS PAYABLE
Bonds payable of Home Forward, which are secured by mortgages on the respective properties, consist of the following at
March 31:

Bond Issue
Ainsworth Court Series A
Capital Fund Program, Series A
Dawson Park -2012
Dawson Park - 1995
New Market West - 2013
New Market West - 2004
Pearl Court
St. Johns Woods Series A
St. Johns Woods Series B
Yards at Union Station

Bond
Type
Fixed
Fixed
Fixed
Fixed
Variable
Variable
Fixed
Fixed
Fixed
Fixed

Interest Rate
at March 31,
2013
2012
5.78%
4.52%
3.37%
3.47%
4.49%
5.27%
5.30%
4.74%

5.70%
4.51%
6.70%
0.30%
4.47%
5.26%
5.30%
-

Less current portion of bonds payable

Less unamortized discounts
Total

Final
Maturity
Date*
2028
2025
2027
2026
2023
2035
2027
2029
2029
2030

2013
$

2,530,000
3,900,000
1,768,011
2,641,818
4,830,000
2,960,000
270,000
5,380,000
24,279,829

2012
$

2,635,000
4,230,000
1,815,000
2,280,000
5,075,000
3,075,000
355,000
19,465,000

(1,299,464)
22,980,365

(970,000)
18,495,000

(52,049)

(70,651)

$ 22,928,316

$

18,424,349

Unamortized discounts relate to issuances for Ainsworth Court, Dawson Park -1995, and St. Johns Woods Series A.
On July 26, 2010, the Pine Square Apartment building was sold. Pine Square’s sale proceeds were transferred to Pine
Square’s Trustee, Wells Fargo Corporate Trust (Wells Fargo). Wells Fargo placed the sale proceeds and Pine Square’s
debt service funds into a defeasance escrow account. The defeasance escrow account will pay the Pine Square’s scheduled
principal and interest bond payments thru January 1, 2013. The Pine Square interest differential was calculated at the time
of the sale. The interest differential is the total of the remaining unamortized bond costs and discounts, and interest
differential between interest earned from the sale proceeds and interest paid on the Pine Square Bond. The interest
differential was calculated $1,094,955. The interest differential is being amortized as interest expense until
January 1, 2013. Remaining defeased bonds outstanding were $0 and $5,390,000 at March 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.
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A summary activity of Home Forward’s bonds payable for 2012 and 2011 is as follows:
April 1, 2012
$

19,465,000

Increase
$

Balance
April 1, 2011
$

20,465,000

Decrease

9,858,387

$

Increase
$

(5,043,558)

Decrease
-

$

(1,000,000)

March 31, 2013
$

24,279,829

Balance
March 31, 2012
$

19,465,000

Minimum debt payments due over the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follows:

Fiscal year ending
March 31:
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029 - 2033
Total

Bonds Payable
Principal
Interest
1,299,464
1,056,093
1,391,184
1,001,089
1,444,570
942,746
1,343,072
881,552
1,396,692
823,757
7,847,219
3,139,847
8,412,628
1,195,174
1,145,000
34,097
$ 24,279,829
$ 9,074,355

For the variable rate debt, the March 31, 2013 interest rate, as provided above, was used for the future interest calculation.
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13. BONDS PAYABLE AND NOTES RECEIVABLE—PARTNERSHIPS
Home Forward issued Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, Tax-Exempt Tax Credit Notes Receivable and Taxable Tax
Credit Notes Receivable for the purpose of providing financing to I.R.S. Section 42 Partnerships (see Note 7 and Note 18)
in which Home Forward has an ownership interest. The Partnerships are required to make payments on the Notes
Receivable to Home Forward, the General Partner of the Partnerships, sufficient to make required debt service payments
on the Bonds. Bonds payable—partnerships and the corresponding notes receivable—partnerships consist of the following
at March 31:

Partnership

Bond
Type

Lovejoy Station Limited Partnership
Civic Redevelopment Limited Partnership
Trouton Limited Partnership
Columbia Street Limited Partnership
Cecelia Limited Partnership
Clay Street Limited Partnership
Fountain Place Limited Partnership
Stephens Creek Crossing North L.P.
Humboldt Gardens Limited Partnership
Union Station, A LIH Limited Partnership

Fixed
Variable
Variable
Fixed
Variable
Fixed
Fixed
Variable
Fixed
Fixed

Interest Rate
at March 31,
2013
2012
5.96%
0.12%
0.16%
5.44%
0.16%
5.44%
5.80%
1.85%
6.17%
4.74%

5.96%
0.16%
0.21%
4.72%
0.21%
4.72%
5.80%
N/A
6.17%
4.72%

Final
Maturity
Date*

2013

2012

2033
2038
2037
2031
2035
2031
2034
2031
2040
2029

10,915,000
7,800,000
5,840,000
4,190,000
3,610,000
3,600,000
2,772,668
$ 1,214,221
945,000
-

11,175,000
7,800,000
5,955,000
4,315,000
3,685,000
3,705,000
2,832,958
$
960,000
5,585,000

40,886,889

46,012,958

Less current portion

(803,933)

Total

$ 40,082,956

(960,290)
$ 45,052,668

* NOTE: calendar year of final maturity date
A summary activity of Home Forward’s bonds payable for 2013 and 2011 is as follows:
Balance
April 1, 2012 2
$ 46,012,958

Increase
$

Balance
April 1, 2011
$ 70,089,382
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Decrease

1,214,221

$ (6,340,290)

Increase
$

Decrease
-

$ (24,076,424)

Balance
March 31, 2013
$

40,886,889

Balance
March 31, 2012
$

46,012,958
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Minimum debt payments due over the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follow:
Fiscal year ending
March 31:
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039-2043
Total

Bond Payable - Tax Credit Partnership
Principal
Interest
803,933
1,322,888
2,057,016
1,281,324
891,476
1,226,737
936,210
1,186,326
995,814
5,673,050
6,967,551
8,503,748
6,143,091
7,915,000
40,886,889

$

$

1,143,923
4,993,371
3,505,603
1,480,446
123,547
6,498
16,270,663

For the variable rate debt, the March 31, 2013 interest rate, as provided above, was used for the future interest calculation.
14. ADDITIONAL BONDS PAYABLE INFORMATION
Currently outstanding are variable rate demand bonds and notes issued by Home Forward on its New Market West
headquarters building, and five separate projects: Ashcreek, Cecelia Limited Partnership (Cecilia), Trouton Limited
Partnership (Trouton), Civic Limited Partnership, and Stephen Creek Crossing North Limited Partnership.
The bonds for each have the following common characteristics:


Letters of Credit (LOC) have been issued Bank of America Securities (Cecelia and Trouton), equal to the amounts
outstanding on the bonds plus one interest payment, and 1.4% for Cecelia and Trouton of the outstanding principal
balance plus one interest payment of the related bonds. Civic has a credit enhancement agreement (CEA) with
Freddie Mac and is charged an annual fee of 1.06% of the outstanding balance. Ashcreek and New Market West
are not required to have a LOC or credit enhancement.



The LOCs and CEA are intended not only to provide security to bondholders, but also to make periodic interest
payments for which Home Forward regularly reimburses the banks.



The banks act as a remarketing agent, reselling at market rates any bonds sold by bondholders. They have
committed to repurchase bonds that cannot be resold on the open market.



New Market West’s interest rates are recalculated monthly, based on the rate at which bond can be remarketed.
All other interest rates are recalculated weekly, based on the rate at which bonds can be remarketed



The annual remarketing fee on the outstanding amount of the bonds is 0.08% (Civic), 0.10% (Trouton) and
0.125% (Cecilia). Ashcreek and New Market West are not subject to an annual remarketing fee.



For bonds where the underlying financed asset is not the pledge for the bonds, the underlying credit for the bonds
is the general funds of Home Forward.

Civic Redevelopment Limited Partnership entered into a swap agreement with Freddie MAC. The new agreement caps the
variable rate on the bonds to 3.6625%. The agreement is set to expire on September 1, 2023.
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In conjunction with the sale of Cecelia, Trouton, and New Market West-2012 bonds and the Ashcreek note, Home
Forward entered into interest rate swap agreements. Home Forward uses interest rate swap agreements in order to reduce
the volatility related to variable rate interest debt, or market risk. The swap agreements effectively convert the interest rate
on variable rate debt to a fixed rate. These swaps call for Home Forward to receive interest at a variable rate and to pay
interest at a fixed rate.
The Ashcreek note was modified with an extended maturity date of March 2014. The variable rate on the note was 1.60%
and 1.60%, at March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The swap instrument is at 2.5% on a notional amount of $2.17
million for which Home Forward received 84% of the 30 day LIBOR rate. The fair value of the swap was a liability of
$51,894 and $94,903 as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The Cecelia bonds mature in 2035. The variable rate on the bonds was 0.16% and 0.21% as of March 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The swap instrument associated with the remaining bonds matures July 1, 2021, and is fixed at 4.39% on a
notional amount of $3.69 million for which Home Forward receives the 30 day SIFMA rate. The fair value of the swap
was a liability of $803,796 and $776,083 as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The Trouton bonds mature in 2038. The variable rate on the bonds was 016% and 0.21% as of March 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The swap instrument associated with the remaining bonds matures July 1, 2022, and is fixed at 4.188% on a
notional amount of $5.96 million for which Home Forward receives the 30 day SIFMA rate. The fair value of the swap
was a liability of $1,251,086 and $1,185,490 as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
New Market West bond mature in 2038. The variable rate on the bonds was 1.76% as of March 31, 2013. The swap
instrument associated with the remaining bonds mature August 1, 2023 and is fixed at 1.73% on a national amount of
$4.21 million dollar for which Home Forward receives the 30 day LIBOR rate. The fair value of the swap was a liability
of $79,307 at March 31, 2013.
The fair value of the swap instruments are calculated from proprietary models using a mid-market basis. The change in
fair market value of Home Forward’s swap transactions for the years ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 was an
increase of $129,608 and $769,139, respectively. The offset to derivative instruments liability is reflected as Deferred
Outflows on Derivative Instruments.
There are certain risks associated with any hedging investment. These risks include credit risk, basis risk, termination risk,
rollover risk, interest rate risk, and market access risk.


Credit risk - The aggregate fair value of the swaps represents Home Forward’s credit exposure to the
counterparties as of March 31, 2013 and 2012. Should the counterparties fail to perform according to the terms of
the swap contracts, Home Forward faced a maximum potential loss equal to the aggregate fair value of the swap.
At March 31, 2013 and 2012, Home Forward did not face a credit risk because the swap instruments had a
negative value. To minimize the potential of credit risk, Home Forward engages with counterparties with ratings
of A/A2 or higher. Any counterparty with a credit rating that falls below this is required to use a credit support
annex to document swap termination valuation collateralization. As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, Home Forward
was engaged with counterparties with ratings of A/A2 or higher.



Basis risk – For the Ashcreek swap, Home Forward has chosen a variable index based on percentage of LIBOR
plus a spread which has historically approximated the variable rates payable on the related bond. However Home
Forward is subject to the risk that a change in the relationship between the LIBOR-based swap rate and the
variable rates would cause a material mismatch between the two rates. This risk is minimized for the Cecilia and
Trouton deals as both the underlying debt pays out based on weekly auction rates and the SIFMA rate is an
average of auction rate activity.
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Termination risk – Counterparties are not allowed to optionally terminate, extend or substantially alter the terms
of a swap without Home Forward’s consent. Home Forward or counterparty may terminate the swaps if the other
party fails to perform under the terms of the contract. If, at the time of termination, the hedging derivative
instrument is in a liability position, Home Forward would be liable to the counterparty for payment of the absolute
value of the swap position.



Rollover risk – Rollover risk occurs when the expiration of the swap agreement occurs before the end of the
termination of the underlying debt. Home Forward is exposed to rollover risk. The swap on the Cecilia bond
terminates in July 2021 and the final bond payment is due in January 2035. The swap on the Trouton bond
terminates in July 2022 and the final bond payment is due in April 2037. The swap on the Ashcreek bond
terminates in March 2014, on the same date as the final bond payment. The swap on the New Market West bond
terminates in August 2023 and the final bond payment is due in August 2038.



Interest rate risk – Home Forward’s swaps are structured to reduce Home Forward’s exposure to interest rate risk
by converting a variable rate to a fixed rate.



Market access risk – Market access risk is the risk that a government will not be able to enter credit markets or
that credit will become more costly. The ability to sell auction rate securities in an auction may be adversely
affected if there are not sufficient buyers walling to purchase all the auction rate securities at a rate equal to or less
than the ARS maximum rate. In the event of failed auctions, the bonds may default to a higher rate as defined in
the bonds’ official statements.

15. RETIREMENT PLAN
Plan Description – Home Forward is a participating employer in the State of Oregon Public Employee’s Retirement
System (“PERS.”) PERS, a component unit of the State of Oregon, issues a comprehensive annual financial report, which
may be obtained by writing to Public Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, Oregon, 97281-3700, or by
calling 1-888-320-7377. As noted in the PERS 2012 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report:
The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS or “the System”) provides statewide defined benefit
retirement plans for units of state government, political subdivisions, community colleges, and school districts. PERS
is administered under Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 238, Chapter 238A, and Internal Revenue Code
Section 401(a) by the Public Employees Retirement Board (Board.)
The 1995 Legislature enacted Chapter 654, Section 3, Oregon Laws 1995, which has been codified into ORS 238.435.
This legislation created a second tier of benefits for those who established membership on or after January 1, 1996.
The second tier does not have the Tier One assumed earnings rate guarantee and has a higher normal retirement age
of 60, compared to 58 for Tier One.
The 2003 Legislature enacted HB 2020, codified as ORS 238A, which created the Oregon Public Service Retirement
Plan (OPSRP). OPSRP consists of the Pension Program (defined benefit) and the Individual Account Program
(defined contribution). Membership includes public employees hired on or after August 29, 2003.
Beginning January 1, 2004, PERS active Tier One and Tier Two members became members of the Individual Account
Program (IAP) of OPSRP. PERS members retain their existing PERS accounts, but member contributions are now
deposited into the member’s IAP account, not into the member’s PERS account. Accounts are credited with earnings
and losses net of administrative expenses. OPSRP is part of PERS and is administered by the Board. The PERS Board
is directed to adopt any rules necessary to administer OPSRP, and such rules are to be considered part of the plan for
IRS purposes.
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PERS Pension (Defined Benefits)

Home Forward is a participant of the PERS pension program, an agent multiple-employer plan for those
employees hired prior to August 29, 2003. PERS benefits, as described by the PERS 2012 Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report are as follows:
Pension Benefits
The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected from 13 retirement benefit options.
These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on years of service and
final average salary. A percentage...( 1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the number of years
of service and the final average salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for
members who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if a greater benefit results.
Monthly payments must be a minimum of $200 per month or the member will receive a lump-sum payment of the
actuarial equivalence of benefits to which he or she is entitled.
A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement allowance if
he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing
employment with a participating employer. General service employees may retire after reaching age 55. Tier One
general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years of
service. Tier Two members are eligible for full benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension
Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.
Death Benefits
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from
employer funds equal to the account balance, provided one or more of the following conditions are met:
• the member was employed by a PERS employer at the time of death,
• the member died within 120 days after termination of PERS-covered employment,
• the member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in an PERS-covered job, or
• the member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death.
A member’s beneficiary may choose a monthly payment for life instead of the lump-sum or a combination of lumpsum and monthly payments, if eligible. The monthly payment must be a minimum of $30 per month for deaths that
occur July 30, 2003, and earlier; $200 per month for deaths that occur after July 30, 2003.
Disability Benefits
A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from other than duty-connected causes
may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a
member for disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either a nonduty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members) when determining the
monthly benefit.
Benefit Changes After Retirement
Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities investment account after retiring and may
experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market value of equity investments.
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Monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes. Two percent per year is the maximum cost-ofliving adjustment.
OPSRP Pension Programs

Home Forward is a participant of the OPSRP pension programs, a hybrid defined benefit/defined contribution
plan for those employees hired after August 29, 2003. OPSRP benefits, as described by the PERS 2012
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report are as follows:
OPSRP Pension Benefits (Defined Benefit)
This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions. Benefits are calculated with the
following formula for members who attain normal retirement age:
General service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Normal
retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit.
A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member
completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age,
and, if the pension program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.
Death Benefits
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally required to be treated in
the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the
deceased member. The surviving spouse or other person may elect to delay payment of the death benefit, but payment
must commence no later than December 31 of the calendar year in which the member would have reached 70½ years.
Disability Benefits
A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member becomes disabled or a member
who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary
determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability occurred.
OPSRP Individual Account Program (Defined Contribution)
Pension Benefits
Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP) may receive the amounts in his or her
employee account, rollover account, and employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a 5-,
10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 minimum distribution
limit.
An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the rollover account
was established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on
the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years,
the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the date the active member
becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies.
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Death Benefits
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s account balance,
rollover account balance, and employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired member dies before the
installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments or choose a
lump-sum payment.
Risk Pooling – In 2001, the Oregon legislature amended ORS 238.227 allowing for local government entities to pool
their PERS pension assets and liabilities with the State of Oregon and other organizations joining the pool. Contribution
rates are actuarially determined based on the experience of the overall pool as opposed to the potentially more volatile
experience of the individual member. On January 19, 2010, Home Forward’s Board of Commissioners approved Home
Forward’s inclusion in the State & Local Government Rate Pool (SLGRP).
Funding Status – Employees who are OPSRP members are required by State statute to contribute 6.0% of their salary to
OPSRP and employers may agree to pay this required contribution. Home Forward pays the employees’ required
contribution. Additionally, employers are required to contribute actuarially computed amounts as determined by PERS on
actuarial valuations performed at least every two years. Rates are subject to change as a result of subsequent actuarial
valuations and legislative actions.
Employer contribution rates in effect July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2013 are:
Actuarial
Period
Ending

Tier 1/
Tier 2

Pension contribution rate
Retiree healthcare rate
Total employer contribution

9.92%
0.59%
10.51%

OPSRP
7.87%
0.50%
8.37%

Employer contribution rates in effect July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2011 were:
Actuarial
Period
Ending

Tier 1/
Tier 2

Pension contribution rate
Retiree healthcare rate
Total employer contribution

7.80%
0.29%
8.09%

OPSRP
8.85%
0.19%
9.04%

The amount to be contributed by Home Forward for the years ended March 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was approximately,
$2,163,000, $2,195,000, and $1,968,000, respectively, which represents the required contributions for both the employee
and the employer in each of the years presented. The balance of PERS payable as of March 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011,
respectively, was $176,268, $208,547, and $181,747, respectively. This balance is recorded in other accrued liabilities on
the financial statement.
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Actuarial
Period
Ending
3/31/2013
3/31/2012
3/31/2011

Required
Employer
Contributions

Required
Employee
Contributions

Contributions
Paid

$

$

$

1,322,572
1,329,031
1,157,193

840,618
865,673
810,643

2,130,910
2,167,904
1,945,421

Draft for Home Forward
Board of Commissioners

% of Actual
Contributions
to Required
Contributions
99%
99%
99%

Balance of
OPERS
Payable
$

176,268
208,547
181,747

Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits

Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA)
As a member of PERS, Home Forward contributes to the Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its
eligible employees. RHIA is a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit other post-employment benefit (OPEB)
plan administered by PERS. RHIA pays a monthly contribution toward the cost of Medicare companion health insurance
premiums of eligible retirees. Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 238.420 established this trust fund. The Oregon legislature
has the ability to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the RHIA. The plan closed to new entrants after August 29,
2003.
ORS require that an amount equal to $60 or the total monthly cost of Medicare companion health insurance premium
coverage, whichever is less, shall be paid from the RHIA, established by the employer, and any monthly cost in excess of
$60 shall be paid by the eligible retired member in the manner provided in ORS 238.410. To be eligible to receive this
monthly payment the member must 1) have eight years or more of qualifying service in PERS at the time of retirement or
receive a disability allowance as if the member had eight years or more of creditable service in PERS, 2) receive both
Medicare Parts A and B coverage, and 3) enroll in a PERS sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or dependent of a
deceased PERS retiree who was eligible to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the benefit if he or she is receiving a
retirement benefit or allowance from PERS or was insured at the time the member died and the member retired before
May 1, 1991.
Employer contributions are advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis. There is no inflation assumption for RHIA
postemployment benefits because the payment amount is set by statute and is not adjusted for increases in healthcare costs.
Participating employees are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed each year by PERS, currently
0.59% of annual covered PERS payroll and 0.50% of OPSRP payroll. The PERS board sets the employer contribution rate
based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employers, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover
normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. Home
Forward’s contributions to RHIA for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were approximately, $138,000,
$124,000, and $67,000, respectively.

Retiree access to Home Forward health care plans (Implicit Benefit subsidy)
As a condition of participation in PERS, Home Forward is required to offer healthcare insurance coverage to retirees and
their spouses until the retired employee reaches the age for obtaining Medicare coverage. Under this requirement, the
employer is required to provide access to the same plan(s) available for current employees. Though Home Forward does
not pay any portion of the retiree’s healthcare insurance, the retired employee receives an implicit benefit of a lower
healthcare premium which is subsidized among the premium cost of coverage for active employees.
As Home Forward pays none of premium of health insurance coverage for retirees from age 58 to 65, Home Forward has
not established and does not intend to establish a trust fund to supplement the costs for other post-employment benefit
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obligation related to this implicit benefit. Home Forward’s regular health care benefit providers underwrite the retirees’
policies. Retirees may not convert the benefit into an in lieu payment to secure coverage under independent plans. At
March 31, 2012, there were 10 retirees and/or surviving spouses receiving the post-employment implicit healthcare
benefit.
Home Forward’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC) an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the guidelines of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level
of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years.
Actuarial
Period
Ending

Annual
OPEB
Cost

3/31/2013
3/31/2012
3/31/2011

$

Contributions
Paid

174,903
90,677
91,633

$

Contributions
to Required
Contributions

49,136
35,653
37,109

28%
39%
40%

Balance of
PERS
Payable
$

March 31,
2013
Annual required contribution
Interest on NET OPEB obligation
Adjustment to ARC for NET OPEB obligation
Annual OPEB cost

$

Contributions made
Increase in net OPEB obligation

March 31,
2012

180,193
8,125
(13,415)
174,903

$

(49,136)
125,767

Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year
Net OPEB Obligation - end of year

$

396,600
270,833
215,809

94,461
7,553
(11,337)
90,677
(35,653)
55,024

270,833
396,600

215,809
$ 270,833

Funding Progress for implicit benefit subsidy based on most recent actuarial valuation is as follows:

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
3/31/2013

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(UAAL)

$ 1,813,482

$ 1,813,482

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
$

-

Funded
ratio
0%

Covered
Payroll
$

14,527,714

UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
12%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve the estimated value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events into the future. The status of funding levels and annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to ongoing review and updates based on past history and revised
assumptions of future events. These include assumptions about earnings rates, healthcare cost trends, project
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life expectancy of plan members, withdrawals, retirements, etc. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility, and are subject to revisions as a result of past experience and new estimates about the future. The
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements, presents trend information on the actuarial value of plan assets compared to actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions for PERS/OPSRP/RHIA
Certain actuarial methods and assumptions for PERS, OPSRP and RHIA from the provided actuarial report ended
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 and used to calculate the above activity, includes:
Actuarial cost method
Asset valuation method
Tier 1/Tier 2 UAL and Retiree
Healthcare UAL amortization

OPSRP UAL Amortization

Investment return
Interest crediting

Consumer price inflation
Future general wage inflation
Healthcare cost inflation

Projected unit credit
Market value of assets
The Tier 1/Tier 2 regular UAL and Retiree Healthcare UAL are
amortized as a level percentage of combined valuation payroll over a
closed period. For the Tier 1/Tier 2 UAL, the amortization period is 20
years; for Retiree Healthcare, it is 10 years. Gains and losses between
odd-year valuations are amortized as a level percentage of combined
valuation payroll over 20 years (10 for Retiree Healthcare) from the oddyear valuation in which they are first recognized.
Gains and losses between odd-year valuations are amortized as a level
percentage of combined valuation payroll over 16 years from the oddyear valuation in which they are first recognized
8.0% compounded annually on system assets
8.0% compounded annually on members’ regular account balances
8.25% in 2011 and 8.25% in 2010 compounded annually on members’
variable account balances.
2.75% per year
3.75% per year
Graded from 6.9% in 2011 to 7.0% in 2010

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions for Implicit Benefit subsidy
Certain actuarial assumptions for the Implicit Benefit subsidy calculation are from the actuarial report ended March 31,
2013 and used to calculate the above activity includes:
Actuarial cost method
Asset valuation method
Investment return
Interest rate discount
Medical cost annual trend rate
Dental cost annual trend rate
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16. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
Home Forward offers employees an optional deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plan, available to all Home Forward’s employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary to
future years. Annual deferrals are limited to the lesser of $17,500 or 100% of includable compensation. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. This plan is
administered by a third-party and is not included in Home Forward’s basic financial statements.
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17. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The Authority is the General Partner and holds a 0.01% to 0.1% interest in each of the following limited partnerships (see Note 2 and Note 7). Summarized partnership
information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows:
Lovejoy
Station

Union
Station A LIH

St. Francis

Cecilia

Trouton

Civic
Redevelopment

Woolsey

Humboldt
Gardens

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments (Restricted)- Short Term
Accounts receivables and other assets
Investments (Restricted)- Long Term
Deferred charges - net
Capital assets - net

$

705,179
744,099
1,240,352
23,370
359,200
12,583,394

$

TOTAL

534,114
545,125

$

$

296,304
1,027,862
28,148
219,843
15,778,411

$

195,937
1,160,338
40,290
636,147
35,615,020

$

548,437
927,418
20,226
157,833
16,557,554

$

122,555
1,115,039
24,744
812,273
17,037,781

$

143,279
1,465,162
40,220
266,750
27,376,085

$

15,655,593

$

7,200,149

$

10,202,083

$

17,350,568

$

37,647,732

$

18,211,468

$

19,112,391

$

29,291,496

$

1,446,980
14,681,533
(472,920)

$

650,162
6,509,989
39,998

$

567,304
7,658,354
1,976,425

$

364,208
14,848,259
2,138,101

$

462,975
32,631,569
4,553,188

$

203,884
4,971,337
13,036,247

$

2,403,870
13,474,630
3,233,891

$

221,172
20,617,032
8,453,292

TOTAL

$

15,655,593

$

7,200,149

$

10,202,083

$

17,350,568

$

37,647,732

$

18,211,468

$

19,112,391

$

29,291,496

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

$

1,999,123
(1,082,620)
916,503

$

1,361,549
(1,114,416)
247,133

$

$

1,064,134
(1,829,347)
(765,213)

$

2,002,655
(3,543,953)
(1,541,298)

$

963,869
(1,784,499)
(820,630)

$

1,228,778
(1,428,387)
(199,609)

$

839,842
(1,999,387)
(1,159,545)

24,309
472,680
139,176
5,484,744

36,934
646,607
93,044
77,498
9,348,000

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Net position

Nonoperating revenues
Nonoperating expenses
Loss before capital contributions
Partner contributions
Change in net position

57,859
(807,370)
166,992

$

166,992

22,615
(291,995)
(22,247)

$

(22,247)

1,237,446
(987,014)
250,432
544
(219,543)
31,433

$

31,433

1,261
(298,711)
(1,062,663)

$

(1,062,663)

1,243
(472,569)
(2,012,624)

$

(2,012,624)

1,466
(208,238)
(1,027,402)

$

(1,027,402)

1,227
(815,888)
(1,014,270)

$

(1,014,270)

119
(260,615)
(1,420,041)

$

(1,420,041)
(continued)
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1115 SW 11th
Avenue

RAC
Housing

Stephens Creek
Crossing- South *

Stephens Creek
Crossing- North *

All other
partnerships

Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments (Restricted)- Short Term
Accounts receivables and other assets
Investments (Restricted)- Long Term
Deferred charges - net
Capital assets - net

$

TOTAL

$

184,530
544,282
20,082
53,835
14,833,781

$

15,636,510

$

510,728
737,353
37,493
79,214
35,200,173

$

36,564,961

$

483,002

$

$

984,593
3,018,805
70,618
481,843
672,225
580,356
47,620,577

$

5,269,524
11,932,090
1,310,969
2,158,184
1,144,905
3,463,506
247,943,823

$

53,429,017

$

273,223,002

1,015,236
45,091
6,909,203

309,178
36,291
3,599,101
4,427,572

523,932

$

8,493,462

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
8,493,462
2,337,983
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Net position

$

168,966
12,319,077
3,148,467

$

745,589
8,635,910
27,183,462

$

413,754
3,485,366
528,452

$

925,041
6,767,480
800,941

$

3,678,240
43,706,601
6,044,176

$

12,252,145
190,307,137
70,663,720

TOTAL

$

15,636,510

$

36,564,961

$

4,427,572

$

8,493,462

$

53,429,017

$

273,223,002

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

$

758,149
(1,211,614)
(453,465)

$

1,258,232
(3,570,864)
(2,312,632)

$

$

5,964,011
(6,384,115)
(420,104)

$

18,677,786
(24,986,216)
(6,308,430)

Nonoperating revenues
Nonoperating expenses
Loss before capital contributions
Partner contributions
Change in net position

514
(15,318)
(468,269)

$

(468,269)

20
(67,280)
(2,379,892)

$

20,048,478
17,668,586

(1)
(13,115)
(13,116)

$

1
(13,115)

$

541,567
528,452

(1)
(36,885)
(36,886)
1
(36,885)

$

837,826
800,941

33,961
(1,521,278)
(1,907,421)

$

(185,742)
(2,093,163)

120,829
(4,978,803)
(11,166,404)

$

21,242,129
10,075,725

*Unaudited
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Years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

The Authority is the General Partner and holds a 0.01% to 1% interest in each of the following limited partnerships (see Note 2 and Note 7). Summarized partnership
information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows:
Lovejoy
Station

Union
Station A LIH

St. Francis

Cecilia

Trouton

Woolsey

Civic
Redevelopment

Humboldt
Gardens

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments (Restricted)- Short Term
Accounts receivables and other assets
Investments (Restricted)- Long Term
Deferred charges - net
Capital assets - net

$

523,557
712,491
1,247,709
35,704
379,453
12,965,888

$

498,261
501,093
14,468
472,680
149,653
5,861,164

$

15,309
602,605
111,837
84,200
9,826,455

$

367,431
995,620
47,039
231,884
16,690,192

$

283,600
1,090,807
80,149
665,678
37,495,274

$

591,063
891,017
32,249
168,776
17,509,911

$

145,241
922,125
16,643
851,642
17,851,817

$

177,317
1,385,532
33,762
280,675
28,616,888

TOTAL

$

15,864,803

$

7,497,319

$

10,640,406

$

18,332,166

$

39,615,508

$

19,193,016

$

19,787,469

$

30,494,174

$

1,389,356
15,115,359
(639,912)

$

623,853
6,811,221
62,245

$

572,655
8,122,759
1,944,992

$

328,010
14,803,392
3,200,764

$

496,475
32,553,221
6,565,812

$

180,057
4,949,310
14,063,649

$

1,014,033
14,525,275
4,248,161

$

136,470
20,484,371
9,873,333

TOTAL

$

15,864,803

$

7,497,319

$

10,640,406

$

18,332,166

$

39,615,508

$

19,193,016

$

19,787,469

$

30,494,174

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

$

1,843,365
(1,112,230)
731,135

$

1,287,136
(1,091,300)
195,836

$

1,288,441
(1,011,871)
276,570

$

1,086,108
(1,728,412)
(642,304)

$

2,016,109
(3,510,954)
(1,494,845)

$

980,188
(1,796,776)
(816,588)

$

1,246,444
(1,411,914)
(165,470)

$

906,175
(2,008,944)
(1,102,769)

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
PARTNERS' CAPITAL (DEFICIT)

Nonoperating revenues
Nonoperating expenses
Loss before capital contributions
Partner contributions
Change in net position

59,993
(827,323)
(36,195)

$

(36,195)

9,302
(292,974)
(87,836)

$

(87,836)

899
(239,921)
37,548

$

37,548

1,703
(302,417)
(943,018)

$

(943,018)

1,613
(478,401)
(1,971,633)

$

(1,971,633)

2,986
(201,252)
(1,014,854)

$

(1,014,854)

2,389
(1,421,396)
(1,584,477)

$

(1,584,477)

2,328
(260,295)
(1,360,736)

$

(1,360,736)
(continued)
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Years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

1115 SW 11th
Avenue

RAC
Housing*

All other
partnerships

Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments (Restricted)- Short Term
Accounts receivables and other assets
Investments (Restricted)- Long Term
Deferred charges - net
Capital assets - net

$

209,633
509,122
(79,669)
56,746
15,485,651

$

1,691,954
911,528
301,462
97,242
37,216,824

$

1,110,696
2,976,071
64,274
511,837
672,225
621,100
51,214,617

$

5,614,062
11,498,011
1,311,983
1,105,481
1,144,905
3,587,049
250,734,682

TOTAL

$

16,181,483

$

40,219,010

$

57,170,820

$

274,996,173

$

90,982
12,473,765
3,616,736

$

23,510,489
7,193,645
9,514,876

$

3,811,691
45,221,789
8,137,339

$

32,154,071
182,254,107
60,587,995

TOTAL

$

16,181,483

$

40,219,010

$

57,170,819

$

274,996,173

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

$

739,446
(1,171,019)
(431,573)

$

529,515
(2,323,353)
(1,793,838)

$

5,854,554
(6,523,591)
(669,037)

$

17,777,481
(23,690,364)
(5,912,883)

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
PARTNERS' CAPITAL (DEFICIT)

Nonoperating revenues
Nonoperating expenses
Loss before capital contributions
Partner contributions
Change in net position

967
(266,603)
(697,209)

$

3,937,662
3,240,453

1,060
(347,906)
(2,140,684)

$

3,721,993
1,581,309

(50,670)
(1,547,358)
(2,267,065)

$

171,000
(2,096,065)

32,570
(6,185,846)
(12,066,159)

$

7,830,655
(4,235,504)

* Audited for the period from inception at March 19, 2008 to December 31, 2011
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Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

Summarized Capital assets – Discretely presented component units
Land, structures, and equipment activity of the discretely presented component units was as follows for the years ended
December 31:
Balance
December 31, 2011
$
13,904,969
22,794
13,927,763

Additions and
Transfer in
$
10,870,941
10,870,941

Disposals and
Transfer out
$
(188,664)
(380,331)
(568,995)

Balance
December 31, 2012
$
13,716,305
10,513,404
24,229,709

Buildings and improvements
equipment

298,902,872
11,826,452
310,729,324

135,452
143,052
278,504

(2,228,960)
(96,395)
(2,325,355)

296,809,364
11,873,109
308,682,473

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated

(73,922,405)
236,806,919

1,233,271
(1,092,084)

(84,968,358)
223,714,115

Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

(12,279,224)
(12,000,720)

Total capital assets, net

$

Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Balance
December 31, 2010
$
13,897,871
33,440,983
47,338,854

Additions and
Transfer in
$
7,098
8,481,703
8,488,801

Disposals and
Transfer out
$
(41,899,892)
(41,899,892)

Balance
December 31, 2011
$
13,904,969
22,794
13,927,763

Buildings and improvements
Equipment

264,665,018
7,294,263
271,959,281

34,440,538
4,541,277
38,981,815

(202,684)
(9,088)
(211,772)

298,902,872
11,826,452
310,729,324

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated

(62,536,184)
209,423,097

(11,495,284)
27,486,531

109,063
(102,709)

(73,922,405)
236,806,919

Total capital assets, net

$

250,734,682

$

256,761,951

$

(1,129,779)

$

35,975,332

$

(1,661,079)

(42,002,601)

$

$

247,943,824

250,734,682

Summarized notes payable – Discretely presented component units
Notes payable of the discretely presented component units consist of the following:

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Notes payable - General Partner
Mortgages and other housing related notes

$

143,269,524
39,814,901

$

149,582,020
46,887,346

Total Notes payable

$

183,084,425

$

196,469,366
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Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

A summary of activity of the discretely presented component units’ notes payable is as follows:
Balance
December 31, 2011

$

196,469,366

Increase

$

Balance
December 31, 2010

$

196,665,090

9,311,878

Increase

$

13,688,045

Decrease

$ (22,696,819)

Decrease

$ (13,883,769)

Balance
December 31, 2012

$

183,084,425

Balance
December 31, 2011

$

196,469,366

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases - At March 31, 2012, Home Forward has approximately 8,620 dwelling units under lease to Section 8 landlords.
The terms of these leases extend up to one year. Additionally, Home Forward has placed public housing units inside tax
credit properties and support these units with public housing subsidy transfers to those properties. Housing assistance
payments under these leases or public housing subsidy transfers, including FSS program contributions, for the years ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012 were approximately $68,561,000 and $67,785,000, respectively.
Construction Commitments - At March 31, 2013, Home Forward had construction commitments of approximately
$17,288.908.
Contingent Liabilities - Home Forward has entered into long-term use agreements with the City of Portland, Multnomah
County and the State of Oregon in exchange for development funds for group homes and other projects. These agreements
expire between 2019 and 2065. Repayment of an amortized portion of these funds is required if Home Forward does not
use the properties according to their intended purposes. Home Forward has not and does not intend to violate those
agreements. The liability, if recorded, would be approximately $4,984,474.
General Partner Operating Deficit Guarantees - In relation to the performance of the tax credit partnerships for which
Home Forward is the general partner, Home Forward has agreed to provide certain levels of funding in the event of
partnership operating deficits that exceed operating reserves. The maximum amount required to fund excess operating
deficits ranges from zero to the total amount of the excess operating deficit for a single partnership. As of March 31, 2013,
no additional liability existed relating to excess operating deficits for any of the partnerships.
19. RISK MANAGEMENT
Home Forward operates in an industry subject to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage, destruction, errors
and omissions, injuries to employees or participants, and natural disasters. As such, Home Forward utilizes several
insurance providers to reduce agency risk of loss.
Home Forward is a member of the Housing Authorities Risk Retention Pool (“HARRP”), a risk pool currently operating
as a common risk management and insurance program for approximately 90 public housing authorities throughout
California, Nevada, Oregon and Washington. HARRP is self-sustaining through member premiums and reinsures through
commercial companies for claims in excess of predetermined limits for each insured event. Risks insured for public
housing properties include blanket coverage for buildings and business personal property of approximately $255,089,000
and $5,494,000 respectively.
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HARRP coverage as of March 31, 2013, includes:

Liabilities

Deductible

Propety liability
Employee dishonesty
Forgery or Alteration
Theft of money or securities
Business auto liability

$

5,000
1,000
1,000
1,000
250

Coverage
$

2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
100,000
2,000,000

For Home Forward owned affordable properties (non-public housing), Home Forward uses Affordable Housing Risk Pool
(“AHRP”), a subsidiary of HARRP, and HARRP to provide commercial insurance.
AHRP provides general liability coverage for 19 affordable properties for $2,000,000 per incident/ unlimited aggregate.
AHRP also provides blanket coverage for building property for 2 properties for approximately $14,289,000.
HARRP provides blanket coverage for buildings and business personal property for 18 affordable properties for
approximately $126,156,000 and $474,000, respectively. HARRP provides general liability coverage for 1 affordable
property for $2,000,000 per incident/ unlimited aggregate
Home Forward contracts with Liberty Northwest to provide Worker’s Compensation and Employer Liability coverage of
$1,000,000 per incident with no deductible.
There have been no significant modifications in coverage in insurance coverage from the previous year and settlements
have not exceeded coverage during the last three years. Home Forward has one claims liability as of March 31, 2013.
20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On September 1, 2013, Home Forward transferred ownership of four Public Housing buildings to Home Forward
Development Enterprises (HFDE). HFDE is the repurposed and renamed N4C. These buildings are Hollywood East,
Northwest Towers, Gallagher Plaza, and Sellwood Center. The funding for these buildings switched from Public
Operating Subsidy to Project Based Section 8 Vouchers. HFDE will operate these four buildings until the buildings are
transferred into Low Income Housing Tax Credits Partnerships with Home Forward as general partner.
Home Forward has evaluated subsequent events through September 16, 2013, the date on which the financial statements
were issued. Other than as discussed above, during this period no material subsequent events occurred which would
require recognition or disclosure.
*****
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
Schedule of funding progress presented below provides a consolidated review of Home Forward’s ability to meet current
and future liabilities with the plan assets.
Schedule of Funding Progress – OPEB Implicit Benefit subsidy
The last actuarial report performed as of:

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
3/31/2013
3/31/2011
3/31/2010

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
$

-

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(UAAL)

$ 1,813,482
912,321
1,115,771

$ 1,813,482
912,321
1,115,771

Home Forward Board of Commissioners
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Funded
ratio
0%
0%
0%

Covered
Payroll
$

14,527,714
13,500,000
12,200,000

UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
12%
7%
9%
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HOME FORWARD
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION- AFFORDABLE HOUSING
As of March 31, 2013

Grace Peck
Terrace

Multnomah
Manor

The
Plaza

Rosenbaum
Plaza

St. Johns
Woods

Unthank
Plaza

Helen
Swindells

Dawson
Park

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted
Investments
Investments - Restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Interproperty receivable
Prepaid expenses
Current portion of notes
receivable-partnerships

$

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Investment- Restricted
Due from partnerships, net
Notes receivable and accrued interest receivable
Notes receivable -partnerships
Deferred charges, net
Investment in partnerships
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

TOTAL ASSETS BEFORE DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

$

4,695,855
237,279
5,830
8,796

$

(51,690)
295,711
1,618
-

$

(91,551)
260,885
6,842
1,525

$

1,721,528
105,754
5,902
7,049

$

434,327
581,476
3,819
11,113

$

2,824,651
208,194
2,896
6,895

$

(88,689)
387,755
8,330
14,533

$

(187,345)
296,373
538
7,497

4,947,760

245,639

177,701

1,840,233

1,030,735

3,042,636

321,929

117,063

157,490
477,781
635,271

26,772
315,722
1,631,202
1,973,696

286,680
1,359,803
1,646,483

49,999
636,740
686,739

81,624
793,538
2,470,756
3,345,918

68,201
568,305
636,506

2,615
432,879
2,165,866
2,601,360

43,035
138,456
1,374,259
1,555,750

5,583,031

2,219,335

1,824,184

2,526,972

4,376,653

3,679,142

2,923,289

1,672,813

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,583,031

$

2,219,335

$

1,824,184

$

2,526,972

$

4,376,653

$

3,679,142

$

2,923,289

$

1,672,813

(continued)
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HOME FORWARD
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION- AFFORDABLE HOUSING
As of March 31, 2013

Grace Peck
Terrace

Multnomah
Manor

The
Plaza

Rosenbaum
Plaza

St. Johns
Woods

Unthank
Plaza

Helen
Swindells

Dawson
Park

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deposits, payable from restricted assets
Current portion of bonds payable-partnerships
Current portion of notes and
bonds payable

$

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Bonds payable-partnerships
Accrued interest - long-term
Other liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCESAND NET POSITION

$

Home Forward Board of Commissioners
September 2013

27,000
1,803
16,573
-

$

4,467
6,759
3,256
23,697
-

$

26,581
1,237
7,303
141
18,049
-

$

19,125
2,048
7,572
-

$

30,326
42,587
1,362
2,821
25,376
-

$

2,444
21,910
812
13,819
-

$

26,654
840
4,497
41,809
-

$

10,038
41,183
6,136
29,477
-

45,376

25,177
63,356

72,437
125,748

28,745

145,000
247,472

38,985

73,800

96,367
183,201

-

1,176,507
1,176,507

139,567
139,567

-

3,052,525
3,052,525

-

2,084,322
1,134,487
3,218,809

545,227
1,671,644
15,057
2,231,928

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

45,376

1,239,863

265,315

28,745

3,299,997

38,985

3,292,609

2,415,129

5,537,655

979,472

1,558,869

2,498,227

1,076,656

3,640,157

5,583,031

$

2,219,335

$

1,824,184

$

2,526,972

$

4,376,653

$

3,679,142

(369,320)

$

2,923,289

(742,316)

$

1,672,813
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HOME FORWARD
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION- AFFORDABLE HOUSING
As of March 31, 2013

Pearl
Court

Fenwick
Avenue

Ainsworth
Court

Fairview
Oaks

Rockwood
Station

Pine
Square

Willow
Tree

Ash
Creek

1,350,096
394,342
6,662
19,220

$ (1,582,321)
174,860
-

$ (1,678,275)
120,775
3,190
-

(1,407,461)

(1,554,310)

(1,350,670)

18,800
162,767
1,984,448
2,166,015

20,286
363,580
1,852,742
2,236,608

611,705

885,938

-

51,894

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted
Investments
Investments - Restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Interproperty receivable
Prepaid expenses
Current portion of notes
receivable-partnerships

$

936,231
934,526
3,245
18,808
1,892,810

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Investment- Restricted
Due from partnerships, net
Notes receivable and accrued interest receivable
Notes receivable -partnerships
Deferred charges, net
Investment in partnerships
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

TOTAL ASSETS BEFORE DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

$

(103,199)
81,220
868
1,950

$

(19,161)

(209,951)
598,908
1,790
7,356

$

1,070,613
852,767
18,676
29,409

$

398,103

1,971,465

1,770,320

110,332
766,151
4,621,575
5,498,058

17,121
292,242
2,210,051
2,519,414

44,712
1,115,633
2,425,295
3,585,640

547,196
943,432
8,574,859
10,065,487

600
252,713
702,002
4,141,048
5,096,363

7,390,868

2,500,253

3,983,743

12,036,952

6,866,683

-

-

-

-

-

Deferred outflows of resources
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

$

7,390,868

$

2,500,253

$

3,983,743

$

12,036,952

$

6,866,683

-

(1,407,461)
-

$ (1,407,461)

$

611,705

$

$

(1,413,711)
59,387
1,413
2,241

937,832
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HOME FORWARD
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION- AFFORDABLE HOUSING
As of March 31, 2013

Pearl
Court

Fenwick
Avenue

Ainsworth
Court

Fairview
Oaks

Rockwood
Station

Pine
Square

Willow
Tree

Ash
Creek

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deposits, payable from restricted assets
Current portion of bonds payable-partnerships
Current portion of notes and
bonds payable

$

26,604
56,676
35,592
100,636
-

$

15,583
4,664
156
9,450
-

$

13,865
36,530
7,199
48,854
-

$

35,427
35,647
2,500
6,713
238,711
-

$

16,874
14,319
3,159
102,813
-

$

-

$

77,954
2,464
85
4,306
5,600
-

$

88,150
7,150
52,255
311
8,000
-

314,971
534,479

45,687
75,540

110,000
216,448

183,358
502,356

73,653
210,818

-

17,157
107,566

2,110,052
2,265,918

913,951
4,575,000
328,681
5,817,632

2,652,381
2,652,381

1,400,000
2,400,426
3,800,426

11,765,323
11,765,323

4,725,981
4,725,981

-

830,091
830,091

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

51,894

Total liabilities

6,352,111

2,727,921

4,016,874

12,267,679

4,936,799

-

937,657

2,265,918

NET POSITION

1,038,757

(325,952)

(1,328,086)

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Bonds payable-partnerships
Accrued interest - long-term
Other liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCESAND NET POSITION

$

7,390,868
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(227,668)

$

2,500,253

(33,131)

$

3,983,743

(230,727)

$

12,036,952

$

1,929,884

(1,407,461)

6,866,683

$ (1,407,461)

$

611,705

$

-

937,832
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HOME FORWARD
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION- AFFORDABLE HOUSING
As of March 31, 2013

Schiller
Way

Peter
Paulson

Kelly
Place

Hillsdale
Duplexs

Trouton
Commercial

Affordable
Housing
Management

Yards
at Union Station

Eliminations

Totals

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted
Investments
Investments - Restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Interproperty receivable
Prepaid expenses
Current portion of notes
receivable-partnerships

$

(356,458)
50,012
283
3,075
(303,088)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Investment- Restricted
Due from partnerships, net
Notes receivable and accrued interest receivable
Notes receivable -partnerships
Deferred charges, net
Investment in partnerships
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

TOTAL ASSETS BEFORE DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

$

(89,996)
332,553
2,450
7,829

$

34,153
79,889
148
2,674

$

479,313
-

$

(78,195)
157
480

$

467,482
1,035,901
781
25,190

252,836

116,864

479,313

(77,558)

1,529,354

48,707
1,470,809
1,519,516

930
285,851
2,367,047
2,653,828

4,984
188,665
945,433
1,139,082

-

(4,790)
4,550
(240)

136,557
592,500
4,789,792
5,518,849

1,216,428

2,906,664

1,255,946

479,313

(77,798)

7,048,203

-

-

-

-

Deferred outflows of resources
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

$

1,216,428

$

2,906,664

$

1,255,946

$

479,313

-

$

(77,798)

$

7,048,203

$

(5,839,934)

(43,207)

-

(5,129,078)

$

-

$

(43,207)

2,226,912
6,913,707
223,113
175,640
9,539,372

-

(5,129,078)

$

(43,207)
(43,207)

232,356
478,500
710,856

-

$

(5,812,749)
147,675
(174,860)
-

228,166
478,500
1,307,677
7,704,495
46,072,361
55,791,199

$

65,330,571

$

51,894

$

65,382,465
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HOME FORWARD
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION- AFFORDABLE HOUSING
As of March 31, 2013

Schiller
Way

Peter
Paulson

Kelly
Place

Hillsdale
Duplexs

Trouton
Commercial

Affordable
Housing
Management

Yards
at Union Station

Eliminations

Totals

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deposits, payable from restricted assets
Current portion of bonds payable-partnerships
Current portion of notes and
bonds payable

$

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Bonds payable-partnerships
Accrued interest - long-term
Other liabilities

4,892
2,600
112
6,576
-

2,042
1,776
639
5,800
-

$

-

$

4,258
-

$

39,551
107,370
27,572
83,337
-

$

49,105
51,532
491,304
-

$

-

$

489,396
360,962
183,912
599,780
821,104
-

17,465
27,722

-

4,258

302,194
560,024

591,941

-

3,559,144
6,014,298

1,233,027
1,233,027

1,960,936
1,314,728
3,275,664

377,831
377,831

-

-

1,322,344
5,165,000
6,487,344

10,231
10,231

-

31,127,488
16,864,595
2,792,953
10,231
50,795,267

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

51,894

1,292,833

3,326,403

405,553

-

4,258

7,047,368

602,172

-

56,809,565

850,393

479,313

(76,405)

$

$

50,739

NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCESAND NET POSITION

14,581
1,203
34,955
-

45,626
59,806

Deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities

$

1,216,428
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(419,739)

$

2,906,664

$

1,255,946

$

479,313

(82,056)

$

(77,798)

835

$

7,048,203

(5,731,250)

$

(5,129,078)

(43,207)

$

(43,207)

8,572,900

$

65,382,465
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Year ended March 31, 2013

Grace Peck
Terrace

OPERATING REVENUES:
Dwelling rental
Non-dwelling rental
HUD operating subsidies
HUD grants
Other

$

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Housing assistance payments
Administration
Tenant services
Utilities
Maintenance
Depreciation
General
Impairment loss
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income
Interest expense
Investment in partnership valuation charge
Amortization
Loss on disposal of assets

213,727
19,943
652,595
157,055
1,043,320

$

197,438
503,723
13,100
714,261

$

171,183
59,618
482,953
70,978
784,732

$

Unthank
Plaza

314,551
822,358
114,371
1,251,280

$

159,343
4,051
690,420
159,588
1,013,402

Helen
Swindells

$

Dawson
Park

434,961
122,708
46,768
604,437

$

533,075
15,610
548,685

318,055
8,265
105,800
186,973
83,851
19,008
721,952

6,995
249,004
250,982
290,549
102,957
37,596
938,083

2,654
390,748
2,640
68,323
191,378
65,119
18,569
739,431

266,529
5,763
99,322
148,763
107,893
39,709
667,979

103,970
57,012
161,241
139,986
9,286
471,495

332,572

56,551

(31,245)

62,780

313,197

273,971

(63,542)

77,190

250
(81,851)
(1,236)
(82,837)

51,554
(17,035)
(61,078)
(26,559)

161
(4,698)
(4,537)

36,820
(180,212)
(5,023)
(32,663)
(181,078)

323
(62,530)
(5,721)
(67,928)

539
(97,183)
(42,664)
(139,308)

-

5,537,655

-

(26,286)

5,204,541
$

$

St. Johns
Woods

4,534
264,280
547
74,009
272,807
120,610
8,719
745,506

333,114

NET POSITION- Beginning of year

260,840
398
135,024
12,923
409,185

Rosenbaum
Plaza

785
92,803
60,384
124,152
65,240
9,270
352,634

-

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

The
Plaza

2,075
370,862
77,386
156,482
81,482
22,461
710,748

542
542

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
Other nonoperating contributions

NET POSITION-End of year

Multnomah
Manor

(57,804)

1,005,758
$

979,472

1,616,673
$

1,558,869

$

432
(2,913)
(2,481)

116,911

-

47,823

175,154

132,119

319,313

(131,470)

(62,118)

2,323,073

944,537

3,320,844

(237,850)

(680,198)

2,498,227

$

1,076,656

$

3,640,157

-

$

(369,320)

-

$

(742,316)
(continued)
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HOME FORWARD
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - AFFORDABLE HOUSING
Year ended March 31, 2013

Pearl
Court

OPERATING REVENUES:
Dwelling rental
Non-dwelling rental
HUD operating subsidies
HUD grants
Other

$

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Housing assistance payments
Administration
Tenant services
Utilities
Maintenance
Depreciation
General
Impairment loss
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income
Interest expense
Investment in partnership valuation charge
Amortization
Loss on disposal of assets
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
Other nonoperating contributions

Fenwick
Avenue

1,537,279
19,369
42,907
1,599,555

$

Ainsworth
Court

234,684
6,070
240,754

$

Fairview
Oaks

709,350
17,048
726,398

$

Rockwood
Station

2,764,542
21,295
135,933
113,515
3,035,285

$

Pine
Square

1,389,804
32,724
84,958
71,049
1,578,535

290,501
140,898
216,044
377,674
17,335
1,042,452

35,046
47,449
18,793
76,057
3,513
180,858

114,019
73,789
130,932
193,249
9,596
521,585

10,795
379,540
310,356
621,005
446,110
161,263
1,929,069

4,266
351,734
129,020
350,737
240,295
85,043
1,161,095

557,103

59,896

204,813

1,106,216

417,440

22,330
(254,524)
(8,024)
(2,494)
(242,712)

82
(56,714)
(781)
(57,413)

29,504
(151,928)
(2,889)
(63,981)
(189,294)

678
(430,684)
(16,093)
(34,836)
(480,935)

$

433
(173,000)
(7,433)
(118,204)
(298,204)

Willow
Tree

-

$

164,496
7,913
172,409

Ash
Creek

$

299,628
3,122
302,750

2,875
2,875

72,844
5,444
22,470
26,691
55,969
3,537
186,955

52,669
43,492
30,745
50,582
2,143
179,631

(2,875)

(14,546)

123,119

93,678
(339,813)
(246,135)

120
(29,902)
(817)
(30,599)

70
(84,687)
(962)
(85,579)

-

-

-

-

-

(93,678)

(2,070)

-

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

314,391

2,483

15,519

625,281

119,236

(342,688)

(47,215)

37,540

NET POSITION- Beginning of year

724,366

(48,650)

(856,008)

1,810,648

(1,064,773)

(278,737)

NET POSITION-End of year

$

1,038,757

(230,151)
$

(227,668)

$

(33,131)

$

(230,727)

$

1,929,884

$

(1,407,461)

$

(325,952)

(1,365,626)
$

(1,328,086)
(continued)
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HOME FORWARD
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - AFFORDABLE HOUSING
Year ended March 31, 2013

Schiller
Way

OPERATING REVENUES:
Dwelling rental
Non-dwelling rental
HUD operating subsidies
HUD grants
Other

$

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Housing assistance payments
Administration
Tenant services
Utilities
Maintenance
Depreciation
General
Impairment loss

Peter
Paulson

182,277
40,351
2,703
225,331

$

40,946
43,929
78,509
56,099
5,102
224,585

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

746

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income
Interest expense
Investment in partnership valuation charge
Amortization
Loss on disposal of assets

29
(32,017)
(31,988)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
Other nonoperating contributions

20,123

Kelly
Place

514,517
10,092
524,609

$

158,886
2,819
161,705

$

243,130
440
6,963
250,533

$

36,960
147,827
112,952
1,136,112
1,433,851

51,005
27,666
44,083
77,145
5,512
205,411

1,147,477
735,008
983
684,434
2,567,902

(40,434)

(22,116)

-

(19,920)

45,122

(1,134,051)

592
(82,035)
(507)
(81,950)

96
(21,719)
(332)
(4,315)
(26,270)

-

-

11,878

-

-

-

479,313

(36,508)

NET POSITION- Beginning of year

(65,286)

(297,355)

886,901
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24,384
74,181
98,565
65,164
30,359
18,248
3,413
1,301
118,485

-

$

$

-

(122,384)

(76,405)

-

Affordable
Housing
Management

Yards at
Union Station

30,245
20,407
44,376
83,417
5,376
183,821

(11,119)

$

$

Trouton
Commercial

216,226
91,575
136,805
111,841
8,596
565,043

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION-End of year

Hillsdale
Duplexes

(419,739)

$

850,393

$

479,313

$

4,251
(49,816)
2,910
(1,632)
(44,287)

Eliminations

$

Total

(171,141)
(171,141)

$

(171,141)
(171,141)

526
526

10,483,711
382,241
3,655,791
112,952
1,913,746
16,548,441
32,104
4,735,401
757,667
1,774,628
3,250,296
2,538,989
1,157,369
14,246,454

-

2,301,987

-

243,010
(2,145,650)
2,910
(94,114)
(325,182)
(2,319,026)

-

(3,463,606)

-

(3,362,619)

(19,920)

835

(4,597,131)

-

(3,379,658)

(62,136)

-

(1,134,119)

(82,056)

$

835

$

(5,731,250)

(43,207)
$

(43,207)

11,952,558
$

8,572,900
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HOME FORWARD
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION - SPECIAL NEEDS HOUSING
As of March 31, 2013

Interstate
Crossing

Carriage
Hill

Project Open
Door

Other
Special Needs

Total

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Tenant security deposit-Restricted Cash
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses

$

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Deferred charges, net
Due from Partnership
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

TOTAL ASSETS

(192,324)
1,375
39,691
2,382
(148,877)

$

1,979
90,000
1,248,038
1,340,017

15,569
3,086
205
18,861

$

75,424
322,357
397,781

33,808
1,750
43,726
20
79,304

$

-

1,193,891
11,041
590,874
4,478
3,686
1,803,970

$

13,747
106,889
1,404,274
18,349,501
19,874,411

71,104
500,849
571,953

1,050,943
14,166
677,378
7,085
3,686
1,753,258

15,726
106,889
1,640,802
20,420,746
22,184,163

$

1,191,141

$

416,642

$

651,257

$

21,678,381

$

23,937,421

$

2,636
1,216
3,110
139
1,375
12,531
21,007

$

7,940
96
503
880
1,455
10,873

$

491
178
5,206
1,750
14,753
22,378

$

14,871
40,101
9,882
7,945
11,041
52,614
136,454

$

25,937
41,591
13,496
14,169
14,166
81,353
190,711

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accured interest payable
Other accrued liabilites
Deferred revenue
Deposits, payable from restricted assets
Current portion of notes and bonds payable

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued Interest long-term
Notes payable - long-term

Total liabilities
NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
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1,403,696
1,403,696

218,243
218,243

229,754
229,754

237,500
7,830,145
8,067,645

237,500
9,681,838
9,919,338

1,424,703

229,116

252,132

8,204,098

10,110,049

187,526

399,125

13,474,283

13,827,372

(233,562)
$

1,191,141

$

416,642

$

651,257

$

21,678,381

$

23,937,421
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Year ended March 31, 2013

Interstate
Crossing
OPERATING REVENUES:
Dwelling rental
Non-dwelling rental
State, local and other grants
Other

$

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Administration
Management fee
Tenant services
Utilities
Maintenance
Depreciation
General

OPERATING LOSS
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE):
Investment income
Interest expense
Amortization
Gain (loss) on sale of assets

NET LOSS BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
HUD nonoperating contributions
Other non-operating contributions
TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

$

$

62,196
4,012
66,208

Other
Special Needs

$

43,354
593,164
6,892
71,779
715,189

Total

$

5
8,924
22,716
25,708
1,326
58,679

(34,018)

(5,662)

7,529

(603,930)

(636,081)

27
(29,537)
(97)
(29,607)

3
(1,168)
(9,402)
(10,567)

59
(4,406)
(23,000)
(27,347)

751
(89,414)
(379)
(121,391)
(210,433)

840
(124,525)
(476)
(153,793)
(277,954)

(63,625)

(16,229)

(54,694)

(814,363)

(914,035)

12,000
12,000

40,296
40,296

174,642
174,642

226,938
226,938

(4,229)

20,478

(639,721)

(687,097)

(233,562)

191,755
$

187,526

84,080

226,809
593,164
6,892
83,457
910,322

2,195
4,699
8,589
12,221
582
28,286

(169,937)
$

21,574
1,050
22,624

Project Open
Door

13,428
6,754
17,606
39,693
62,112
726
140,319

(63,625)

NET POSITION-beginning of year
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99,685
6,616
106,301

-

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION-end of year

Carriage
Hill

24,950
194,830
972,131
43,128
1,319,119

378,647
$

399,125

99,708
6,754
56,179
265,828
1,072,172
45,762
1,546,403

14,114,004
$

13,474,283

14,514,469
$

13,827,372
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Independent Auditor’s Report Required by Oregon State Regulations
Members of the Board of Commissioners
of Home Forward
Portland, Oregon
We have audited the basic financial statements of the business-type activity (primary government) and the
aggregate discretely presented component units of Home Forward, Oregon, as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2013, which collectively comprise Home Forward’s basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated September 16, 2013. Our report includes a reference to other auditors, a scope
limitation related to the Stephens Creek Crossing North Limited Partnership and Stephens Creek Crossing
South Limited Partnership (Limited Partnerships), discretely presented component units of Home
Forward, which were not audited, and an explanatory paragraph indicating that Home Forward adopted
the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements and GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. Except for the Limited Partnerships, we conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal
Corporations. Other auditors audited the financial statements of the aggregate discretely presented
component units, except for the Limited Partnerships, as described in our report on Home Forward’s basic
financial statements. The audits of the discretely presented component units, except for the Gateway Park
Limited Partnership, were not performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. This report
does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or
compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by the other auditors of the Gateway Park
Limited Partnership.
Compliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Home Forward’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) as specified in Oregon
Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon
Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and
disclosures, which included, but were not limited to the following:







Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).
Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.
Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.
Programs funded from outside sources.
Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).
Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).
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In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe Home Forward was
not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including
the provisions of ORS as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of
the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.
OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Home Forward’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Home Forward’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Home Forward’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, management of
Home Forward, and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

_________________________________
Linda Hurley, Partner
for Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
Walnut Creek, California
September 16, 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Members of the Board of Commissioners of
Home Forward
Portland, Oregon
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activity and the aggregate discretely presented component units of Home Forward, Oregon, as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Home Forward’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 16, 2013. Our report includes a reference to other auditors, a scope limitation related to the
Stephens Creek Crossing North Limited Partnership and Stephens Creek Crossing South Limited
Partnership, discretely presented component units of Home Forward, which were not audited, and an
explanatory paragraph indicating that Home Forward adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements and GASB
Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position. The audits of the discretely presented component units, except for Gateway
Park Limited Partnership were not performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. This
report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting
or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by the other auditors of the Gateway Park
Limited Partnership.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Home Forward’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Home Forward’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Home Forward’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Home Forward’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Walnut Creek, California
September 16, 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With
OMB Circular A-133 and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Members of the Board of Commissioners of
Home Forward
Portland, Oregon
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Home Forward compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
Home Forward’s major federal programs for the year ended March 31, 2013. Home Forward’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Home Forward’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Home Forward’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Home Forward’s
compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Home Forward, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended March 31, 2013.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Home Forward is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered Home Forward’s internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
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effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Home Forward’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133
We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activity and the aggregate discretely
presented component units of Home Forward, as of and for the year ended March 31, 2013, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Home Forward’s basic financial
statements. We issued our report thereon dated September 16, 2013, which contained a modified opinion
on those financial statements of discretely presented component units because Stephens Creek Crossing
North Limited Partnership and Stephens Creek Crossing South Limited Partnership, discretely presented
component units, were not audited. Our report includes a reference to other auditors and an explanatory
paragraph indicating that Home Forward adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements and GASB Statement No. 63,
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Walnut Creek, California
September 16, 2013
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HOME FORWARD
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended March 31, 2013

Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Direct:
Congregate Housing Services Program
Section 8 Project-Based Cluster:
Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy
Lower Income Housing Assistance Program - Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation
Subtotal Section 8 Project-Based Cluster
Shelter Plus Care
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids
Continuum of Care Program
Section 3 Technical Assistance
Demolition and Revitalization of Severely Distressed Public Housing
Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services - Service Coordinators
Housing Voucher Cluster:
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
Family Unification Program (FUP)
Subtotal Housing Voucher Cluster
Public Housing Family Self-Sufficiency under Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services
Moving to Work Demonstration Program

Grantor
Identifying
Number

Federal
CFDA
Number

n/a

14.170

n/a
n/a

14.249
14.856

1,712,732
1,224,688
2,937,420

n/a
32000646
n/a
n/a
OR16URD0021110
n/a

14.238
14.241
14.267
14.419
14.866
14.870

3,844,305
64,000
169,713
47,517
9,097,605
300,294

n/a
n/a

14.871
14.880

5,037,927
919,524
5,957,451

n/a
n/a

14.877
14.881

215,952
76,505,673

Expenditures

$

Subtotal Direct Programs

359,914

99,499,844

Pass-Through from City of Portland
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Home Investment Partnerships Program
ARRA - Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Rehousing Program (Recovery Act Funded)
Pass-Through from Multnomah County
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

n/a
n/a
n/a
32000138

14.218
14.231
14.239
14.257

6,518
190,284
450,683
117,860

n/a

14.231

15,432

Subtotal Pass Through Programs

780,777

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

100,280,621

U.S. Department of Labor:
Pass-Through from Worksystems, Inc
Workforce Innovation Fund

12-60602

17.283

63,370

Total U.S. Department of Labor

63,370

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Pass-Through from Multnomah County
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

n/a
n/a

93.558
93.959

80,322
214,510

Total U.S. Department of Heath and Human Services

294,832

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Direct:
Emergency Food and National Board Program Cluster:
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program

ID #708000-011

97.024

182,427

Total U.S. Department of Heath and Human Services

182,427

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

$

100,821,250

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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NOTE 1 – GENERAL
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) presents the activities of all federal award
programs of Home Forward. Home Forward’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 of Home Forward’s
basic financial statements. Federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal
awards passed through from other governmental agencies, are included on the Schedule. Expenditures
funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 are denoted by the prefix “ARRA” in
the federal or pass-through grantor title. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of Home Forward, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net position or cash flows of Home Forward.
NOTE 2 – BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and include
capitalized expenditures. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in
OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain
types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
NOTE 3 – RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS
Amounts reported in the Schedule agree to or can be reconciled with the amounts reported in the related
federal financial reports.
NOTE 4 – RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Federal expenditures agree to or can be reconciled with the amounts reported in the Home Forward’s
basic financial statements.
NOTE 5 – LOANS OUTSTANDING
Home Forward participates in federal award programs that sponsor revolving loan programs, which is
administered by Home Forward and the City of Portland. The program maintains servicing and trust
arrangements with Home Forward to collect loan repayments. The funds are returned to the program upon
repayment of the principal and interest. The federal government has imposed certain significant
continuing compliance requirements with respect to the loans rendered under Home Investment
Partnerships (HOME) Program (CFDA number 14.239). During the year ended March 31, 2013, Home
Forward did not incur any expenditure related to new loans under the HOME program. As of
March 31, 2013, the total amount of HOME loans outstanding subject to continuing compliance
requirements was $865,392.
NOTE 6 – SUBRECIPIENTS
Of the federal expenditures presented in SEFA, Home Forward provided awards to subrecipients as
follows:
Program Title
CFDA #
Amount
ARRA - Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program
14.257
$ 117,860
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Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued on the
basic financial statements of the Authority:

We issued an unmodified opinion for the
business-type activity and a qualified opinion
for the aggregate discretely presented
component units.

Internal control over financial reporting:
 Material weakness(es) identified?

No

 Significant deficienc(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

None reported

Noncompliance material to the financial statements
noted?

No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
 Material weakness(es) identified?

No

 Significant deficienc(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

None reported.

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs:

We issued an unmodified opinion.

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with section 510(a) of OMB
Circular A-133?
Identification of major programs?

No

Program Title
Demolition and Revitalization of Severely Distressed Public Housing
Housing Voucher Cluster
Moving To Work Demonstration Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and
type B programs:

$3,024,638

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee?

Yes

CFDA Number
14.866
14.871 and 14.880
14.881

Section II - Financial Statement Finding
None reported.
Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
None reported.
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None reported
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HOME FORWARD
PORTLAND, OREGON
Report to the Board of Commissioners
For the Year Ended March 31, 2013
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Members of the Board of Commissioners
of Home Forward
Portland, Oregon
We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented
component units of Home Forward, Oregon for the year ended March 31, 2013. Professional standards require
that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and,
if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and Office OMB Circular A-133), as well as certain information
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information to you on July 9,
2013. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our
audit.
Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Home Forward are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As described in
Note 1 to the financial statements, Home Forward adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements and GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.
We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements
in the proper period.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.
The most sensitive estimates affecting the Home Forward’s financial statements were:


Estimated allowances for losses on receivables;



Depreciation estimates for capital assets, including depreciation methods and useful lives assigned to
depreciable properties;



Accrual of compensated absences;



Pension and other postemployment benefit plans’ employer and employee disclose and contribution
requirements

Management’s judgments and estimates were based on the following:


Estimated allowances for losses on receivables were based on historical experience and management’s
estimate regarding the likelihood for collectability;



Useful lives for depreciable property were determined by management based on the nature of the capital
assets;



Accrual and disclosures of compensated absences were based on accrued eligible hours of vacation at
current pay rates for eligible employees.

1
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Pension and other postemployment benefit plans’ employer and employee contribution requirements were
based on actuarially determined contribution rates

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these accounting estimates in determining that they
are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were the disclosures related to
the acquisition of equity interest in tax credit partnerships and pension and other postemployment benefits. The
disclosures about the equity interest acquisitions are described in Note 2 and the disclosures about pension and
other postemployment benefits are described in Note 15 to the financial statements and are based on actuarial
valuations. The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of
audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each
opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.
Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated September 16, 2013.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to Home Forward’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition
to our retention.
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Other Matters
With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries
of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method
of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation
to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
This information is intended solely for the use of the Members of Board of Commissioners and management of
Home Forward and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Walnut Creek, California
September 16, 2013
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MEMORANDUM

To:

Board of Commissioners
Date:

From:

September 17, 2013

Peter Beyer, Chief Financial Officer
Subject:

Kathy Kodis, Financial Analysis
and Reporting Manager

Authorize Home Forward
Fiscal Year 2014 Revised Budget
Resolution 13-09-07

The Board of Commissioners is requested to approve Home Forward’s fiscal year 2014
revised budget for the period April 1, 2013 to March 31, 2014.
ISSUE
In March 2013, the Board of Commissioners approved Home Forward’s fiscal year 2014
budget. At that time, President Obama had just signed the sequestration order and Home
Forward had not received information from federal agencies as to the revenue reductions
for the upcoming fiscal year. Initial estimates were of a funding loss of at least $6.3 million.
Because the agency needed an approved budget to begin the fiscal year, management
requested that the Board approve the interim budget (referred to internally as “Budget A”)
with the promise to return with a revised budget once the impact of sequestration was
known.
The impact of sequestration is now known. Additionally, there were several material
events that took place between April 2013 and September 2013, and the impact of these
events is included in the revised budget. These events are:
• The percentage of income used to calculate participants’ monthly rents increased
from 27.5% to 28.5% for seniors and people with disabilities and from 27.5% to
29.5% for work focused households beginning in August 2013.
• Home Forward implemented a voluntary retirement and layoff program and
instituted furlough days.

•
•

•

•
•

•

Home Forward applied for and was awarded set aside Housing Choice Voucher
funds to prevent the early termination of households receiving rental assistance.
Four high rise properties converted from public housing funding to Section 8
funding and the properties were transferred to Home Forward Development
Enterprises, a 501(c)3 nonprofit organization.
Home Forward and HUD were able to reach agreement on an amendment to
Attachment A of the Moving to Work agreement. The amendment resolves the
dispute over operating subsidy funding.
Home Forward received an award of 55 additional VASH (Veterans Affairs
Supportive Housing) vouchers.
The PERS rate for retirement benefits was reduced by 4.4%. Of this, 1.9% of the
decrease relates to a temporary rate collar and not due to savings in the retirement
system. A reserve will be established to fund the portion that will become future
costs.
Home Forward received additional funding from Multnomah County to support the
short term rent assistance program.

The change from the initial budget to the revised budget due to the above items is:
• Total operating revenue decreases from $114.9 million to $112.8 million.
• Total operating expenses decreases from $120.7 million to $117.5 million.
• The agency operating cash (funding flow) is now expected to break even.
Because of the magnitude of impact caused by sequestration, Home Forward would like
to thank the residents, employees, labor groups and funding partners for their effort in
helping to develop the strategies employed in this revised budget. Home Forward is well
positioned for this fiscal year and better prepared for the impact of year 2 of sequestration
because of the joint effort.
The revised budget was reviewed by the Audit and Finance Committee on September 10,
2013.
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RESOLUTION 1313- 09- 07
RESOLUTION 1313- 0909- 07 AUTHORIZES APPROVING AND ADOPTING REVISIONS TO
HOME FORWARD’S BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2014
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Home Forward is committed to the maintaining high standards relating to the
management of fiscal resources and the stewardship of public funds and assets; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the Board of Commissioners adopted an initial Fiscal Year 2014 budget in
March 2013; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS several material events have transpired since the approval of the initial budget;
and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the staff of Home Forward has created a revised fiscal year 2014 budget that
incorporates these material events; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the revised budget identifies expected sources of revenue and funds held in
reserves which are sufficient to cover planned expenditures for the fiscal year; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the Board of Commissioners has reviewed the revised budget and inquired
with staff on the various aspects and components of the revised budget;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,
RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward
approves the revised budget as submitted for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2014.
ADOPTED: SEPTEMBER 17,
17, 2013
2013
Attest:

Home Forward:

_______________________________
Steven D. Rudman, Secretary

________________________________
Harriet Cormack, Chair

3

MEMORANDUM

To:

From:

Board of Commissioners

Date:

Mike Andrews, Director,
Development and Community
Revitalization

Subject:

Ben Loftis, Development
Finance Coordinator

September 17, 2013
Authorize Issuance of Home
Forward Multifamily Housing
Revenue Bonds for Cathedral
Gardens Apartments
Resolution 13-09-08

The Board of Commissioners is requested to authorize the issuance and sale of Home
Forward’s Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds, 2013 (Cathedral Gardens Apartments)
(the “Bonds”), in the form of conduit revenue bonds in a principal amount not to exceed
$13,000,000. The Bonds will be sold in a public offering and will bear interest at fixed
rates as set forth in a Bond Purchase Agreement.
Cathedral Gardens Partners, Limited Partnership (the “Borrower”), an Oregon limited
partnership of which Vitus Group and AOF/Pacific Affordable Housing Corp. are CoGeneral Partners has requested that Home Forward issue the Bonds for the purpose of
providing part of the funds with which to pay the costs of acquisition and rehabilitation of
the Cathedral Gardens Apartments (also known as St. Johns Woods) (the “Project”), a
124-unit multifamily rental housing project in Portland, Oregon.
The Bonds will be issued pursuant to a Trust Indenture (the “Indenture”), by and between
Home Forward and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (the “Trustee”),
and the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to make a loan to the Borrower pursuant to a
Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”). Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Borrower
will agree (1) to apply the proceeds of the Loan to pay costs of constructing and equipping
the Project, (2) to make, or provide for, payments sufficient to pay the principal of and
interest on the Bonds when due, and (3) to observe the other covenants and agreements
and make the other payments set forth in the Loan Agreement.
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RESOLUTION 1313- 0909- 08
RESOLUTION 1313- 0909- 08 PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF
PRINCIPAL
AL AMOUNT
REVENUE BONDS OF HOME FORWARD IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIP
NOT TO EXCEED $13,000,000, THE PROCEEDS OF WHICH WILL BE USED TO MAKE
A LOAN TO CATHEDRAL GARDENS PARTNERS, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, FOR THE
PURPOSE OF PROVIDING PART OF THE FUNDS WITH WHICH TO FINANCE THE
COST OF ACQUIRING AND REHABILITATING THE MULTIFAMILY
MULTIFAMILY RENTAL HOUSING
PROJECT TO BE KNOWN AS CATHEDRAL GARDENS APARTMENTS (PREVIOUSLY
REFERRED TO AS ST. JOHNS WOODS), AND TO PAY COSTS OF ISSUING THE
BONDS; FIXING THE TERMS AND COVENANTS OF THE BONDS; APPOINTING A
TRUSTEE AND BOND REGISTRAR FOR THE BONDS;
BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR OF HOME FORWARD TO ACCEPT AN OFFER FROM CITIGROUP GLOBAL
MARKETS INC. TO PURCHASE THE BONDS; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED
MATTERS
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Home Forward seeks to encourage the provision of long-term housing for
persons and families of lower income residing in the City of Portland, Oregon (the “City”); and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS Cathedral Gardens Partners, Limited Partnership, an Oregon limited partnership
(the “Borrower”), has applied to Home Forward for financial assistance in the principal
amount of up to $13,000,000 for the purpose of providing part of the funds with which to
finance the acquisition and rehabilitation of a 124-unit multifamily rental housing project to be
known as Cathedral Gardens Apartments (previously referred to as St. Johns Woods) to
provide housing for persons and families of lower income within the City (the “Project”); and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the Project will be used by the Borrower to provide housing for persons and
families of lower income, and no more than an insubstantial portion of the proceeds of the
Bonds (defined below) will be used in connection with the financing of any portion of the
Project to be used by the Borrower for any other purpose; and
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WHEREAS,
WHEREAS ORS 456.065 defines “housing project” to include, among other things, “any
work or undertaking . . . to provide decent, safe and sanitary urban or rural housing for
persons or families of lower income”; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS ORS 456.120(18) provides that a housing authority may, among other things
and if certain conditions are met, “loan money to … [a] partnership … to finance, plan,
undertake, construct, acquire, manage or operate a housing project”; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS ORS 456.055 and 456.175 provide that a housing authority may issue bonds,
notes, interim certificates, debentures or other obligations for any of its corporate purposes;
and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS ORS 456.135 provides that a housing authority may delegate to one or more if
its agents or employees such powers or duties as it deems proper; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the Bonds will be issued under and pursuant to the terms of a Trust Indenture
(the “Indenture”) between Home Forward and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,
N.A. (the “Trustee”), and the Bonds will be secured by the project account and a cashfunded collateral account to be held by the Trustee under the Indenture; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward deems it necessary and
advisable and in the best interest of Home Forward to issue the revenue bonds described
herein (the “Bonds”), the proceeds of which will be lent to the Borrower for the purposes
described herein; and
WHEREAS,
WHEREAS it is anticipated that Citigroup Global Markets Inc. will offer to purchase the
Bonds on the terms set forth in this resolution and the Indenture; and
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,
RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward,
as follows::
Section 1.
Definitions.
Definitions. As used in this resolution, the following words have the
following meanings:
“Board” means the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward.
“Bond” or “Bonds” means one or more of the Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds,
2013 (Cathedral Gardens Apartments), of Home Forward, issued pursuant to, under the
3
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authority of and for the purposes provided in this resolution and the Indenture.
“Bond Registrar” means the entity serving as registrar, authenticating agent and
paying agent under the Indenture, initially the Trustee.
“Borrower” means Cathedral Gardens Partners, Limited Partnership, an Oregon
limited partnership.
“City” means the City of Portland, Oregon.
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
“Home Forward” means Home Forward, a public corporation duly organized and
existing as a housing authority under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Oregon.
“Indenture” means the Trust Indenture between Home Forward and the Trustee
relating to the Bonds, including any supplements or amendments thereto made in
conformity herewith and therewith.
“Loan” means the loan to be made by Home Forward to the Borrower of the
proceeds of the Bonds to finance the Project.
“Loan Agreement” means the Loan Agreement by and between Home Forward and
the Borrower, including any supplements or amendments thereto made in conformity
herewith and therewith.
“Project” means, depending on the context (1) the acquisition and rehabilitation of
the Cathedral Gardens Apartments multifamily housing project by the Borrower, or (2) the
Cathedral Gardens Apartments multifamily housing project.
“Regulatory Agreement” means the Regulatory Agreement executed by the
Borrower for the benefit of Home Forward, governing the use of the Project, and including
any supplements or amendments thereto made in conformity herewith or therewith.
“Trustee” means the entity serving as trustee under the Indenture, initially The Bank of
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.
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Section 2.
Proceeds.. Home
Authorization of the Bonds and Application of Proceeds
Forward shall issue the Bonds for the purpose of making the Loan to the Borrower to
provide a portion of the funds required to finance the Project and pay costs of issuing the
Bonds. Such Bond financing is declared and determined to be important for feasibility of
the Project. All proceeds of the Bonds shall be lent to the Borrower for those purposes,
and shall be deposited with the Trustee, all as provided in the Indenture.
Section 3.
Description of the Bonds.
Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued in registered
form in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $13,000,000. The Bonds shall be
dated such date, shall be in such denominations, shall bear interest payable on such dates
and at such rates, shall mature at such times and in such amounts, shall have such
prepayment or redemption provisions and shall have such other provisions consistent with
the purposes of this resolution as are set forth in the Indenture.
Section 4.
Security for the Bonds.
Bonds. The Bonds shall be special, nonrecourse
obligations of Home Forward payable solely from amounts held by the Trustee under the
Indenture.
The Bonds shall not be a debt of the City, Multnomah County, the State of Oregon
or any political subdivision thereof, and the Bonds shall so state on their face. None of the
City, Multnomah County, the State of Oregon or any political subdivision thereof shall be
liable for payment of the Bonds nor in any event shall principal of, premium, if any, on and
interest on the Bonds be payable out of any funds or assets other than those pledged to
that purpose by Home Forward herein and in the Indenture. Home Forward has no taxing
power.
Neither Home Forward nor any of the Commissioners, officers or employees of
Home Forward shall be personally liable for the payment of the Bonds.
Section 5.
Form and Execution of Bonds.
Bonds. The Bonds shall be in a form
consistent with the provisions of this resolution, the Indenture and state law, shall bear the
manual or facsimile signatures of the Chair of the Board and Executive Director of Home
Forward.
The Bonds shall be authenticated by the Bond Registrar as set forth in the
Indenture. No Bond shall be valid for any purpose until so authenticated. The authorized
signing of a Certificate of Authentication shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond so
authenticated has been duly executed, authenticated and delivered and is entitled to the
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benefits of this resolution.
Section 6.
Preservation of Tax Exemption for Interest on Bonds.
Bonds Subject to
the second paragraph of this section, Home Forward covenants that it will take all actions
necessary to prevent interest on the Bonds from being included in gross income for federal
income tax purposes, and it will neither take any action nor make or permit any use of
proceeds of the Bonds or other funds of Home Forward treated as proceeds of the Bonds
at any time during the term of the Bonds which would cause interest on the Bonds to be
included in gross income for federal income tax purposes.
The Borrower has agreed or will agree in the Loan Agreement to reimburse Home
Forward for all costs to Home Forward of its compliance with the covenants contained in
this section, and Home Forward shall not be required to expend any funds, other than
such reimbursement or other money received under the terms of the Loan Agreement, in
so complying.
Section 7.
Authorization of Documents and Execution Thereof and
Appointment of Trustee.
Trustee . The Board approves the Loan Agreement, the Indenture and
the Regulatory Agreement substantially in the forms on file with the Executive Director of
Home Forward, with such changes as the Executive Director of Home Forward shall deem
necessary or appropriate, and appoints The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,
N.A., as Trustee and Bond Registrar for the Bonds. The Board authorizes and approves
the execution and delivery of, and the performance by Home Forward of its obligations
contained in, the Bonds, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement and this resolution and
consummation by Home Forward of all other transactions contemplated by this resolution
in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. The Executive Director of Home Forward is
authorized and directed to do everything necessary for the issuance, execution and
delivery of the Bonds, including the “deeming final” of the preliminary official statement for
the Bonds for the sole purpose of the Bond purchaser’s compliance with Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 15d2-12(b)(1), and to execute and deliver, on behalf of Home
Forward, the Indenture, the Regulatory Agreement, Loan Agreement and any other
documents reasonably required to be executed by Home Forward in connection with the
issuance of the Bonds and to ensure the proper use and application of the proceeds of
the Bonds. The Executive Director of Home Forward is further authorized to approve and
execute an official statement for the Bonds on behalf of Home Forward.
Section 8. Authorization of Purchase Contract
Contract.
ract. It is anticipated that Citigroup
Global Markets Inc., as underwriter, will present a purchase contract (the “Bond Purchase
6
Home Forward Board of Commissioners
September 2013

169

Agreement”) substantially in the form on file with the Executive Director of Home Forward,
to Home Forward offering to purchase the Bonds under the terms and conditions provided
herein and therein. The Board finds that entering into such a Bond Purchase Agreement is
in the best interest of Home Forward, and therefore authorizes the Executive Director of
Home Forward to accept the offer contained in the Bond Purchase Agreement and to
execute the Bond Purchase Agreement on behalf of Home Forward, subject to the
following limitations: (a) the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds does not exceed
$13,000,000, and (b) the Bond Purchase Agreement is executed prior to September 1,
2014.
The proper Home Forward officials are authorized and directed to do everything
necessary for the prompt delivery of the Bonds to the purchaser thereof and for the proper
application and use of the proceeds of the sale thereof.
Section 9. Acting Officers Authorized.
Authorized. Any action required by this resolution to
be taken by the Chair of the Board or Executive Director of Home Forward may in the
absence of such person be taken by the duly authorized acting Chair of the Board or
acting Executive Director of Home Forward, respectively.
Section 10. Ratification and Confirmation.
Confirmation. Any actions of Home Forward or its
officers prior to the date hereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution are ratified
and confirmed.
Section 11. Effective Date.
Date. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from
and after its adoption and approval.
ADOPTED: SEPTEMBER 17,
17, 2013
Attest:

Home Forward:

Steven D. Rudman, Secretary

Harriet Cormack, Chair
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CERTIFICATE
I, the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and acting Executive Director and
Secretary-Treasurer of Home Forward and keeper of the records of Home Forward,
CERTIFY:
1.
That the attached Resolution 13-09-08 (the “Resolution”) is a true and correct
copy of the resolution of the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward, as adopted at a
meeting of Home Forward held on September 17, 2013, and duly recorded in the minute
books of Home Forward.
2.
That such meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance
with law, and, to the extent required by law, due and proper notice of such meeting was
given; that a quorum was present throughout the meeting and a majority of the members of
the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward present at the meeting voted in the proper
manner for the adoption of the Resolution; that all other requirements and proceedings
incident to the proper adoption of the Resolution have been duly fulfilled, carried out and
otherwise observed, and that I am authorized to execute this Certificate.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 17th day of September,
2013.

HOME FORWARD

Steven D. Rudman, Executive Director and
Secretary
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STAFF REPORTS
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Home Forward
Fiscal Year 2014 Budget Amendment

Operating Statement
Dwelling Rental
Non-dwelling Rental
HUD Subsidies -Housing Assistance
HUD Subsidies - HAP Admin Fee
HUD Subsidies -Public Housing
HUD Grants
Development Fee Revenue, Net
State, Local & Other Grants
Other Revenue
ARRA Operating Revenue
Total IA Revenue
Total Operating Revenues
PH Subsidy Transfer
Housing Assistance Payments
Administration
Administrative Personnel Expense
Other Admin Expenses
Fees/overhead charged
Tenant Services
Tenant Svcs Personnel Expense
Other Tenant Svcs Expenses
Maintenance
Maintenance Personnel Expense
Other Maintenance Expenses
Utilities
Total IA Expense
Depreciation
General
Impairment Charge
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Total Overhead Allocations
Operating Income (Loss) after Overhead
Reserve Funding
Operating Income (Loss) after Reserve Funding
Investment Income
Interest Expense
Amortization
Investment in Partnership Valuation Charge
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets
Chg in Derivative Contract Value
Net Other Income (Expense)
HUD Nonoperating Contributions
Other Nonoperating Contributions
ARRA Nonoperating Contributions
Nonoperating contributions made
Reserve Funded Capital Contributions
Net Capital Contributions
Other Equity Changes
Net Changes

$

$

FY 2014
Budget
Original

FY 2014
Budget
Revised

14,132,938 $
1,336,240
66,090,359
5,376,488
9,762,041
7,036,592
2,146,585
4,727,093
4,293,675
114,902,011
1,847,694
70,404,319
20,412,397
14,101,717
6,310,680
(0)
4,420,969
2,040,647
2,380,322
9,889,808
4,328,957
5,560,851
4,411,734
(268,902)
8,581,043
970,935
120,669,997
(5,767,986)
(5,767,986)
(5,767,986)
286,384
(2,457,393)
(80,493)
(1,121,108)
(3,372,610)
6,970,627
1,236,145
8,206,772
(933,823) $

13,451,324 $
1,247,217
63,456,980
5,101,436
10,736,451
7,033,814
2,146,585
5,149,374
4,440,402
112,763,583
2,032,694
70,090,019
19,403,561
13,392,810
6,010,750
(0)
4,211,566
1,852,720
2,358,846
8,993,408
3,887,856
5,105,552
3,915,241
(257,579)
8,227,770
911,068
117,527,748
(4,764,165)
(4,764,165)
(4,764,165)
286,384
(2,457,393)
(80,493)
(801,708)
(3,053,210)
6,970,627
1,236,145
8,206,772
389,396 $

Changes
(681,614)
(89,023)
(2,633,379)
(275,052)
974,410
(2,778)
422,281
146,727
(2,138,429)
(185,000)
314,300
1,008,836
708,906
299,929
209,403
187,927
21,476
896,400
441,101
455,299
496,493
(11,323)
353,273
59,867
3,142,249
1,003,820
1,003,820
1,003,820
319,400
319,400
1,323,220

Home Forward
Fiscal Year 2014 Funding Flow Analysis by Operating Group
FY14 Budget
Original

Operating Statement

Changes

(5,767,986) $

(4,764,165) $

(3,478,290)
(806,192)
2,808,490
(98,400)
(50,184)

(3,479,690)
(1,035,092)
3,037,390
(98,400)
(50,184)

Financing/Investment Activity
Investment Income - Unrestricted
Principal & Interest - Special Needs
Principal & Interest - New Market West

1,800
(172,985)
(202,023)

1,800
(172,985)
(202,023)

-

Capital Acquisitions
IT Equipment and Software

(110,000)

(110,000)

-

(2,146,585)
5,486,018

(2,146,585)
5,132,745

(353,273)

1,834,585
-

1,834,585
141,848
2,205,206
1,003,296
113,753
42,440
(1,003,296)
(268,772)
(181,870)

11,782
(283,242)
43,296
(75,247)
327,223
(43,296)
(268,772)
(181,870)

Operating Income (Loss)

$

FY14 Budget
Revised

Real Estate Portfolio
Affordable Housing Properties Operating Activity
Revenue from Properties to AH Department
Unrestricted Cash to HAP
Net Replacement Reserve Activity (New Market West)
Net Replacement Reserve Activity (Special Needs)

Non-Cash Operating Activity
Developer Fee Revenue
Depreciation Expense

1,003,820

(1,400)
(228,900)
228,900
-

Operating Activity Funded by Cash Reserves
Developer Fee - Cash to HAP(Net)
Developer Fee - Reserved
Other Project - Reserve Funded
New Columbia Support Services
MTW Special Initiates Fund
MTW - Local Blended Subsidy (LBS)
MTW Administration
(Increase)/Decrease to MIF reserves
MIF - Section 8 - LBS
Operating Subsidy (PH) (Excess)/Shortfall
High Rise Reserve Fund
Fund PERS Reserve - Deferred Rate Increase
Funding Source or (Shortfall)

130,066
2,488,448
960,000
189,000
(284,783)
(960,000)

$

(179,021) $

0

$

179,021

Home Forward
Summary of Changes to Approved FY 2014 Budget
The attached amendment to the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget updates the budget for the effects of
Sequestration, resolution of Home Forward’s funding issue with Public Housing Operating
Subsidy, conversion of four Public Housing high rise properties to site based Section 8 and
several other material changes unknown when the original budget was adopted. Below is a
summary of the impact of these changes on Home Forward’s Net Operating income and
Funding Flow.
Net Operating
Income/(Loss)

Summary of Changes
Sequestration
Housing Choice Vouchers
Public Housing - Rental Income
Personnel Expenses
Other Administrative Expenses
Subtotal

$

Public Housing - Attachment A
High Rise Conversion
PERS Rate Reduction (4.4%)
Short Term Rent Asistance
New VASH Vouchers (55)
Other Administrative Expenses

(3,092,398)
159,912
267,865
176,671
(2,487,950)

Funding
Flow
$

(1,229,913)
159,912
204,400
176,671
(688,930)

2,076,117
812,240
415,964
151,291
15,042
21,117

Net Impact of FY 2014 Budget Amendment

$

1,003,820

540,855
190,195
234,094
(51,649)
15,042
(60,585)
$

179,021

Commentary – Summary of Changes
Impact of Sequestration – Housing Choice Vouchers
•

Sequestration reduces Section 8 Voucher funding by $5.6 million and Section 8 Admin Fee funding
by $559 thousand.

HUD Subsidies - Housing Assistance
Moving to Work
VASH(1,2)
Family Unification Program
Sequestration Voucher Funding Reductions

(4,780,724)

Admin Fee
Subsidy
$
(563,977)

(560,286)
(251,951)

11,947
(7,022)

HAP Subsidy
$

$

(5,592,961)

$

(559,052)

Total
$

(5,344,701)
(548,339)
(258,973)

$

(6,152,013)

(1) While VASH is not technically subject to sequestration, funding recaptures in CY 2012 create a
funding shortfall in CY 2013 for VASH. As HUD expects the Agency to fund VASH from Moving to
Work funds, VASH’s shortfall is included in the Sequestration Analysis.
(2) VASH’s Admin Fee funding is not subject to sequestration. Actual funding levels result in a slight
increase in VASH Admin Fee Revenue.
•

Sequestration losses in the voucher program have been partially offset by a special allocation of
voucher funding in the amount of $1.1 million which is intended to prevent the termination of
leases for Section 8 Voucher participants.

•

Cost saving measures implemented by Home Forward including rent reform ($1.9 million), changes
in participant contributions to rent ($700 thousand) and voucher attrition as participants leave the
Housing Choice Voucher programs and are not replaced ($200 thousand) generate $3.1 million in
cost savings.

Housing Assistance Payments (HAP)
Moving to Work
VASH
Family Unification Program
Cost Savings from Rent Reform, Voucher Attrition
and Change in Participant Contribution
•

HAP Subsidy
$

2,763,669
173,563
122,383

$

3,059,615

Housing Choice Voucher subsidies decreased by $6.2 million. Subsidy losses are offset by cost
savings of $3.1 million resulting in a net reduction to Operating Income of $3.1 million compared to
Budget A. Voucher revenue received in FY 2013 and held in MIF Reserves contributes $1.9 million
towards FY 2014 voucher funding reducing the impact on FY 2014 Funding Flow to $1.2 million.

Impact of Sequestration – Public Housing
•

Changes in Public Housing residents contributions to rent increase Net Operating Income and
Funding Flow by $159 thousand.

Impact of Sequestration – Personnel Expenses
•

Personnel expenses (excluding the PERS Rate change) are reduced $268 thousand via a combination
of staff reorganization, a voluntary retirement/layoff progam and implementation of one mandatory
furlough day and one optional furlough day. The impact on Funding Flow is reduced by personnel
expense reductions to MIF funded programs as these programs are Funding Flow neutral.

Impact of Sequestration – Other Administrative Expenses.
•

Other Administrative Expenses have been reduced $177 thousand primarily in the areas of office
equipment, travel and training.

Impact of Sequestration – Other
•

As a result of the timing of funding appropriations, the sequestration impact for many of the
Agency’s smaller HUD programs will not be felt until next fiscal year.

Public Housing Operating Subsidy – Resolution of Attachment A Issue
•

As a result of resolving a funding disagreement with HUD regarding Public Housing Operating
Subsidy, sequestration cuts were applied to a significantly higher base funding level than was used
in developing the original approved FY 14 Budget. As a result, Public Housing Operating funding
(excluding the High Rise impact) increased $2.3 million offset by increased PH Subsidy Transfer to
Tax Credit properties of $185 thousand. In addition a portion of funds was used to restore MIF
reserves covering reduced subsidy starting in October 2012. Overall, there is a net increase to
Funding Flow of $541 thousand.

Disposition of Four Public Housing High Rise Properties
•

Transferring ownership of four Public Housing Properties (Sellwood Center, Hollywood East,
Northwest Towers and Gallagher Place) in September 2013 resulted in an Increase of Net Operating
Income of $117 thousand. Converting the properties to site based Section 8 further increased Net
Operating Income an additional $695 thousand.

Dwelling Rental
Non-dwelling Rental
HUD Subsidies - Housing Assistance
HUD Subsidies - HAP Admin Fee
HUD Subsidies - Public Housing
Other Revenue

Property
Disposition
$
(841,526)
(89,023)

Total
$

2,697,466
258,000
(1,286,707)
146,727

Total Operating Revenues

(2,070,529)

Housing Assistance Payments
Administrative Personnel Expense
Other Admin Expenses
Other Tenant Svcs Expenses
Maintenance Personnel Expenses
Other Maintenance Expenses
Utilities
Total IA Expense
Depreciation
General

(2,187,718)
$

117,189

884,937

2,260,415

2,260,415
(329,819)
(123,259)
(18,841)
(362,190)
(455,299)
(496,493)
11,323
(353,273)
(59,867)

2,260,415
$

(841,526)
(89,023)
2,697,466
258,000
(1,286,707)
146,727

2,955,466

(329,819)
(123,259)
(18,841)
(362,190)
(455,299)
(496,493)
11,323
(353,273)
(59,867)

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Funding
Conversion

695,051

72,697
$

812,240

•

Transferring the High Rise properties to Home Forward Development Enterprises generated a
combined increase of $812 thousand in Net Operating Income and $190 thousand to Home
Forward’s operating funding flow.

Operating Income (Loss)

Property
Disposition
$
117,189

Depreciation Expense
Set Aside Reserve Funds
Funding Flow

Funding
Conversion
$
695,051

Total
$

(353,273)

(353,273)
(268,772)

(268,772)
$

(236,084)

$

426,279

812,240

$

190,195

PERS Rate Reduction (4.4%)
•

During the Legislative session of 2013 changes were made to PERS that reduced Home Forward’s
PERS rates by 2.4% of Payroll reducing our PERS expense in FY 2014 by $234 thousand.

•

In May 2013, the PERS Board lowered 2013-15 PERS rates by 1.9% of payroll. The purpose of the
reduction was to ease budget pressures in the near term. The contributions lost to PERS as result of
this temporary reduction will be recouped over the next 20 years through higher rates. Because of
the temporary nature of the savings, the $182 thousand in PERS expense reduction has been set
aside in a reserve fund.

Short Term Rent Assistance
•

After final negotiations with our local government partners, State, Local & Other Grant revenue
increased $401 thousand primarily due to $375 thousand in additional funding from Multnomah
County. Housing Assistance Payments increased by only $62 thousand as much of the additional
funding from Multnomah County was used to replace limited MIF funding.

•

Additionally, staff will develop a new rent assistance program that provides quicker access to
participants than is currently available under the traditional voucher program.

New VASH Vouchers
•

Home Forward has been awarded 55 new VASH vouchers in FY 2014 increasing Net Operating
Income and Funding Flow by $15 thousand.

Procurement & Contracts Department
MONTHLY CONTRACT REPORT
Contracts Approved 7/1/13 - 8/31/13

Contract #

Contractor

Contract Amount

Description

Department

Execution Date

Expiration Date

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

C1316

Volunteers of America

$9,621.09

Summer Lunch and Enrichment Activities Gateway Apartments

REO

7/3/2013

8/31/13

C1343

Pinnell Busch Inc

$2,600.00

Integrated Master Schedule for MC HD HQ

DCR

7/23/2013

9/30/2013

C1345

QED Lab

$3,700.00

Window Testing Services - Carlton Court

DCR

7/29/2013

12/31/2013

C1340

Outside In

Agreement With Service Partners at BCC

REO

8/26/2013

6/30/2015

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

C1342

Walsh Construction Co.

$49,000.00

Design-Build Sellwood Center Phase 1

DCR

7/12/2013

12/31/2013

C1341

AV Design Specialist LLC

$66,259.00

Install audio/video equipment at SCC-opportunity
center & childrens center

DCR

7/17/2013

3/30/2014

C1329

M&M Construction

$198,000.00

Maple Mallory Apartments - Sewer Lateral
Replacement, RFB 04/13-210

DCR

7/23/2013

12/31/2013

C1337

Pavilion Construction

$997,802.00

New Market West - 2013 Improvements, RFB
05/13-213

DCR

7/23/2013

12/31/2013

C1344

Cable Communications Inc

NTE $5,000

Carlton Court Apts. - Install new co-ax cable in all
buildings

DCR

7/29/2013

10/31/2013

AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING CONTRACTS

C0992-2

Portland Business Alliance

$24,000.00

Clean and Safe program security services at Bud
Clark Commons

REO-PM

7/18/2013

6/30/2014

C0387-4

PTS (Pacific Telecom Services), LLC

Revenue Contract

Extends contract for antenna cell site
management thru 7/31/14

REO

7/23/2013

7/31/2014

C1015C-1

R&H Colas Construction

$14,284.00

CMGC for Hope VI Revitalization; Mod #8 Children's Center, Retaining Wallk, Veneer, Reroute Sewer Credit and Structural Detail

DCR

7/23/2013

2/28/2014

C1015F-5

R&H Colas Construction

$99,704.00

DCR

7/23/2013

2/28/2014

C1015N-5

R&H Colas Construction

$49,395.00

DCR

7/23/2013

2/28/2014

C1015O-4

R&H Colas Construction

$81,851.00

DCR

7/23/2013

2/28/2014

C1015S-8

R&H Colas Construction

$47,796.00

DCR

7/23/2013

2/28/2014

C1124-1

Neighborhood House

$5,000.00

REO

7/24/2013

3/14/2014

Home Forward Board of Commissioners
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CMGC for Hope VI Revitalization; Residential
Housing - North 4% Partnership - Mod #6,
Multiple Chnages From RFI's and Value
Engineering, RFP 06/11-133
CMGC for Hope VI Revitalization; Residential
Housing -- South 9% Partnership - Stephens
Creek Crossing Mod #5, for multiple changes
resulting from RFI's, RFP 06/11-133
CMGC for Hope VI Revitalization; Opportunity
Center -- Mod #7, For Multiple Changes
Resulting From RFI's and Value Engineering,
RFP 06/11-133
CMGC for Hope VI Revitalization; Private
Infrastruction; Stephens Creek Crossing Mod #3,
LED lighting, backflow valves for sanitary sewer,
seeding, over-ex at garden wall & landscape
Culturally Specific Case Management at SCC,
Annual renewal, new contract end date 3/14/14
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Procurement & Contracts Department
MONTHLY CONTRACT REPORT
Contracts Approved 7/1/13 - 8/31/13

Contract #

Contractor

Contract Amount

C1109-1

Kilmer, Voorhees & Laurick, PC

$180,000.00

C1110-1

Kilmer, Voorhees & Laurick, PC

$230,000.00

C0724-5

The Giving Tree

-$20,837.33

C1242-4

Applied Restoration, Inc.

C1015F-6

Department

Execution Date

Expiration Date

DCR

7/26/2013

7/31/2015

DCR

7/26/2013

7/30/2015

Deduct $20,837.33 to Stop Providing Resident
Services at Rosenbaum Plaza, Grace Peck &
Unthank Plaza.

REO

8/26/2013

8/31/2013

$8,612.58

Dahlke Manor, Unforeseen Conditions During
the Course of Construction and Supplemental
Work

DCR

8/26/2013

9/13/2013

R&H Colas Construction

$57,429.00

CMGC for Hope VI Revitalization, Multiple
Changes Resulting from RFI's and Value
Engineering

DCR

8/27/2013

2/28/2014

C1015N-6

R&H Colas Construction

$49,433.00

CMGC for Hope VI Revitalization, Multiple
Changes Resulting from RFI's and Value
Engineering

DCR

8/27/2013

2/28/2014

C1015O-5

R&H Colas Construction

$29,958.00

CMGC for Hope VI Revitalization, Multiple
Changes Resulting from RFI's and Value
Engineering

DCR

8/27/2013

2/28/2014

C1015S-9

R&H Colas Construction

$27,960.00

CMGC for Hope VI Revitalization, Site Walls,
Light Poles, Landscaping & Fountain

DCR

8/27/2013

2/28/2014

C1052-1

Apex Companies, LLC (formerly Ash Creek
Associates, Inc.)

$35,000.00

Stephens Creek Crossing - Update Geotechnical
Report, CA Street Analysis, Shoring & Gravity
Wall Analysis

DCR

8/28/2013

2/28/2014

C0721-5

Volunteers of America

$231,899.00

Youth Prevention Services at Dekum Court,
Eastwood Court, Stark Manor, Plaza
Townhomes & Sequoia Square, RFP 4/10-100

REO

8/29/2013

6/30/2015

C1140-1

Impact Northwest

$147,946.00

Resident Services Coordination - Dahlke Manor,
Holgate House and Unthank Plaza, IRFP 03/12159

REO

8/29/2013

6/30/2014

Home Forward Board of Commissioners
September 2013

Description
Provide legal advice in all matters relating to
possible litigation with Tom Walsh and/or Tom
Walsh & Co. for construction defects at Ashcreek
Commons, Emergency Legal Services
Provide legal advice in all matters relating to
possible litigation with Tom Walsh and/or Tom
Walsh & Co. for construction defects at
Willowtree Apartments, Emergency Legal
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Households Served
Households Served Through Housing Supports August 2013
Rent Assistance
Rent Assistance Vouchers - Home Forward Funded
Tenant Based Vouchers
Project Based Vouchers
Single Room Occupancy (SRO)/MODS
Family Unification Program
Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH)
Rent Assistance - PORT IN From Other Jurisdiction
Short Term Rent Assistance Programs
Shelter + Care
Locally Funded Short Term Rent Assistance
MIF Funded Short Term Rent Assistance
Alder School
Work Systems Inc. - Agency Based Rent Assistance

All Programs
8,730
01 - Tenant Based Vouchers
02 - Project Based Vouchers
03 - SRO/MODs
04 - VASH Vouchers
06 - Portability

6,297
1,291
481
88
295
278

Moving to Work
Programs
7,588
6,297
1,291

11

554
33
-

Total Rent Assistance

1,142

481
88
295
278
587

05 - Shelter Plus Care

Non-MTW Programs

-

587

554
33
9,317

7,588

1,729

Subsidized Housing Units
Public Housing Units Occupied
Traditional Public Housing units Occupied
Public Housing units Occupied - Local Blended Subsidy
Public Housing units Occupied - in Owned Affordable
Public Housing units Occupied - in Tax Credit Affordable

12 - Traditional Public Housing 1,920
13
173
14 - Public Housing in Affordable Owned
59
15 - Public Housing in Tax Credit Affordable
438

2,590

Affordable Housing Units Occupied (excluding PH subsidized)
Affordable Housing Units - Tenant Based Vouchers
Affordable Housing Units - Shelter + Care
Affordable Housing Units - Project Based Vouchers
^
Affordable Housing Units - HUD Multi-Family Project Based
Affordable Housing Units - VASH Vouchers
Affordable Housing Units - Family Unification Program
Affordable Housing Units - Section 8 Port In
Affordable Housing Units - Unassisted

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

2,590

1,920
173
59
438
3,243

Special Needs
Special Needs Units (Master Leased) **
Special Needs Shelter Beds (Master Leased)

Total Households Occupying Housing Units
Total Housing Supports Provided to Household
Household Occupying Affordable Unit/Receiving Home Forward Rent Assistance
Total Households Served

3,243

514
128
248
466
59
7
32
1,789

514
128
248
466
59
7
32
1,789
524

524

288
236

288
236
6,357

2,590

3,767

15,674
(988)
14,686

10,178

5,496
(988)
4,508

10,178

Notes:
^

Consists of Grace Peck Terrace, Multnomah Manor, Plaza Townhomes, Rosenbaum Plaza, St. Johns Woods, Unthank Plaza
**

Special
Needs
are physical
units as occupancy levels that are not reported to Home Forward by service providers master leasing these properties.
Home
Forward
Board
of Commissioners
September 2013
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Total Households Served: Rent Assistance and Occupied Housing Units August 2013
Households Receiving Rent Assistance
Only , 7,742 , 53%

Public Housing Units Occupied *, 2,590
, 18%

Short Term Rent Assistance Programs,
587 , 4%
Households Receiving Rent Assistance
and Occupying Affordable Housing Units
, 988 , 7%
Affordable Housing Units Occupied HUD Multi-Family Project Based
Subsidized ^, 466 , 3%
Affordable Housing Units Occupied Unassisted, 1,789 , 12%

Special Needs Units (Master Leased) **,
288 , 2%

Special Needs Shelter Beds (Master
Leased), 236 , 1%

Total Households Served 14,686
^ Consists of Grace Peck Terrace, Multnomah Manor, Plaza Townhomes, Rosenbaum Plaza, St. Johns Woods, Unthank Plaza
* Includes Local Blended Subsidy
** Special Needs are physical units as occupancy levels that are not reported to Home Forward by service providers master leasing these properties.
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Home Forward - Dashboard Report For August of 2013
Property Performance Measures
1

40

40

0

1

0

15

15

10

0

0

40

Occupancy

Public Housing
Public Housing Mixed Financed Owned *
Public Housing Mixed Finance Tax Credit *
Total Public Housing
Affordable Owned with PBA subsidy
Affordable Owned without PBA subsidy
Total Affordable Owned Housing
Tax Credit Partnerships
Total Affordable Housing
Eliminate Duplicated PH Properties/Units
Combined Total PH and AH
Special Needs (Master Leased)
Special Needs (Shelter Beds)
Total with Special Needs

Number of
Properties
38
2
8
48
6
14
20
18
38
-10
76
32
2
110

Physical
Units
1,999
60
572
2,631
473
1378
1,851
2,108
3,959
-632
5,958
288
236
6482

Rentable
Units
1,999
60
572
2,631
473
1,378
1,851
2,108
3,959
-632
5,958
288
236
6482

Vacant
Units
34
1
6
41
10
31
41
50
91
-7
125

Occupancy
Percentage
98.3%
100.0%
99.0%
98.4%
97.9%
97.8%
97.8%
97.6%
97.7%
97.9%

Studio/SRO
514
0
275
789
72
375
447
782
1,229
-275
1,743

1 Bdrm
845
15
93
953
217
381
598
537
1,135
-108
1,980

Per Unit Per Month

Financial
Three months ending 6/30/2013
Property
Revenue
Public Housing
Affordable Owned
Tax Credit Partnerships

$238.98
$636.30
$499.85

Subsidy
Revenue
$280.22
$220.81
$47.95

Total
Revenue
$519.20
$857.11
$547.80

2 Bdrm
372
35
90
497
98
416
514
421
935
-125
1,307

Unit Mix
3 Bdrm
258
10
62
330
86
183
269
210
479
-72
737

4 Bdrm
10
0
45
55
0
23
23
141
164
-45
174

Fiscal YTD ending 6/30/2013

HAP
Operating Expense
Management
w/o HMF
Fees (HMF)
$463.78
$473.53
$357.00

$99.11
$9.25
$8.50

NOI
-$43.69
$374.33
$182.30

# of Properties/units Positive # of Properties/units Negative
Net Operating Income (NOI)
Net Operating Income (NOI)

Properties
7
20
18

Units
415
1,851
2,108

Properties
31
0
0

Units
1,584

5+ Bdrm
0
0
7
7
0
0
0
17
17
-7
17

Total
1,999
60
572
2,631
473
1,378
1,851
2,108
3,959
-632
5,958

06/30/13
# of
# of
Properties
Properties not
meeting Debt
meeting DCR
Coverage
14
10

2
5

# of
Properties
DCR Not
Applicable
4
3

Public Housing Demographics

Public Housing Residents
0 to 10% MFI
11 to 20%
21 to 30%
31 to 50%
51 to 80%
Over 80%
All
Waiting List
0 to 10% MFI
11 to 20%
21 to 30%
31 to 50%
51 to 80%
Over 80%
All

# of
Households
646
1,054
530
280
54
7
2,571

Households
% of
Average
Households
Family Size
25.1%
2.0
41.0%
1.6
20.6%
1.9
10.9%
2.3
2.1%
2.5
0.3%
4.1
100.0%
1.9

Average Unit
Size
1.6
1.4
1.5
1.7
1.9
2.7
1.5

Adults no
Children
14.8%
33.1%
15.0%
6.4%
1.2%
0.0%
70.6%

% Family Type (head of household)
Family with
Elderly
Disabled
Children
Not Elderly
10.3%
0.7%
8.3%
7.9%
11.0%
21.9%
5.6%
6.8%
8.6%
4.5%
3.1%
3.3%
0.9%
0.3%
0.4%
0.2%
0.0%
0.0%
29.4%
22.0%
42.5%

Black African
American
7.7%
9.3%
3.7%
3.2%
0.5%
0.2%
24.6%

White
12.0%
24.6%
12.8%
5.4%
0.9%
0.0%
55.7%

Race % (head of household)
Native
Hawaiian/
Asian
American
Pacific Islnd
1.2%
0.4%
0.4%
2.0%
1.4%
0.2%
0.9%
1.0%
0.2%
0.4%
0.2%
0.1%
0.0%
0.2%
0.1%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
4.5%
3.2%
1.1%

Hispanic/ Latino
3.4%
3.5%
2.0%
1.5%
0.4%
0.0%
10.8%
Not Reported

5,070
2,909
1,487
976
193
35
10,670

38.5%
22.1%
11.3%
7.4%
1.5%
0.3%
81.1%

1.9
2.2
2.4
2.5
2.3
2.6
2.1

1.5
1.6
1.7
1.9
1.9
1.9
1.7

2.1%
2.3%
1.4%
0.9%
0.1%
0.0%
6.9%

11.2%
8.6%
3.6%
1.6%
0.3%
0.1%
25.3%

13.2%
16.2%
1.9%
7.7%
10.0%
0.9%
3.6%
5.1%
0.4%
2.7%
3.0%
0.3%
0.6%
0.6%
0.0%
0.1%
0.1%
0.0%
27.9%
35.0%
3.6%
* Race and enthnicity are not required fields on the

0.9%
0.5%
0.9%
0.3%
0.7%
0.2%
0.4%
0.1%
0.1%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
2.9%
1.2%
Waitlist Application in Yardi

2.2%
1.4%
0.8%
0.6%
0.1%
0.0%
5.1%

3.5%
0.9%
0.5%
0.3%
0.1%
0.0%
5.3%

Other Activity
#'s,days,hrs
Public Housing
Names pulled from Wait List
Denials
New rentals
Vacates
Evictions
# of work orders received
# of work orders completed
Average days to respond
# of work orders emergency
Average response hrs (emergency)

149
1
27
3
5
1,416
1,219
13.2
10
19
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Home Forward - Dashboard Report For August of 2013
Rent Assistance Performance Measures
Utilization and Activity

Tenant Based Vouchers
Project Based Vouchers
SRO/Mod Vouchers
All Vouchers

Vouchers
Available
6,913
1,316
512
8,741

Vouchers
Paid
6,680
1,291
481
8,452

Current Month Status
Average
HUD Subsidy
Utilization
Voucher
Over(Under)
Percentage
Cost
Utilized
97%
$584
$396,860
98%
$544
$34,683
94%
$441
97%
$570
$431,543

Calendar Year To Date

Current Month Activity
Remaining
Waiting List
Size
3,009

Waiting List
Names
Pulled
0

Vouchers
Terminated
37
10
6
53

Voucher
Inspections
Completed
537
100
141
778

Utilization
Percentage
99%
97%
94%
98%

Black

White

Native

Asian

Hawaiian/

Hispanic

7.6%
11.9%
9.6%
7.2%
1.2%
0.0%
37.5%

7.3%
18.0%
17.8%
8.9%
1.5%
0.2%
53.5%

0.7%
1.1%
0.8%
0.3%
0.2%
0.0%
3.1%

0.5%
2.5%
1.7%
1.0%
0.1%
0.0%
5.9%

0.1%
0.2%
0.2%
0.1%
0.0%
0.0%
0.6%

0.7%
1.9%
1.4%
0.9%
0.2%
0.0%
5.1%

8.1%
9.7%
4.5%
2.2%
0.5%
0.4%
25.4%

13.7%
8.8%
5.5%
4.1%
1.2%
0.5%
33.8%

16.5%
12.9%
8.7%
6.1%
1.2%
0.8%
46.1%

1.6%
1.0%
0.5%
0.3%
0.2%
0.0%
3.7%

0.9%
1.2%
0.7%
0.8%
0.2%
0.2%
4.1%

0.6%
0.3%
0.4%
0.2%
0.1%
0.0%
1.7%

1.4%
1.1%
0.6%
0.5%
0.1%
0.1%
3.8%

# Events

# Event
Attendees

New Vouchers
Leased
2
13
7
22

Average
Voucher
Cost
$606
$562
$440
$590

HUD Subsidy
Over(Under)
Utilized
$1,822,580
-$240,070
-$301,875

New Vouchers
Leased
142
187
90
419

Vouchers
Terminated
315
126
85
526

Demographics

Tenant Based Voucher Participants
0 to 10% MFI
11 to 20%
21 to 30%
31 to 50%
51 to 80%
Over 80%
All
Waiting List
0 to 10% MFI
11 to 20%
21 to 30%
31 to 50%
51 to 80%
Over 80%
All

# of
Households
1,036
2,172
1,922
1,123
192
15
6,460

1,102
815
548
396
95
53
3,009

Households
% of
Average
Households
Family Size
17.0%
2.0
35.6%
2.1
31.5%
2.2
18.4%
3.0
3.1%
3.3
0.2%
3.5
105.8%
2.3

36.6%
27.1%
18.2%
13.2%
3.2%
1.8%
100.0%

Average Unit
Size
1.9
2.0
2.1
2.4
2.7
2.9
2.1

Adults no
Children
9.0%
22.6%
19.7%
7.0%
1.1%
0.1%
59.5%

% Family Type (head of household)
Family with
Elderly
Disabled
Children
Not Elderly
8.0%
0.4%
1.8%
13.0%
8.9%
13.5%
11.7%
9.6%
12.5%
11.4%
3.5%
4.5%
2.0%
0.3%
0.4%
0.1%
0.1%
0.0%
46.2%
22.9%
32.7%

1.7
2.1
2.4
2.6
2.7
2.4
2.1

0.9%
2.7%
2.6%
1.6%
0.3%
0.1%
8.2%

Race % (head of household)

Not Reported
2.0%
1.8%
1.8%
1.1%
0.1%
0.1%
6.8%

Short Term Rent Assistance
# of Households
Participating
Shelter Plus Care
Short Term Rent Assistance

554
33

$ Amount of
Average Cost
Assistance
per Household
Provided
$329,408
$595
$9,345
$283

Resident Services
Resident Programs
Housing
Program Served
Congregate Housing Services
* as of previous month

Resident Services Coordination

Public Housing

Public Housing

Households
Served/
Participants

Monthly
Funding
Amount

94

$64,660

$688

# HH
Stabilized

# HH
Transitioned

Health and Safety
Stabilized

42

24

29

# of
Participants
GOALS Program

Public Housing
Section 8

Average Funds per
Participant

76
168
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Escrow $
Held
$142,600
$338,623

Unduplicated
Number
Served
1747

New
Enrollees

# of
Graduates

0
0

0
0

Crisis
Intervention
24

Escrow $
Disbursed
$1,124
$26,674

Support
System
Enhanced
70

Terminations
or Exits

255

5320

Escrow $
Forfeited

Avg Annual
Earned Income
Increase Over
Last Year

0
0

$0
$0

-$806
$708
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Agency Financial Summary
Three months ending 6/30/2013

Month

Subsidy Revenue
Grant Revenue
Property Related Income
Development Fee Revenue
Other Revenue
Total Revenue
Housing Assistance Payments
Operating Expense
Depreciation
Total Expense
Operating Income
Other Income(Expense)
Capital Contributions
Increase(Decrease) Net Assets
Total Assets
Liquidity Reserves

Fiscal Year to
Date

Prior YTD

Increase
(Decrease)

$6,397,525
$857,829
$1,334,778
$0
$229,607
$8,819,738

$19,524,784
$2,904,979
$4,069,956
$0
$644,490
$27,144,209

$20,079,239
$6,408,089
$3,749,264
$0
$948,139
$31,184,731

($554,455)
($3,503,110)
$320,692
$0
($303,649)
($4,040,522)

$6,156,302
$3,114,186
$709,977
$9,980,466
-$1,160,728

$17,342,726
$9,650,634
$2,090,802
$29,084,163
-$1,939,954

$17,124,492
$9,315,621
$1,947,189
$28,387,302
$2,797,429

$218,234
$335,013
$143,613
$696,861
($4,737,383)

-$390,420
-$692,304
$397,045
$444,882
-$1,154,103 -$2,187,376
$199,860,098 $199,860,098
$20,569,099 $25,363,551

-$467,171
$1,306,947
$3,637,205
$197,664,131
$25,293,231

($225,134)
($862,065)
($5,824,582)
$2,195,966
$70,319

Development/Community Revitalization
New Development / Revitalization
Stephen's Creek Crossing
Beech Street

Capital Improvement
Highrise Rehab - Group 1
Gallagher
Hollywood East
Northwest Tower
Highrise Rehab - Group 2
Sellwood
Hollywood East - Roof Replacement
Carlton Court Siding Replacement
Eastwood Court Court Siding Replacement
Maple Mallor Sewer Repairs
PH Portfolio Capital Needs Assmt

Units
129
32

564
85
299
180
112
112
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Construction
Start
Aug-12
May-13

Construction
Current
Total
End
Phase
Cost
Apr-15 Sitework / Construction $51,636,304
Aug-14 Sitework / Construction $10,346,567

Cost Per
Unit
$400,281
$323,330

Mar-13

Sep-16 Predev / Finance Structuring
$38,886,147

$68,947

Mar-13

Sep-16 Predev / Finance Structuring$8,041,564

$71,800

Apr-13
Dec-12
Dec-12
Mar-13
Jan-13

Aug-13
Aug-13
Aug-13
Jun-13
Dec-13

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Home Forward Board of Commissioners
September 2013

Construction
Construction
Construction
Construction
Construction

$549,500
$428,293
$732,700
$280,087
$300,000

181
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